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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 02 JULY 2020 

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you ready? 

ADV SONI SC:   We are ready Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .   Thank you.   Please 

administer the oath or aff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Cl inton Oel lerman.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Not .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath to be b inding on 

your conscience? 

MR OELLERMAN:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 

MR OELLERMAN:   So help me God.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.  I  do not  know 

whether to welcome you Mr Oel lerman or not .  20 

MR OELLERMAN:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning.   Yes thank you.  Yes Mr 

Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   Thank you Chairperson.   Chai rperson can I  

br ief ly int roduce the evidence that  Mr Oel lerman is going to  
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be giv ing? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Mr Oel lerman has prepared a report  and you 

wi l l  recal l  Mr Chairperson ar is ing f rom Ms Ngoye’s aff idavi t  

in the Siyangena Review Appl icat ion quest ions arose about 

the property  t ransact ions that  Mr Montana has entered into 

and some of  which you have been on air  which evidence was 

led in the last  two days.   And the quest ion real ly is,  is there 

a connect ion between the Siyangena contracts and those 

property  t ransact ions.   Now what Mr Oel lerman has done and 10 

the quest ion real ly is,  how do we present  al l  of  that  evidence 

to you and of  course to the publ ic in the manner that  

faci l i tates a proper  understanding of  al l  the evidence.   One 

could lead the evidence of  20 wi tnesses about i ts sale and 

so on but  these are – this  is documentary ev idence.   Mr 

Oel lerman has been at  the heart  of  col lect ing the documents 

re lat ing to the propert ies.   And based on that  he prepared 

in i t ia l  reports which deal t  wi th the – the di fferent  stages of  

the t ransact ions in respect  of  each party.   Then about three 

weeks ago Chai rperson we were t ry ing to f ind out  how we 20 

could get  the evidence of  Mr van der Walt  then we found out  

that  he had lef t  the country.   And i t  is then that  we requi red 

of  Mr Oel lerman who through a subpoena acqui red the 

documents that  Mr Loubser presented yesterday.   And that  

threw a qui te di fferent  l ight  on the propert ies t ransact ions 



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 5 of 224 
 

and the possible l ink wi th the Siyangena contracts.   Now we 

thought to present  that  in a manner that  puts al l  the facts in 

perspect ive and wi thout  forming conclusions at  th is  stage i t  

puts the facts in perspect ive Mr Oel lerman would draw up a 

report  of  h is invest igat ion as at  th is stage.   So that  is the 

evidence that  he is going to  lead he’s prepared a detai led 

report  and I  wi l l  go through the report  wi th him.  Now 

Chairperson as a prel iminary to that  and again in the interest  

of  fa i rness to everybody af ter Mr Oel lerman prepared the 

report  reports were served on a l l  i f  I  may ca l l  i t  that  10 

impl icated part ies or part ies who are possibly ment ioned.   

Among them are TMM and Mr Ferre ira.   The repor ts were 

served on them and on Monday or on Tuesday we received a 

note f rom Mr Ferre ira’s  and TMM’s lawyers to say but  you 

should not  lead the evidence of  Mr Oel lerman because we 

want to  present  our  own evidence on the matter.   But  i t  was 

by way a let ter.   The commission wrote back Chai rperson to 

say,  i f  you do not  want Mr Oel lerman’s evidence to be led at  

th is stage br ing an appl icat ion as you are ent i t led to do in  

terms of  the rules to say,  wel l  postpone i t  unt i l  th is date and 20 

this – the prejudice wi l l  be suffer ing and our approach would 

be i f  you want more t ime we wi l l  g ladly give you more t ime.  

In fact ,  we wi l l  consul t  wi th you next  week and you can – we 

can lead al l  the evidence at  the same t ime.  We received a 

let ter th is morning or late yesterday Chai rperson to say,  wel l  
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they want to apply to cross-examine Mr Oel lerman and Mr 

Loubser.   So I  p lace that  on record just  to indicate that  there 

were al legat ions that  i t  would be unfa ir  to lead Mr 

Oel lerman’s evidence at  th is stage and when we asked for  

the proper procedure to be fol lowed the response is,  wel l  we 

want to cross-examine.   Now that  is an appl icat ion that  wi l l  

obviously be made to you Chairperson and I  wi l l  just  a lert  

you to i t  but  that  is where we are at  th is stage and as far as 

the commission’s legal  team in the PRASA stream is  

concerned we are ent i t led to lead the evidence of  Mr 10 

Oel lerman at  th is stage.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No thank you very much.  Okay.   Let  us 

cont inue.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Mr Oel lerman you have heard I  have 

explained to the Chairperson the genesis of  the report .  

MR OELLERMAN:   Hm. 

ADV SONI SC:   Can you indicate to the Chairperson in – in  

what your role is in regard to the reports? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  guess this is – the beginning is h is 20 

re lat ionship wi th the commission.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is the beginning.   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   So Chair  I  am appointed as an 
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invest igator at  the commission.   I  am current ly one – leading 

the invest igat ion wi th the PRASA team looking into var ious 

contracts involving PRASA and al legat ions around state 

capture.  

 The – my involvement wi th the – wi th th is part icular 

matter comes f rom numerous documents which we looked 

through during the course of  our invest igat ion.   Various court  

papers,  aff idavi ts  which had been obtained in other matters 

pr ior our invest igat ion.   One of  which was of  Ms Martha 

Ngoye who has also test i f ied here before – at  the 10 

commission as wel l .  

 And one of  the aff idavi ts which we – which we looked 

at  dur ing the course of  invest igat ion was her founding 

aff idavi t  in the Siyangena matter where PRASA had brought  

an appl icat ion to  have the S iyangena contract  set  as ide.   

One of  the key matters which Ms Ngoye raised in the 

aff idavi t  on why the cont ract  should be set  aside were 

re lated to certain  f inancial  deal ings between the PRASA’s 

Group Chief  Execut ive Off icer,  Mr  Lucky Montana and an 

at torney Mr Riaan Van Der Walt  who had represented 20 

Siyangena on var ious matters in the past .  

 In fact ,  Ms Ngoye in the aff idavi t  went  so far  as to 

say that  a cr iminal  docket  had been opened at  – at  Brooklyn 

pol ice stat ion as a resul t  of  what they referred potent ia l ly 

corrupt  act iv i t ies.    
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 These act iv i t ies actual ly refer to related or to 

f inancial  – the f inancial  deal ings which she referred related 

to four property t ransact ions involved Mr Montana and Mr 

van Der Walt  in which four propert ies were purchased.   

 F i rst  of  a l l ,  i t  was – three propert ies were purchased 

and one property was purchased f rom Mr Montana.   The four 

propert ies evidence has been led at  the commission on 

these propert ies.   That  is the Parkwood property,  a property  

in Waterkloof ,  a property in Sandhurst  and a property in  

Burl ingham. 10 

 What is also ment ioned is whi lst  these f inancia l  

deal ing were taking place Siyangena was at  the same t ime 

during the same period engaged in extending or having an 

addendum to thei r  cont ract  concluded with  – they were in  

negot iat ions wi th PRASA to have that  cont ract  extended to 

the value of  just  over R8 mi l l ion I  th ink i t  is R294 mi l l ion.    

 And because of  th is i t  was al leged that  the – these 

re lat ionships in which these par t ies as cont ractor and 

serv ice provider raised signi f icant  red f lags because of  what  

– of  these f inancial  deal ings that  were involved as wel l .  20 

 We have then subsequent ly  reviewed the 

documentat ion,  obtained further  documents dur ing the 

course of  the invest igat ion,  interviewed a number of  people,  

looked at  aff idavi t  and sources of  informat ion at tached to 

their  aff idavi ts and that  just  culminated in a summary report  
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which I  have then put  there.  

ADV SONI SC:   And in regard to the documents provided by 

Mr Loubser what was the signi f icance of  those documents Mr 

Oel lerman? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes Si r.   As Mr Soni  po inted out  we 

in i t ia l ly t r ied to make contact  wi th Mr van Der Walt .   We 

subsequent ly learned that  he is no longer in the count ry.   We 

then made contact  wi th Mr Loubser who af ter we had 

provided him a summons gave us a number of  documents 

which he had secured f rom their  off ices.  10 

 With – in amongst  those documents were bank 

statements related to an ent i ty cal led Precise Trade as wel l  

let ters which or correspondence between Mr van Der Walt  

and Mr Loubser and his partners which set  out  a  number of  

explanat ions regard ing these property t ransact ions.  

 And there were a lso references to  certain  – certain  

contracts which had been entered into wi th ent i t ies via Mr 

van Der Walt  and those ent i t ies had paid money into Precise 

Trade’s bank account.   And a review of  the bank account and 

Mr Loubser ’s  explanat ions i t  was clear  that  references had 20 

been made in Mr van der Wal t ’s handwr i t ing on which 

ent i t ies deposi ted which monies on which dates.  

 One of  the ent i t ies ment ioned was TMM which has a 

close associat ion wi th Siyangena and Mario Ferrei ra who 

also has a close associat ion wi th the two ent i t ies.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Now in your report  you – you detai l  a  

number of  issues and you seem to have deal t  wi th  two of  

them at  th is stage namely just  the general  background and 

then the sources of  informat ion.   Now that  would I  be correct  

that  part  of  your report  is f rom paragraph 1 to paragraph 11,  

is that  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chair  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr Soni  before you go into the 

contents of  the report  wi th the wi tness,  we need to have the 

– his report  admit ted.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Absolutely r ight  Chai rperson.   So… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you ask that  I  admit  i t  as Exhib i t  SS18 

together wi th the annexures thereto? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes as you please Chai rperson I  am 

indebted to you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The prel iminary report  by – the pre l iminary 

report  on the commission’s invest igat ion into Mr Lucky 

Montana’s involvement in property t ransact ions in 2014 and 

2015 compi led by Mr Cl inton Oel lerman that  is O-e- l - l -e-r-m-

a-n-n for the benef i t  of  the t ranscr ibers is admit ted together 20 

wi th i ts annexure as Exhibi t  SS18.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And again,  just  for re ferences 

purposes i t  wi l l  be contained in Bundle H Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  wi l l  – i t  is contained in Bundle H.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now in paragraphs 11 to 15 you deal  wi th  

the sources of  the informat ion and you have al ready deal t  

wi th that  var ious t ransact ions [00:14:23]  you got  f rom Mr 

Loubser and so on.   In part icular the bank statement that  he 

gave you.    Chai rperson… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  gather – I  am sorry.   I  guess also we 

need to get  th is  out  of  the way.   We need to ask Mr 10 

Oel lerman to conf i rm that  i t  is his – his report .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   As you please Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Oel lerman do you conf i rm that  Exhib i t  

SS18 which begins f rom page – I  see that  i t  says page 3.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  should be page 1 is i t  not?  I t  should be 

page 1 because the other th ings are the index.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson what  I  suspect  has happened 

and I  only just  saw i t  now that  you have pointed out  is there 

is a… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh, there is an aff idavi t?  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Oh, but  then – then where is  

page 2?  Oh, there is page 2.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  Mr Chairperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   No then I  understand.   Okay I  th ink what 

we wi l l  do is  you see the f rom outs ide there is no indicat ion 

that  there is also the aff idavi t  so I  th ink that  we should say 

Exhibi t  SS18 would be the actual  report  and we make – what 

shal l  we make the aff idavi t?  Because i t  needs to be – we 

wi l l  make i t  Exhib i t  SS18a.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   The aff idavi t  of  Mr Cl inton Oel lerman 

on the 17 June 2020 which accompanies his report  wi l l  be 

admit ted as Exhib i t  SS18a.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:   And then we – we need him to – have you 

al ready conf i rmed, did they ask you to conf i rm and you 

conf i rmed Mr Oel lerman your report  or not  yet? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Not  yet  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you conf i rm that  Exhibi t  SS18 is your 

report? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chair  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Mr Soni .  

MR OELLERMAN:   And Chair  can I  – I  can also just  conf i rm 20 

this.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  the report  is t i t led prel iminary 

report .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  
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MR OELLERMAN:   And the l i t igat ions are ongoing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  No,  no that  is f ine.  

MR OELLERMAN:   And the report  wi l l  be updated as the 

invest igat ion cont inues.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine.   I  th ink by the very 

nature of  – of  –  wel l  actual ly I  do not  even know whether i t  

should be cal led a report .   Maybe that  is what may be 

confusing.   As I  understand i t  is – i t  is just  you saying what 

you came across as you were invest igat ing.  

MR OELLERMAN:   At  th is stage yes,  correct  Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja at  th is stage and later on i f  and when 

you have more in format ion that  changes the si tuat ion – the 

picture or that  conf i rms the pic ture you wi l l  put  that  

informat ion before the commission.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay al r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   And just  on that  po int  Mr Oel lerman the idea 

is you point  out  later  in your so-cal led report  is  that  

eventual ly you wi l l  present  everything in a f inal  repor t .  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  yes Chai r.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Af ter hearing the other side and so on.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes there are addi t ional  invest igat ions 

going on as wel l  which involved detai led f low of  fund 

analysis of  var ious part ies so that  wi l l  a l l  be incorporated 

into the f inal  report .    
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ADV SONI SC:   Then f rom paragraphs 18 to 23 you deal  wi th  

the background and you have deal t  wi th that  al ready in  

general  terms that  whi lst  these property t ransact ions were 

being negot iated and processed there was this  paral le l  

process of  Siyangena acqui r ing major cont racts wi th PRASA.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And i f  I  could just  summarise what  that  is 

and you could just  conf i rm whether  that  is correct?  In June 

2014 there was a R2.4 bi l l ion contract ,  is that  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  yes.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Between Siyangena and PRASA.  And then 

in September 3 months later there was the R800 mi l l ion 

extension of  that  contract .  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson al though i t  is not  contained in 

th is,  I  have just  put  some context  to i t .   You wi l l  recal l  

Chairperson that  Ms Ngoye stressed on the f i rst  occasion 

she gave evidence and then again when she gave evidence 

ear l ier th is week that  that  contract  they only discovered the 

R800 mi l l ion contract  when they stopped S iyangena f rom 20 

carrying on some work and Siyangena rushed off  to court  

and got  an interdict  prevent ing PRASA from doing so.   And in  

support  of  the ir  c la im for the R800 mi l l ion they produced this 

contract  which PRASA saw for the very f i rst  t ime.  And I  just  

place on record because i t  is conta ined here that  i t  was Mr 
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Montana who had signed that  cont ract  on the 30 September 

on behal f  of  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   The R800 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  st i l l  want  to be reminded whether  my – 

but  I  want  your conf i rmat ion that  my memory is  correct  that  

there was this one cont ract  or addendum to a cont ract  that  

Mr Montana had signed without  any knowledge of  anyone 

else at  PRASA.  Is that  the one or is that  another one? 

ADV SONI SC:   That  is i t .   That  is the one.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the one.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  is the one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where – do you recal l  whether there is  

nobody who witnessed his signature there or whoever 

wi tnessed was not  somebody f rom PRASA? 

ADV SONI SC:   We did not  canvass that  wi th Ms Ngoye 

because as I  understood they were simply not  aware of  the 

contract  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink – I  th ink there was – I  th ink i t  

was dur ing Ms Ngoye’s evidence ear l ier in the year when I  20 

heard ev idence about a document or an agreement or  

addendum that  I  th ink no-one else at  PRASA knew anything 

about i t  except  Mr  Montana because he had signed i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink I  looked at  – I  wanted to see who 
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had signed as a wi tness.   I  cannot  remember whether  there 

was nobody who had s igned as a wi tness to Mr Montana’s 

signature or there was somebody and I  have the impression 

that  I  may have asked Ms Ngoye whether she knew the 

signature or something.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And ei ther I  d id not  – I  asked her and she 

said no she d id not  know who i t  was or maybe I  d id  not  ask 

her.   I  intended to ask and never asked.  

ADV SONI SC:   Can I  – can I  ask this Chairperson?  We 10 

have the cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Can we look at  i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Later in due course.  

ADV SONI SC:   At  tea t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And I  wi l l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Look at  i t  and then we can canvass i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Oel lerman does what I  am talk ing 20 

about r ing a bel l  wi th you? 

MR OELLERMAN:   I t  does Chai r.   I t  appears to be the same 

contract  but  I  would also just  l ike to  conf i rm that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  we are – have the same thing.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight  okay.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   We wi l l  check that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Because I  –  i t  may be that  there 

is some signi f icance in the fact  that  none of  the wi tnesses to 

Mr Montana’s signature was a signature of  somebody f rom 

within PRASA.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There may be some signi f icance to that .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – ja okay.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   But  we wi l l  look at  i t  just  now 

Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then Mr Oel lerman we go into the four 

propert ies.   Now can I  just  put  th is in context .  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   In what one may cal l  the main par t  of  the 

report  you s imply summarise al l  the facts relat ing to each of  

the propert ies,  would that  be correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   And the purpose of  that  is to g ive a broad 

overal l  p icture wi thout  being bogged down by individual  facts 

and individual  documents and so on.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Indeed Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  in order to  show that  al l  what  your  
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summary in the main report  is based on documentat ion that  

is in your possession you have at tached more detai led 

reports in respect  of  each of  the propert ies.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chai r.   So what – what I  

d id was for each property there is an individual  report  where 

al l  the source document is  at tached to that  part icular  report .   

So that  there wi l l  be four of  those reports.   They are 

annexures to the main report .   The main report  then sets out  

a summary of  what t ranspi red more general ly giv ing context  

to the – the individual  reports.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   So you for example would have heard the 

evidence yesterday of  Mr Karen De Beer.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Now that  deals wi th the Waterkloof  property  

and al l  her aff idavi t  and the other matters she deal t  wi th are 

contained in the annexure to – to your main report .  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   And let  us just  get  that  formal i ty out  of  the 

way.   There are four annexures to your report ,  am I  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   And each of  these annexures deals wi th 

their  propert ies? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   The f i rst  annexure is OR1 with  which 

property does that  deal  
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MR OELLERMAN:   That  would be the sale of  the Parkwood 

property.  

ADV SONI SC:   R ight .  And then OR2? 

MR OELLERMAN:   OR2 is the Waterkloof  property.  

ADV SONI SC:   R ight .   And OR3? 

MR OELLERMAN:   OR3 is the Sandhurst  property.  

ADV SONI SC:   And OR4? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on,  hang on,  hang on.  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh I  am sorry Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  was able to see OR1.  Where is OR2?  I  10 

see OR3.  OR2 okay.   I  th ink the problem is that  when I  – 

you know the divide in pages where you have OR whatever 

wri t ten i t  is bet ter  i f  they are the same colour.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He has di fferent  colours.   So when I  see 

the f i rst  one OR1 and I  see i t  is th is green l ight  colour in  

colour when I  look for OR2 I  am looking for a green – a 

simi lar colour.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So those – so they must  not  change 20 

because i f  I  see p ink,  I  th ink i t  must  be someth ing else.  

ADV SONI SC:   Something e lse,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – but  i f  i t  is the same colour.  

ADV SONI SC:   No absolutely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  helps.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Al r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   Especial ly i f  they are marked.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  they are – i f  the – i f  you – i f  you use a 

certain colour to div ide di fferent  sect ions of  the lever arch 

f i le i t  is bet ter to use the same colour.  

ADV SONI SC:   The same colour.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And otherwise because I  am busy looking 

for th is colour.  

ADV SONI SC:   No sure.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is what the colours how they have 

been doing i t  in the past .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  miss this colour because now this is 

cream, whi te or yel low.  Okay thank you.   Now I  have found 

OR2 and OR3 you are about to go to OR4. 

ADV SONI SC:   OR4 and which property does OR4 deal  wi th  

Mr Oel lerman? 

MR OELLERMAN:   OR4 is the Hurl ingham property Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson can I  get  th is out  of  the way?  

You asked me about the addendum.  I t  is annexure FA209 

but  we have col lected in a f i le which I  wi l l  hand up to you at  

a later stage and I  am but  before I  do that  may I  just  point  

th is out?  That  the annexure is s igned by Siyangena Mr 
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Reddy who was ment ioned at  being at  that  meet ing you 

might  remember that  Ms Ngoye ta lked about wi th the DG.  

She and Mr Dubek were at  that  meet ing.   And i t  is s igned by 

Mr Montana and there appeared to be two witnesses and i t  

may be that  –  and i t  is not  something I  recal l  immediately but  

I  wi l l  check the record but  i t  is s igned but  i t  may be that  

when you asked Ms Ngoye she could not  recognise those 

persons.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do I  have i t  here or I  do not  have i t  here? 

ADV SONI SC:   You do not  have i t  now.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   I  wi l l  hand i t  up in their  f i le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is f ine.   But  we would need to 

know whether the people who signed as wi tnesses are 

PRASA people or not .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or whether  al l  the wi tnesses were 

wi tnesses of  the other party to the agreement.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Then – Mr Oel lerman when for example 

Ms Karen De Beer gave evidence and when Mr Green gave 

evidence yesterday i t  showed a number of  di fferent  part ies 

seemingly being involved and then eventual ly the Deed of  

Transfer  records that  two of  the propert ies were t ransferred 
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to Precise Trade and one of  the propert ies was t ransferred to  

Ms Montana himsel f .   What one needs to do for the 

Chairperson and for the publ ic as a whole is to just  t ry and 

summarise in a sense very br ief ly al l  the var ious steps in the 

t ransact ions so that  r ight  at  the end one can say but  why 

would al l  of  these things happen and a cont ract  is  – and 

these are not  smal l  contracts.   More than R10 mi l l ion each of  

them.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Is – there is a di f ferent  party to whom the 10 

property is concerned.   And we wi l l  deal  wi th that .   But  when 

you are doing your summary of  each of  the propert ies i f  you 

could keep that  in  mind.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   So you then talk about  the four propert ies 

and that  the f i rst  part  is an int roductory part .   We have heard 

evidence on that  and we need not  deal  wi th that  – the 

var ious propert ies we know there are four propert ies.   So i f  

you could start  at  paragraph 27 and deal  wi th the Parkwood 

property.  20 

MR OELLERMAN:   Sure.   So just  wi th regard to the 

Parkwood property,  th is was a property that  Mr Montana 

owned himsel f  and he subsequent ly sold that  property to 

Precise Trade.   In i t ia l ly he bought  the property for  about  

R1.85 mi l l ion . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Was that  in 2008? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct  Chairperson.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR OELLERMAN:   H is bank had valued the property around 

2012 for about  R2.5 mi l l ion.   However,  in May 2014,  Precise 

Trade made him an offer for R 6.8 mi l l ion for the property  

which,  as I  say,  was about R3 mi l l ion more than what his  

bank had valued the property at  the t ime.   

 And in the deta i led report  we had correspondence 

between Mr Montana and his bank where that  sets -  where 10 

he had set  that  out .    

 Mr Montana,  obviously,  accepted the offer  and the 

property  was paid for through Precise Trade to a number of  

payments over a per iod of  t ime.  

ADV SONI SC:   Just  on that  point .   There are two unusual  

features that  you are al luding to.   What are those? 

MR OELLERMAN:   So f i rst ly the property  is valued at  around 

R3.5 mi l l ion.   Mr Montana gets a very generous offer of  

R6.8 mi l l ion for the property.    

 I  mean even factor ing in some escalat ion over -  of  20 

property value over 20 months,  i t  seems the property the 

value had increased signi f icant ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR OELLERMAN:   And he,  obviously,  accepted the offer 

. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   . . . for the property  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  was wi thin less than two years.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  that  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Af ter the evaluat ion made by the bank.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So and the bank valued i t  at  three point?  

MR OELLERMAN:   R3.5 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Roundabout  August  2012.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So. . .  so was i t . . .  d id he get  about  

double the -  or c lose to double . . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . the value of  the property.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct ,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   H’m. 

MR OELLERMAN:   And there is a lso – I  mean there is no 

real  evidence that  s igni f icant  addi t ions had been done to the 

property because subsequent to Mr Montana sign ing the 

deal ,  the addendum to the offer  to purchase by Precise 20 

Trade was signed in which some onerous obl igat ions were 

placed on Mr Montana to fork out  for improvements to the 

property at  his own cost .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  So on your invest igat ion in regard to 

Mr Montana’s involvement in these propert ies,  the sale of  
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th is property of  his to Precise Trade which is Mr van der 

Walt ’s company,  marks the f i rst  property t ransact ion between 

Mr Montana and Precise Trade.   Is that  r ight? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  that  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In terms of  these propert ies . . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . that  you have looked of  the four?  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And then,  th is is. . .  th is happens in  

2014.  10 

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  r ight?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR OELLERMAN:   The offer  was made roundabout 

May 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About May 2014?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you wi l l  later  on wi l l  round off  the last 

one of  the four propert ies -  the last  one of  the t ransact ions 20 

happens somet ime in 2015.   Is that  r ight?  Or towards end of  

2014?  

MR OELLERMAN:   The propert ies are al l  concluded 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   By end of  2014?  
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MR OELLERMAN:   End of  2015.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   By end of  2015?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   The propert ies or the in i t ia l  offers are 

made . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR OELLERMAN:   . . .2014.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   A l though the property t ransfers and 

conclusions run in to 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   The actual  sa les . . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .occur -  a l l  occur  in 2014?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  the t ransfers -  some of  the t ransfers or  

the t ransfer of  one of  them might  go into . . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .2015.  

MR OELLERMAN:   So just  as an example.   I  mean, in the 

Parkwood property,  the offer was made in August 2012 but  

the t ransfer was only affected in February 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  
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ADV SONI SC:   So the offer was made in 2014? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Sorry,  2014.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   2014.   And then the t ransfer was effected 

in February 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   But  in the end,  part  of  the 

point  about  Mr Montana’s involvement in these t ransact ions,  

in the sales of  propert ies wi th  Precise Trade and Mr van der  

Walt  is that ,  dur ing 2014, there are -  there were var ious 

agreements or tenders or business being done,  being 10 

conducted between PRASA and Siyangena.  And - ja ,  okay.   

Thank you.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And just  to put  that  in perspect ive.   The 

R2.4 bi l l ion cont ract  was signed on the 30t h of  June 2014.   Is 

that  r ight .  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   And the addendum was signed on. . .  in 

September by Mr Montana on the 30t h of  September? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct .  20 

ADV SONI SC:   2014 again.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So. . .  so the Parkwood property is  sold in 

May,  the sa le agreement is concluded in May between 

Montana and Precise Trade.   Is that  r ight?  

 And then in  June,  then that  contract  is concluded 
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between PRASA of  which Mr Montana was the CEO and 

Siyangena?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Then the remain ing three propert ies,  the 

t ransact ions would have happened between August  and 

October 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   Yes.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now Mr Oel lerman, unt i l  Mr Loubser gave 

you the documents,  were you aware of  how payments had 10 

been made or who had made payments and so on? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Not  at  that  stage.   I t  was part  of  the 

invest igat ions at  that  stage.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m. H’m.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  he then gave you the documents.   Now 

one of  the documents that  he gave you was the bank 

statement of  Precise Trade.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is. . .  yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Is  i t?  20 

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson,  that  appears at  Bundle G.  I t  is  

Exhibi t  SS16 and i t  is at  page 190.   I t  may be useful  for you 

to have i t  in f ront  of  you Chai rperson.   I  say that  wi th respect  

because there are matters that  I  want  to deal  wi th here.  



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 29 of 224 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  that  is f ine.   I  th ink i f  you do not  

al ready have,  i t  would be convenient  to have. . .  I  do not  know 

whether or not  to cal l  i t  a table which say l ike May Montana’s 

tables.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Montana’s se l ls  his  Parkwood property  

to Precise whose sole d irector is Mr van der Walt  who is an 

at torney represent ing . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   S iyangena.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   June 2014, PRASA concludes or provides,  

gives a tender to Siyangena for  so much but  a lso the 

quest ion of  who signs that  agreement.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For that  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  that  cont ract .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then,  go throughout the year  20 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . to say,  “Here is  what happens about 

propert ies.   Here is what happens in terms of  business 

between Siyangena and PRASA”.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And who gets involved,  and that  is where 

we need to also look at  the. . .  at  what was happening to the 

legal  department.   I  have got  Ms Ngoye and Mr Dingiswayo.  

Some of  the things that  were happening to  them 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  we can. . .  Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .wi th. . .  they need to be factored in there 

as wel l .  

ADV SONI SC:   Ah,  I  see.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson,  i t  has  just  occurred to me.   We 

should do two things.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   And that  is  to  have a table but  also have a 

pictor ia l  representat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Because i t  g ives one a bi rd’s eye-view of  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   . . . the whole thing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Exact ly.   Ja,  ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Because the otherwise . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   . . .put  i t  a l l  together.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  we wi l l  do that  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   And we wi l l  do i t  soon as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.   I f  Ms Renata is on top of  these 

things,  she could do i t  whi le we are cont inuing and by tea-

break i t  should. . .  i t  would be ready.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i t  is just  about  2014 up to 2015.  

ADV SONI SC:   2015.   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is those i tems.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   I  would have l iked to  have i t  

before he f in ishes his evidence i f  possible.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  al r ight .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  necessari ly the pictor ia l  one.  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  the t imetable . . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . the table.   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now,  i f  you look at  the bank account  Mr 
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Oel lerman, you wi l l  see that  the green . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am so sorry.   You referred to  a bundle 

that  has been handed up.   Is  that  the one I  should look at  

now? 

ADV SONI SC:   That  is. . .  Yes.   Yes,  Chai r.   I  am sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is Bundle G, Exhibi t  SS16, page 190.   I t  is  

an annexure to Mr Loubser ’s aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now, you deal  wi th,  in paragraphs 4 and 5. . .  10 

paragraphs 31 and 32,  you say that  the agreement provided 

for a deposi t  of  R2.5 mi l l ion.   Is that  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   At  page 32.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   A l r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Soni .   You referred to 

paragraph 32.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you. . .  of  h is report? 20 

ADV SONI SC:   Of  Mr Oel lerman’s report ,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ja,  okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   And you make the point  that  in terms of  the 

agreement,  the amount,  the deposi t  was to be paid on the 

18t h,  before the 18t h of  June.   Ah,  so sorry.   The deposi t  was 
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to be paid by the 4t h of  June and payments had to be made 

between June 2014 and February 2015.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   And is that  what happened in regard to the 

payments? 

MR OELLERMAN:   No,  i t  appears not .   I t  appears that  

payments f rom Precise Trade di ffered to what was set  out  in 

the purchase agreement.   They were made over a ser ies of  

payments.   The deposi t  i tsel f  was not  R2.5 mi l l ion but  

R2.225 mi l l ion that  was made.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight .   And can I  then just  ask you to look 

at  the bank statement which is at  Bundle G?  And can you 

read into the record the deposi ts made into Precise Trade’s 

account on the 18 t h of  June 2014? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Chai rperson,  there are two deposi ts that  

are ref lected.   The one. . .  the f i rst  one is for R1.85 mi l l ion. . .  

R1 850 000.   Below that  is another deposi t  for R4 mi l l ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And i f  you look at  the,  I  just  point  out  

that  the handwri t ing against  those numbers i t  says TMM 

loan.  20 

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  that  is correct .   

ADV SONI SC:   H ’m.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Mr Loubser ind icated in their  interact ions 

wi th him that  Mr van der Walt  had communicated to them in 

their  correspondence that  that  -  that  money was deposi ted 
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by TMM and these. . .  those were his,  Mr van der Walt ’s own 

handwri t ing inscr ipt ions that  are ref lected on the bank 

statement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe just  remind everybody who TMM is 

in relat ion to Siyangena.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  so. . .  I  th ink Ms Ngoye covered i t  

qui te extensively in her evidence as wel l .   TMM has a close 

associat ion wi th S iyangena within the documentat ion that  we 10 

have seen.   There is correspondence where Siyangena 

conf i rms that  TMM assists them in the execut ion of  thei r  

contracts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Does -  did you invest igat ion reveal  that  

Siyangena appears to  be a subsidiary of  TMM or not  real ly  

but  they might  be owned by the same person or persons or 

they might  have common d irectors?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Ja,  at  th is stage,  I  would say they have a 

close associat ion wi th. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  20 

MR OELLERMAN:   . . .between the two companies 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR OELLERMAN:   TMM plays an important  role  in the 

execut ion of  the S iyangena contract .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is -  or the re lat ionship is conf i rmed 

in the correspondence . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Is c lose. . .  

MR OELLERMAN:   . . . to PRASA which we have seen as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   And Mr Ferre ira’s roles in  TMM and 

Siyangena? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .   So f rom the documentat ion that  

we have rev iewed, he plays an act ive role  in both TMM and 10 

in Siyangena.  

ADV SONI SC:   And just  again.   One of  the documents that  

Mr Loubser handed in yesterday was an agreement between 

TMM and himsel f  -  oh,  sorry,  and Mr Ferrei ra on the one 

hand and Mr van der Walt  on the other hand,  be ing a jo int  

venture for certain developments.   You have seen that  

document? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  I  have seen the document and I  can 

conf i rm that  is  one of  the documents that  was given to us by 

Mr Loubser.   The document,  essent ia l ly,  appears to be an 20 

agreement where opportuni t ies for investments would be 

sought by Mr van der Walt  and presented to TMM or  to  Mr 

Mario Ferrei ra act ing on behal f  of  TMM. 

ADV SONI SC:   Now, the f i rst  wi thdrawal f rom this  account 

as on the papers we have,  is made on the same day as 
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payment is  made of  those two amounts of  R1.8 mi l l ion and 

R4 mi l l ion by TMM. 

MR OELLERMAN:   The what? 

ADV SONI SC:   What is that  payment for?  Can you. . .?  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  appears to  be for the deposi t  which 

is ref lected in the purchase agreement.   Al though, the 

handwri t ing inscr ipt ion next  to i t ,  appears to read as 

guarantee.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And you read the explanat ion that  Mr 

van der Walt  gave to Mr Loubser and Mr van Wyk when they 10 

asked him quest ions?  Mr Loubser sent . . .  I  mean, annexed 

four let ters at  the exchange.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   And in terms of  Mr van der  Walt ’s 

explanat ion,  what was that  R2.25 mi l l ion . . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   I t  appears to be a. . .  for his ex ist ing. . .  

one of  his exist ing propert ies,  the guarantee which the bank 

had cal led up,  that  payment would be made towards that  

guarantee of  one of  the exist ing part ies.   That  would be 

di rect ly into his other property that  he owned.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   And the Parkwood property  t ransact ion has a 

clause which says that  the R 2,5 mi l l ion may be paid to 

ext inguish the bond on -  the exist ing bond on Mr Montana’s 

Waterkloof  proper ty.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct ,  Chai r.  
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ADV SONI SC:   A lr ight .   Now, can I  just  ask you i f  you look 

at  the further wi thdrawals f rom the account  and I  refer you to 

that  made on the 18t h of  August ,  the f i rst  one made on the 

18t h of  August .   Would that . . .  would i t  be correct  to say that  

was for R110 800,00 Mr Oel lerman? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .   I  have i t  as the 18t h of  July.   

18t h of  July 2014.  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh,  sorry.   I t  is the 18t h of  July.   Sorry.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And what is i t  ref lected as on the bank 10 

account i tsel f?  

MR OELLERMAN:   There are three payments that  are. . .  or  

two payments that  there are there,  both on the 18t h.   The one 

is R110 800,00 and the one di rect ly below that  is  

R350 00,00.   And they ref lect  the same informat ion.   I t  says 

Montana payment,  both of  them.  

ADV SONI SC:   And in terms of  the schedule that  Mr van der 

Walt  gave to his  partners,  is he saying that  that  was in  

respect  of . . .  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Property.   

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  th is  corresponds wi th the 

explanat ion that  was given by Mr van der Walt  to his  partner 

on how payment of  the property was effected.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then the thi rd payment ref lected is of  
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twenty-four  thousand,  on the 24t h  of  July 2014.   That  is  for 

R400 000,00.   To whom does the bank account ref lect  the 

payment being made? 

MR OELLERMAN:   The. . .  i t  is ref lected as TLM which we 

understand to be the in i t ia ls of  Tshepho Lucky Montana.  

ADV SONI SC:   And in Mr van der Walt ’s explanat ion,  is he 

saying that  that  is  part  of  the Parkwood? 

MR OELLERMAN:   I t  is consistent  wi th his explanat ion and 

the schedule of  payments which he provided that  was made.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then just  one other. . .  wel l ,  two others that  I  10 

want to refer you to. . .  or three others.   Sorry.   Can I  ask you 

to turn to page 191?  You wi l l  see in  the thi rd . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh,  sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Soni .   Sorry.   H’m I  was just  

making a note.   What page should we.. .  I  go to?  On this. . .  is 

i t  on the same bundle? 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   On the statement? 

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is part  of  the bank statement.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Report . . .  bank statement.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is the next  page of  the bank statement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Page 191.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    
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ADV SONI SC:   Now, there is  an ent ry on the 

5t h of  December 2014 and that  is for a wi thdrawal of  

R400 000,00.   Is that  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct ,  Chai r.    

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   The reference is again TLM and i t  is 

consistent  wi th the informat ion provided by Mr van der Walt .  

ADV SONI SC:   And then the next  wi thdrawal is  on the 

15t h of  January 2015.  And what is that  for? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is in the mount of  R300 000,00 and 10 

the descr ipt ion there is TL.  

ADV SONI SC:   And the explanat ion that  Mr van der  Walt  

gave? 

MR OELLERMAN:   I t  is  consistent  wi th the ser ies of  

payments that  were made for the Parkwood property.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then f ina l ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.  

ADV SONI SC:   Oh,  sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what would the TL stand for in. . .?  

MR OELLERMAN:   Wel l ,  i t . . .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do we know? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Wel l ,  Mr Montana’s names are ref lected 

as Tshepo Lucky Montana.   So that . . .  above you wi l l  i t  is  

TLM.  Here i t  seems to be ref lected as just  TL.   Tshepo 

Lucky.   Possibly  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes-no,  what I  am think ing is that  al l  a long 

unt i l  now, i t  looks l ike they used TLM to refer to Montana.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now there is TL.   I t  might  not  be Montana.  

MR OELLERMAN:   I t  might  not  be but  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja . . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  want  to f ind out  whether we know whether 

th is refers to him or whether i t  might  be somebody else.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Wel l ,  the schedule that  was provided by 10 

Mr van der Walt ,  indicated an amount of  R300 000,00.   This 

is consistent  wi th that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   On the same day? 

MR OELLERMAN:   I t  does not  always ref lect  the dates in the 

schedule.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.  

MR OELLERMAN:   But  he ref lects the payments and how 

they were made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  of  course,  the bank would have the ful l  

names, is i t  not? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR OELLERMAN:   Ja,  i t  would be . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   We could get  the informat ion f rom the 

bank.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So we can know exact ly who TL is.  

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Obviously,  i f  we are going to get  

informat ion about  TL,  we may as wel l  get  informat ion about 

TLM. 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  we know that  we have got  that .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  obviously,  i f  Mr van der Walt  has said 

TLM referred to Lucky Montana,  that  makes sense.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  we may as wel l  get  everything f rom the 

bank.  

MR OELLERMAN:   I t  is on the way,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   May. . .  may I  just  make this  point ,  

Chairperson? 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m? 

ADV SONI SC:   And i t  is contained in the issue you have 
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ra ised that  we see a wi thdrawal  f rom here and i t  is  said to be 

a payment to Mr Montana but  we do not  know into which 

account i t  was made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m. H’m. H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now i t  may have gone to Mr Montana’s 

account but  i t  may have gone to somebody else’s account.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m. H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then i t  just  becomes that  much more 

clear.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   And Ms Solomon has indicated that  we 

would need to put  al l  those pieces of  the puzzle together.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Exact ly.   Yes,  exact ly.   Ja,  okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then f inal ly oh sorry,  not  f inal ly.   On the 5 t h  

of  February 2015 now, there is a wi thdrawal of  R300 000,00 

f rom that  account.   Is that  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct .   And the reference here 

again,  i t  is TLM.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   So on the face of  i t  i f  before 20 

15 January 2015, whenever there is  a wi thdrawal in favour of  

TLM, of  Mr Montana,  they have used TLM and af ter the date, 

they have used TLM again but  on the 15t h of  January,  they 

have TL.   One would think that  i t  might  not  be the same 

person.  
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ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  is important .   Normal ly,  you would 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   No . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .you wi l l  be consistent .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So but . . .  you are looking into i t  and 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is under way,  Chai r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.   Okay,  thank you.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   And now f inal ly in regard to the Parkwood 

property.   There is a  wi thdrawal  on the 

20t h  of  February 2015, of  R2 mi l l ion.  Is that  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   And . . . [ intervenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:   The reference there ref lects Erf  359,  

Parkwood which is the di rect  reference to the property.  

ADV SONI SC:   Chairperson,  I  wi l l  just  remind you because 

somet imes one needs to keep this  in mind.   You wi l l  recal l  

th is is an ent ry I  have raised wi th  Mr Loubser because Mr 20 

van der Walt  had said,  “ th is was a R 1,3 mi l l ion. . .  oh,  oh,  

sorry,  not  th is,  but  on that  same date,  al legedly,  a 

R1,3 mi l l ion loan had been g iven to Mr Montana.   I  am just  

t ry ing,  in a sense,  to present  as much of  the picture as 

possible wi thout  creat ing too much confusion.    
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 But  that  is the d i ff icul ty which,  in  a sense,  you have 

al luded to Chai rperson,  that  at  the end of  the day,  you 

cannot take this at  face value.    

 You have got  to connect  i t  wi th what Mr van der Walt  has 

said and you have got  to connect  i t  wi th the end-user ’s bank 

account.  

 Now, these are the payments that  were made in respect  

of  the Parkwood property.   Is that  correct? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .   Or at  th is stage,  that  is how we 

understand to be.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now, of  course. . .  and you are qui te r ight  Mr 

Oel lerman that . . .  that  is the. . .  what Mr van der Walt  has said 

what the bank statements port ray and so on.    

 Now, af ter the Parkwood agreement was concluded for 

R6.8 mi l l ion,  there was an addendum to that  agreement.   

Could you very br ief ly te l l  the Chairperson about that? 

MR OELLERMAN:   Yes,  sure.   So there were three. . .  ja,  the 

addendum was concluded between Precise Trade,  Mr van der  20 

Walt  and Mr Montana which,  as I  have a l luded to a l i t t le bi t  

ear l ier,  requi red of  Mr Montana to make a number of  

improvements at  his own costs to the property.    

 And that  had to be done over a per iod under. . .  before 

the property was registered.   Mr Montana then,  i t  appears,  
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undertook to  cont inue wi th having those improvements done 

over the per iod.    

 What essent ia l ly  happened is that  correspondence 

between Mr Montana and Mr Loubser shows that  rather than 

Mr Montana paying for i t ,  he would send cont ractors invoices 

to Mr Loubser. . .  

ADV SONI SC:   No.  

MR OELLERMAN:   Sorry,  to Mr van der Walt  and request  

that  he make payment.   In fact ,  there is reference to one 

part icular . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink you are referr ing to Mr Loubser two 

t imes when probably you meant Mr van der Walt .  

MR OELLERMAN:   Mister. . .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  for the record.   You ment ioned on 

each occasion to Mr van der Walt .  

MR OELLERMAN:   Correct .   So Mr Montana was 

corresponding to Mr van der Walt  and there is documents 

and correspondence which shows that  rather than him paying 

for the improvements for the ki tchen and etcetera,  there 

were a number of  improvements that  were l isted in the 20 

documentat ion.    

 Mr Montana submit ted the invoices to Mr van der  Walt  

and requested that  he make payment.   And as I  ind icated in 

one of  the correspondence, he actual ly says he is under 

pressure to pay the contractor.   P lease,  can you pay as soon 
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as possible?  So i t  would . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI  SC:    Now these a re  the  payments  tha t  were  

made in  respect  o f  the  Parkwood proper ty,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .   A t  th is  s tage tha t  i s  how we  

unders tand i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   No,  o f  course ,  and you a re  qu i te  

r igh t ,  Mr  Oe l le rman,  tha t  tha t  i s  the  –  what  Mr  van der  Wal t  

has sa id  what  the  bank s ta tements  por t ray  and so  on .  

 Now a f te r  the  Parkwood agreement  was conc luded 

fo r  R6,8  m i l l ion  there  was an addendum to  tha t  agreement ,  10 

cou ld  you very  br ie f l y  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson about  i t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Sure .   So w i th  the  –  an  addendum was 

conc luded between Prec ise  Trade ,  Mr  van der  Wal t  and Mr  

Montana wh ich ,  as  I  a l luded to  a  l i t t le  b i t  ear l ie r,  requ i red  

o f  Mr  Montana to  make a  number  o f  improvements  a t  h is  

own cost  to  the  proper ty  and tha t  had to  be  done  over  a  

per iod  be fore  the  proper ty  was reg is te red.  

 Mr  Montana then  i t  appears  under took to  cont inue  

w i th  hav ing  those improvements  done over  the  per iod .   

What  essent ia l l y  happened is  tha t  cor respondence between  20 

Mr  Montana and  Mr  Loubser  shows tha t  ra ther  than Mr  

Montana pay ing  fo r  i t ,  he  wou ld  send cont rac tors ’ invo ices  

to  Mr  Loubser  –  sor ry,  to  Mr  van der  Wal t  and request  tha t  

he  make payment .   In  fac t ,  there  is  re fe rence  to  one 

par t i cu la r  …[ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you re fer red  to  Mr  Loubser  two 

t imes when probab ly  you meant  Mr  van der  Wal t .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Mr  van de r  Wa l t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  fo r  the  record  you meant  –  on  each  

occas ion  you meant  Mr  van de r  Wal t .  

MR OELLERMA N:    Cor rec t ,  so  Mr  Montana was 

cor respond ing  w i th  Mr  van der  Wal t  and the re  is  documents  

and cor respondence wh ich  show tha t  ra ther  than h im 

pay ing  fo r  the  improvements .   For  the  k i t chen,  e tce tera ,  

there  were  a  number  o f  improvements  tha t  were  l i s ted  in  10 

the  documenta t ion .    

 Mr  Montana submi t ted  the  invo i ces to  Mr  van de r  

Wal t  and requested tha t  he  make payment  and as  I  

ind ica ted  in  one o f  these cor respondence,  he  ac tua l l y  says 

he  is  under  p ressure  to  pay the  cont rac tors ,  p lease can  

you pay as  soon as  poss ib le?  

 So i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  the  addendum i t se l f ,  ra ther  

than Mr  Montana pay ing ,  he  submi t ted  those invo ices to  Mr  

van der  Wal t  to  pay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Oe l le rman,  may I  jus t  ask  in  regard  to  20 

the  improvements?   When you look a t  the  b i l l s  tha t  Mr  

Montana sent  to  Mr  van der  Wal t ,  what  i s  the  appropr ia te  

amount  tha t  had to  be  pa id  in  respect  o f  those  

improvements?  

MR OELLERMA N:    So  the  amounts  add up qu i te  
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s ign i f i can t ly  to  over  a  m i l l ion ,  so  the  one invo ice  was 

R525 000 and then there  is  a  number  o f  add i t iona l  invo i ces 

fo r  var ious improvements  tha t  were  made th roughout .   

There  is  even invo ices fo r  cer ta in  i tems f rom a  par t i cu la r  

cha in  s to re  fo r  ins ta l la t ion  o f  cer ta in  equ ipment  fo r  about  

40  000 wh ich  Mr  Montana a lso  submi t ted  those as  proof  

tha t  he  pa id  them.   He wanted Mr  Loubser  to  re imburse  fo r  

tha t .   Sor ry,  aga in ,  Mr  van der  Wal t  and not  Mr  Loubser.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now when one looks a t  the  Parkwood sa le  

as  a  who le  –  and I  am jus t  ask ing  you as  a  genera l  10 

impress ion .   What  does i t  suggest?   You have a  sa le  fo r  

R6,8  m i l l ion  and  then there  are  these improvements  tha t  

ought  to  be  made  and tha t  i s  reco rded as  an  addendum.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    For  Mr  Montana ’s  account  bu t  Mr  van der  

Wal t  pays.   Wha t  i s  the  p ic tu re  tha t  emerges?  I  am not  

ask ing  fo r  a  conc lus ion .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  how shou ld  one in te rpre t  tha t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Wel l ,  I  mean,  i f  tha t  i s  indeed the  case 20 

tha t  Mr  Montana  so ld  a  proper ty  fo r  a  s ign i f i can t  amount  

above what  wou ld  be  market  va lue  a t  the  t ime and then  

desp i te  these improvements  be ing  requ i red  o f  h im,  to  

increase the  va lue  o f  the  proper ty,  one cou ld  say,  he  does 

not  foo t  the  b i l l  fo r  tha t .   Wel l ,  then he has benef i t ted 
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s ign i f i can t ly  f rom th is  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  and i t  wou ld  be  

–  i t  wou ld  appear  to  be  ou t  o f  the  ord inary  fo r  a  t ransact ion  

o f  th is  k ind .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now jus t  fo r  the  reassurance  o f  the  

Cha i rperson and  whoever  i s  in te res ted  in  what  you have  

sa id ,  you have made a  number  o f  comments ,  th is  i s  what  

the  cont rac t  p rov ides;  th is  i s  conta ined in  commun ica t ions 

and  so  on .   A re  each o f  those mat te rs  conta ined in  

annexures to  OR1.  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes ,  Cha i r.    10 

ADV SONI  SC:    So  i f  one looks a t  what  you have  sa id  in  

your  summary o f  the  Parkwood p roper ty  and one tu rns  to  

OR1 you wou ld  f ind  cer ta in l y  documentary  back ing  fo r  a l l  

the  po in t s  you have made.  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  can we then tu rn  to  the  Waterk loo f  

p roper ty?   Now you were  no t  here  yeste rday,  Mr  

Oe l le rman,  bu t  Ms Karen de Beer  gave some v iv id  

ev idence and qu i te  unusua l  ev idence and i f  I  cou ld  jus t  

summar ise  i t ,  Cha i rperson,  jus t  so  tha t  we have con tex t .    20 

 She says we l l ,  Mr  Montana l i ved  f i ve  houses f rom 

her ,  he  came and he made an o f fe r  and tha t  fe l l  th rough  

and so  on .   We do not  need to  go  in to  the  de ta i l s  bu t  fo r  

me what  was s ign i f i can t ,  i s  he  eventua l l y  sa id  – she  sa id  to  

h im,  look ,  I  want  to  pa in t  the  ins ide ,  I  want  to  leave the  
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house in  a  good cond i t ion  fo r  you  and he says no ,  no ,  no ,  

do  no t  wor ry ,  do  no t  go  th rough tha t  expense.   I  am jus t  

p resent ing  her  ev idence.   And she found i t  qu i te  unusua l   

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t ,  in  any case,  the  sa le  went  th rough  

not  in  the  name o f  Mr  Montana –  so r ry ,  t ransfer  was not  

e f fec ted  in  the  name o f  Mr  Montana but  in  the  name o f  

Prec i se  Trade.    

Now you have invest iga ted  the  var ious s tages in  

th is ,  cou ld  you summar ise  ve ry  qu ick ly  fo r  the  Cha i rperson  10 

the  d i f fe ren t  s tages in  the  comple t ion  o f  the  contac t .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Because –  and I  ask  in  th i s  contex t ,  Ms de 

Beer  says she d id  no t  engage in  the  de ta i l ,  she  le f t  tha t  to  

her  lawyers .  

MR OELLERMAN:    R igh t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  i f  we cou ld  jus t  f i l l  i n  tha t .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Sure .   But  perhaps then a lso  fo r  

comple teness sake,  Cha i r ,  I  can  say tha t  what  we found in  

th is  Waterk loo f  p roper ty  i s  a lso  a  cons is ten t  theme wh ich  20 

appears  th roughout  the  o ther  two proper t ies ,  the  Sandhurs t  

p roper ty  and the  Hur l ingham p roper ty .   

 So i t  appears  tha t  Mr  Montana in i t ia tes  the  

purchase,  he  goes and v iews the  proper t ies  and a l l  th ree  

proper t ies ,  i t  t ransp i red  to  be  the  same.   So he wou ld  go  
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and v iew the  proper t y ,  meet  w i th  the  es ta te  agent ,  and i f  

he  l i ked  a  proper ty  then he wou ld  say he  is  in te res ted  in  

the  proper ty  and s ign  an  o f fe r  to  purchase.  

 Shor t l y  thereaf te r  Mr  Montana wou ld  request  tha t  

the  o f fe r  to  purchase be changed  to tha t  o f  P rec ise  Trade 

or  in  another  ins tance,  the  Mino r  T rus t .   A  d i f fe ren t  par t y .  

 Both  in  the  Wate rk loo f  and  the  Sandhurs t  

p roper t ies ,  tha t  is  exact ly  what  t ransp i red ,  i t  went  th rough  

a  ser ies  o f  o f fe rs  to  purchase and i t  was agreed tha t  the  

proper ty  wou ld  be  reg i s te red in  Prec i se  Trade ’s  amount .  10 

 In  the  Hur l ingham proper ty  he  a t tempted to  have i t  

reg i s te red in  the  m inor  Trus t  bu t  the  owner  o f  the  proper ty  

pushed back and  res i s ted  and eventua l l y  the  proper ty  was  

in  h is  own name but  the  s teps tha t  p receded the  

reg i s t ra t ion  are  cons is ten t  in  tha t  Mr  Montana is  a t  the 

fo re f ron t  cent ra l  to  the  proper ty  acqu is i t ion ,  ident i f ies  the  

proper ty ,  v iews the  proper ty ,  goes  th rough the  process and  

then i t  appears  once the  proper ty  no  longer  h im to  be  the  

purchaser  bu t  someone e l se  to  be  the  purchaser  o r  Prec ise  

Trade to  be  the  u l t imate  purchaser .  20 

 So those a re  essent ia l l y  what  had  happened in  the  

Wate rk loo f  p roper ty  bu t  as  I  ind ica ted  i t  i s  a  cons is ten t  

theme across the  o ther  th ree  proper t ies .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:    A l though the  Hur l ingham proper ty  was 



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 52 of 224 
 

unsuccessfu l  and  the  proper ty  was  reg is te red in  h is  name.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   Now in  the  Waterk loo f  p roper ty  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  to  keep t rack  o f  the  t imef rames.   

May 2014 Mr  Montana se l l s  h i s  p roper ty  to  Prec ise  Trade 

fo r  about  doub le  the  va lue  o f  the  proper ty .   June a  major  

cont rac t  i s  conc luded between PRASA and S iyangena and  

S iyangena is  represented by  Mr  van der  Wal t ,  as  an  10 

a t to rney,  i s  tha t  r igh t  o r  no t  a t  tha t  s tage? 

MR OELLERMAN:    Mr  van der  Wal t  de f in i te ly  was an  

a t to rney wh ich  had represented  S iyangena in  t he  past  

because I  unders tand over  a  per iod  o f  about  e igh t  years .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Because he had …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Then i t  seems about  

August /September  anothe r  p roper t y ,  namely  the  Waterk loo f  

p roper ty ,  Mr  Montana gets  invo l ved .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Gets  in te res ted  in  buy ing  the  proper ty  

wh ich  la te r  u l t ima te ly  ge ts  bought  by  Prec i se  Trade.  

MR OELLERMAN:    P rec ise  Trade,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  he  seems to  –  he  ident i f ied  the  

proper ty  and sought  to  have i t  –  he  wanted to  buy i t  and  
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then la te r  on  was i t  the  prev ious t rus t  and then u l t imate ly  

Prec i se  Trade.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  jus t  wan t  to  g ive  tha t  t imef rame.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  and I  th ink  you ta lked about  an  

addendum invo lv ing  S iyangena around September,  

October?  

ADV SONI  SC:    On the  30  September,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On 30 September.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  th is  p roper ty  a  new ent i t y  i s  

in t roduced namely  the  Minor  Proper t y  Trus t .   Have you  

invest iga ted  what  tha t  i s?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  tha t  i s  a  t rus t  where  Mr  Montana ’s  

ch i ld ren  a re  bene f ic ia r ies .  

ADV SONI  SC:    By  the  benef ic ia r i es?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And who is  the  t rus tee?  20 

MR OELLERMAN:    I t  i s  Mr  Johan Smi th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who are  the  o ther  t rus tees,  do  you know 

or  no t  rea l l y?  

MR OELLERMAN:    I  be l ieve  he  is  the  on ly  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The on ly  one?  Oh,  I  d id  no t  know you 
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cou ld  be  one t rus tee .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  no ,  there  is  a  second t rus tee ,  

Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  conta ined in  the  annexures bu t  there  is  a  

second t rus tee .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  Mr  Smi th  p layed the  key ro le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  is  the  one who p lays  the  –  ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    In  a l l  o f  these… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  jus t  to  qua l i f y  what  I  am say ing  is  10 

tha t  he  rep resented the  Minor  Trus t  in  h is  t ransact ions.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now jus t  aga in  where  these –  was th i s  

repor t  served to  t he  best  o f  your  knowledge on Mr  Smi th  to  

say look,  your  name is  go ing  to  come up  a t  the 

Commiss ion?  

MR OELLERMAN:    I  be l ieve  i t  was,  yes ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And to  your  best  o f  your  knowledge there  

has been no response f rom h im? 

MR OELLERMAN:    Not  tha t  I  am aware  o f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And ord inar i l y  you wou ld  have been  20 

in fo rmed i f  the  Commiss ion  d id  a  rece ive  a  response f rom 

h im?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now th is  p roper t y  was so ld  fo r  R11  mi l l ion 
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and there  was a  depos i t ,  so  –  sor ry,  Ms de Beer  sa id  she  

became -  Mr  Mon tana had made a  proposa l  to  her  about  18  

months  ear l ie r  be fore  th i s  had happened.   She wanted to  

have noth ing  to  do  w i th  h im un less  a  depos i t  was pa id .   

She ins i s ted  on  a  R3,5  m i l l ion  non- re fundab le  depos i t .   

 Now a t  parag raph 43 o f  your  repor t  you say tha t  

there  was tha t  depos i t  tha t  was pa id  –  i t  i s  paragraph 43 

and 44.   And you say i t  was pa id  on  the  23  September  

2014.   Can I  ask  tha t  we look  a t  the  bank s ta tement ,  

Cha i rperson,  and  aga in ,  jus t  fo r  ident i f i ca t ion  sake,  th is  i s  10 

EXHIBIT SS16 and i t  i s  on  page 190,  Mr  Oe l le rman.    

 You w i l l  see  on the  23  September  2014 there  is  a  

depos i t  made in to  Prec ise  Trade ’s  account .   Do you see 

tha t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And there  is  a  handwr i t ten  ind ica t ion  

where  tha t  money come f rom,  what  does tha t  

handwr i t ten…? 

MR OELLERMAN:    I t  says  TMM loan.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  we know was Mr  van der  Wal t  20 

te l l ing  h is  pa r tners .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  was the  source  o f  tha t  money.  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    On the  23 r d  there  is  a  w i thdrawal  and what  
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i s  the  amount  o f  tha t  w i thdrawal?  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  fo r  R3.5  m i l l ion .  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  same amount  tha t  was 

depos i ted  on  tha t  very  day.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  i t  cor responds w i th  the  amount ,  

w i th  the  depos i t  and the  re fe rence reads:  

“Mino r  Proper ty  Trus t  loan. ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  was when Mr  Smi th  was invo lved  

in  th is .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    And then there  was a  fu r ther  payment  o f  

R7,5  m i l l ion  tha t  was due and as  se t  ou t  in  Mr  van der  

Wal t ’s  exp lanat ion  to  h is  par tners  tha t  was pa id .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t ,  i t  was pa id  d i rec t l y  to  the  

a t to rneys by  TMM,  as  he  exp la ined  i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  he sa id  t o  the  a t to rneys,  to  the 

conveyancer  -  to  Karen de Beer ’s  conveyancers?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then the re  is  a  fu r ther  –  oh ,  sor ry ,  

Cha i r?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  the  tea  break.  

ADV SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson.   Sor ry ,  I  ge t  

car r ied  away.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  no t  keep your  eye on the  t ime.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  take  the  tea  break and we 

w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  past  e leven.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Son i?   Do not  fo rge t  you r  m ic .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Oe l le rman,  may I  ask  in  regard  to  the  

Waterk loo f  p roper ty,  when you look a t  the  documents  or  

the  o f f i c ia l  documents  i t  shows an o f fe r  by  Mr  Smi th  then i t  

shows a  t ransfe r  to  Prec i se  Trade,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  why shou ld  we say tha t  Mr  Montana  

was invo lved,  you dea l  w i th  in  paragraphs 52 onwards o f  

your  repor t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   I  am ta lk ing  about  now the  

Waterk loo f  p roper ty.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And Ms de Beer  dea l t  w i th  i t  qu i te  

ex tens i ve l y  yesterday but  cou ld  you summar i se  h i s  

invo l vement  as  se t  ou t  in  you r  repor t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.   So,  I  mean,  as  I  ind ica ted  ear l ie r,  

he  was –  he  is  qu i te  cent ra l  to  the  t ransact ion  tha t  he  20 

in i t ia ted  the  purchase o f  the  proper ty.   Th roughout  the  

t ransact ion  he  seems to  have remained in  contac t  w i th  the 

se l le r.   He wa lked th rough the  proper ty,  she took h im  

th rough the  proper ty,  there  i s  cor respondence where  Ms de 

Beer  –  and I  th ink  she has g i ven ev idence to  tha t  e f fec t  
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where  she even  in fo rmed her  ne ighbours  tha t  the  new 

owner  o f  the  proper ty  i s  go ing  to  be  Lucky Montana.    

She was qu i te  conv inced tha t ,  you know,  desp i te  

the  fac t  tha t  the  proper ty  was go ing  to  be  reg is te red in  a  

d i f fe ren t  en t i t y ’s  name tha t  he  was  s t i l l  the  pe rson tha t  was 

go ing  to  be  the  person who takes over  the  proper ty  f rom 

her  and in  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  there  i s  regu lar  contac t  w i th  

he r,  the  keys,  e tce te ra ,  tha t  were  handed over,  i t  appears  

tha t  he  remained th roughout  the  process to  be  invo l ved.    

 I f  i t  was pure ly  a  quest ion  o f  I  am scout ing  fo r  10 

proper ty  fo r  someone e lse ,  one wou ld  no t  expect  to  see Mr  

Montana remain ing  in  the  p ic tu re  and be ing  constant ly  

inc luded in  communica t ions,  be ing  constant ly  in  contac t  

w i th  the  se l le r  o f  the  proper ty,  e tce tera ,  i t  wou ld  then jus t  

be  a  pure l y  commerc ia l  t ransact ion  be tween the  en t i t y  and  

the  purchaser  and the i r  lawyers ,  e tce tera ,  e tce tera .   But  Mr  

Montana c lea r ly  remained in  the  p ic tu re  th roughout  the  

process.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now what  i s  no t  conta ined in  your  repor t  

and i t  i s  no t  –  i t  i s  jus t  an  observa t ion ,  i s  a  po in t  made by  20 

Ms de Beer  yeste rday tha t  she o f fe red  to  pa in t ,  he  dec l ined  

the  o f fe r  and then he made –  o r  was in tend ing  to  make 

major  improvements  and you s t i l l  see  sca f fo ld ing  –  tha t  i s  

her  ev idence,  you see the  sca f fo ld ing  the re .   What  do  you 

make o f  a l l  o f  –  tha t  i s  obv ious ly  no t  added in to  your  
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repor t .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  what  do  you make o f  tha t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Wel l ,  I  have ac tua l l y  v i s i ted  the  

address and I  can conf i rm tha t .   I  mean,  the  proper ty  

appears  to  be  a lmost  abandoned a t  the  moment ,  i t  looks  

l i ke  a  const ruc t ion  s i te  and there  is  sca f fo ld ing  there ,  i t  i s  

c lea r ly  under  –  was under  const ruc t ion  bu t  i t  seems to  

have jus t  been abandoned and no fu r ther  work  has been  

done to  the  proper ty  so  under  the  c i rcumstances i t  appears  10 

to  be  a  neg lec ted  p iece o f  p roper ty.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And the  amount  pa id  fo r  the  proper ty  was  

R13.9  m i l l ion?  

MR OELLERMAN:    R13 mi l l ion ,  yes .   So w i th  an  

investment  l i ke  t ha t  one wou ld  expect  to  –  i f  you  were  

go ing  to  do  improvements ,  you  want  to  p ro tec t  you r  

investment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  rea l l y  qu i te  s t range tha t  

anybody can buy  proper ty  fo r  R14  mi l l ion ,  R18 mi l l ion  and 

s tar ts  mak ing  some changes to  the  proper t y  o r  20 

improvements  and then jus t  abandon i t  l i ke  tha t  and Ms de 

Beer  sa id  tha t  has been the  case fo r  s ix  years .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  as  I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    She sa id  she has regu lar l y  d r i ven past  

and looked a t  the  house because  she l i ked  the  house and  
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she  fee ls  so  bad  to  see i t  l i ke  tha t  now.   For  s ix  years  i t  

does not  seem to  have been occup ied .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  may have  mis led  

everybody,  the  amount  i s  R11 mi l l ion ,  no t  R13 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  Sandhurs t  p roper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  there  is  another  one –  bu t  there  i s  

another  p roper t y  fo r  13  m i l l ion ,  th is  one was 11,  o r  10 ,  5?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Or ig ina l l y  bu t  i t  was eventua l l y  so ld  fo r  

11 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  11  m i l l ion ,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    You might  remember  she sa id  she was  

w i l l i ng  to  accept  10 ,5  jus t  to  ge t  r id  o f  the  proper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   Oh,  I  thought  she u l t imate ly  –  

i t  was u l t imate ly  so ld  fo r  10 .5  because she made – she was  

prepared to  make  tha t  d iscount .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  the  amount  was 11 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was 11 mi l l ion ,  ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Then le t  us  go ,  Mr  Oe l le rman  to  the  

Sandhurs t  p roper ty.   Now in  re la t ion  to  th is  p roper ty  who  20 

were  the  key ro le  p layers  aga in?   Who sourced the  

proper ty,  whom was i t  t ransfer red  to?  

MR OELLERMAN:    So aga in ,  Mr  Montana is  the  person 

who sourced the  proper ty.   He  ident i f ied  the  proper ty,  

ind ica ted  tha t  he  wou ld  want  to  buy the  proper ty.   But  th is  
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p roper ty,  aga in ,  th rough a  s im i la r  p rocess wh ich  I  ou t l ined 

ear l ie r,  ra the r  than Mr  Montana be ing  the  u l t imate  person  

to  whom i t  was  t ransfer red ,  i t  was aga in  t ransfer red  to  

Prec i se  Trade.   The in te rac t ions –  the  se l le r  i s  a  Mr  Koh le r,  

the  in te rac t ions w i th  the  es ta te  agent  and Mr  Montana sor t  

o f  ra ther  than the  proper ty  go ing  th rough the  normal  

course  o f  events  one wou ld  expect  be  t ransfer red  to ,  the 

or ig ina l  person wou ld  pu t  in  the  o f fe r,  he  requested  tha t  i t  

be  u l t imate l y  t ransfer red  to  the  en t i t y  Prec ise  Trade wh ich  

is  how the  t ransact ion  evo lved f rom then.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    And to  your  a f f idav i t  –  I  mean,  to  your  

repor t ,  and tha t  i s  OR3,  you annex a  number  o f  emai ls  

wh ich  are  communica t ions be tween Mr  Montana and the  

se l le r,  a  Mr  Koh le r,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t .   So aga in ,  as  I  sa id  

ear l ie r,  ra the r  than h im leav ing  the  scene a f te r  the  request  

has been made to  t ransfe r  the  proper ty  to  Prec i se  Trade,  

he  is  c lear ly  in  communica t ion  w i th  the  se l le r  on  a  regu lar  

bas is ,  so  he  remains  ac t ive ly  invo l ved,  i t  wou ld  appear,  

f rom the  documenta t ion  tha t  has been rev iewed.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    And when they wanted to  change the  

e lec t r i c i t y  b i l l ,  to  whom do they wr i te ,  the  Koh ler?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  they wro te  to  Mr  Montana and had  

se t  ou t  there  what  the  s ign i f i cance wou ld  be  fo r  the  

e lec t r i c i t y,  i t  wou ld  be  cu t  o f f  and  how Mr  Montana  –  they 
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d i rec ted  i t  to  Mr  Montana as  i f  he  was go ing  to  be  tak ing  

over  the  proper ty.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And there  is  one payment  fo r  the  fees tha t  

i s  in  i ssue.   When the  fees fo r  the  t ransfer  fa l l  due to  

whom does Mr  Koh ler  r igh t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Aga in  he  wro te  to  Mr  Montana.    

ADV SONI  SC:    And what  happened a f te r  he  wro te  to  h im? 

MR OELLERMAN:    Wel l ,  Mr  Mon tana apo log ised fo r  the  

de lay  and sa id  he  was not  aware  o f  any prob lems but  he 

sa id  he  wou ld  a t tend to  i t  and shor t l y,  the  next  day,  I  10 

be l ieve ,  payments  were  made.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Can I  jus t  ask  you to  tu rn  to  bund le  G 

aga in ,  EXHIBIT SS16,  page 191.   I f  I  can  ask  you to  look 

a t  the  en t ry  r i gh t  towards the  bo t tom on the  25 th  February  

2015.   Do you see tha t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  i s  a  depos i t  in to  the  Prec i se  

Trade account .   What  i s  the  amount  o f  tha t  depos i t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    The depos i t  i s  R1 105 084.92,  Cha i r .  

And next  to  i t  is  inscr ip t ion  TMM loan wh ich  is  in  the  20 

handwr i t ing  o f  Mr  van der  Wal t ,  as  po in ted  by  Mr  Loubser .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And what  happens on la te r  tha t  day?  

MR OELLERMAN:    On the  same day the  exact  amount  o f  

R1 105 084.92 is  made as  a  payment  to  the  t ransfer r i ng  

a t to rneys Borchard t  &Hansen fo r  the  proper ty .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry .   On the  25  February  2015,  

there  i s  a  depos i t  o f  R1 105 084.92.  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In to  Prec ise  Trade ’s  account  and then 

on the  same day  exact ly  the  same amount  i s  w i thdrawn or  

i s  –  i s  tha t  –  i t  says  w i thdrawal?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  i t  i s  w i thdrawn,  i t  i s  a  payment  

tha t  i s  made.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  do  we know –  because there  is  

no  re fe rence to  TLM there ,  do  we know…? 10 

MR OELLERMAN:    Wel l ,  the  payment  i s  a  payment  made  

out  o f  the  accoun t  and the  re ference is  Borchard t  Hansen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Which  were  the  conveyancers  or  the  

t ransfer r ing  a t to rneys tha t  were  hand l ing  the  sa le  o f  the  

proper ty .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  those  were  the  t ransfe r r ing  

a t to rneys or  conveyancers?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   In  regard  to  the  proper ty .  20 

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and I  guess tha t  par t  o f  what  

maybe underway  is  someth ing  tha t  w i l l  show tha t  i t  went  

in to  the i r  account .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t ,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  and what  they d id  w i th  i t .   Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Oe l le rman,  i t  has  jus t  occur red  to  me I  

may have mis led  you.   That  i s  the  payment  in  respect  o f  

the  Wate rk loo f  t ransfer .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    The one in  respect  o f  the  Sandhurs t  

t ransfer  i s  the  one on the  4  February  2015 and  I  must  

apo log i se  fo r  tha t ,  i t  i s  my fau l t ,  I  d rew your  a t ten t ion  to  

the  wrong one.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Now th is  quest ion  a rose out  o f  my 

quest ion ,  when the  payment  fo r  the  t ransfer  fees were  due,  

the  se l le r  wro te  to  Mr  Montana,  you remember?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then you sa id  Mr  Montana apo log ised 

and is  th is  the  t ransfer  tha t  took p lace on the  fo l low ing day  

on  the  4  February  because Mr  Montana wro te  to  Mr  Koh ler  

on  the  3  February  to  say I  am so r ry ,  I  w i l l  sor t  i t  ou t  by  

tomorrow.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.   So i f  you  look a t  paragraph 72 o f  20 

my repor t  there ,  I  s ta te  there  tha t  P rec i se  Trade pa id  the  

t ransfer  cos ts  o f  the  exact  amount  wh ich  is  re f lec ted ,  

R1 105 537.30 on  tha t  day.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And the  t ransfer r ing  a t to rneys  or  the  

conveyancers  were  Snyman A t to rneys,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t  and there  is  a  re ference  i t  says  

Empi re  P lace,  wh ich  is  the  proper t y .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  i t  was my mis lead ing  the  

w i tness and I  apo log ise  fo r  tha t .   There  were  jus t  two and I  

jus t  m ixed them up but  I  jus t  want  to  p lace  i t  on  reco rd  tha t  

the  one dea ls  w i th  the  Waterk loo f  t ransfer  bu t  the  one tha t  

Mr  Oe l le rman is  now ta lk ing  abou t  on  the  4  February  2015 

is  the  one re la ted  to  the  Sandhurs t  p roper t y .   That  i s  

cor rec t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Now is  there  any p ic tu re  tha t  emerges  

espec ia l l y  any spec ia l  fea ture  tha t  emerges in  respect  o f  

the  Sandhurs t  p roper ty  t ransact ion?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Wel l ,  when you say spec ia l  fea ture ,  in  

my –  f rom the  documenta t ion  tha t  I  have seen and the  

a f f idav i t s  tha t  were  submi t ted  i t  i s  jus t  a  cons is ten t  theme 

tha t  emerges is  tha t  Mr  Montana,  as  I  have sa id  ea r l ie r ,  he  

in i t ia tes  the  proper ty  dea l .   The owners  ac tua l l y  th ink  he  i s  

the  person who wou ld  appear  tha t  i s  beh ind  the  dea l  bu t  

the  t ransfer  i s  made to  Prec ise  Trade.    20 

Mr  Montana remains  invo lved  th roughout  the  

process bu t  payment  i s  no t  made a t  a l l  by  Mr  Montana,  

payment  i s  e f fec ted  th rough Prec ise  Trade or  o the r  par ty.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Le t  us  then tu rn  to  the  Hur l ingham 

proper ty,  Mr  Oe l le rman.  
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MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now a t  paragraphs 79 to  86  you dea l  very  

br ie f l y  w i th  the  bare  fac ts  i n  re la t ion  to  the  t ransac t ions in  

wr i t ing  tha t  took p lace.   Cou ld  you br ie f l y  te l l  the 

Cha i rperson what  those re f lec t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  Cha i r,  so  the  Hur l ingham proper ty  

aga in  Mr  Montana was the  pe rson  who v iewed the  proper ty  

and made an o f fe r  fo r  13 .5  m i l l ion  fo r  the  proper ty.   The  

request  was then made subsequent  to  tha t  to  have the  

proper ty  o f fe r  to  purchase changed in to  the  name o f  the  10 

Minor  Trus t  rep resented by  Mr  Johan Smi th .    

 What  t ransp i red  a f te r  tha t  was a  sequence o f  events  

where  the  conveyanc ing  a t to rney res i s ted  tha t  and as  we l l  

as  the  owner  wh ich  u l t imate ly  resu l ted  in  Mr  Montana be ing  

the  reg is te red owner,  p roper ty  was t ransfe r red  in to  h is  

name and a l though i t  must  be  sa id ,  a l though the  proper ty  

was t ransfer red  in to  th is  name,  f rom the  documenta t ion  

and ev idence tha t  we have gathered unt i l  th is  po in t ,  does 

not  appear  tha t  he  pa id  any amount  towards the  purchase  

o f  the  house.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  respect  o f  th is  p roper t y  a t  

parag raph 84 you  say:  

“A f te r  the  depos i t  was pa id ,  and amount  o f  R11,5  

m i l l ion  was made by  a  company ca l led  

Mid townbrace (Propr ie ta ry)  L td . ”  
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MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now on the  bas is  o f  the  invest iga t ions you  

have done in  respect  o f  Mid townbrace.   Who is  the  person 

invo lved w i th  Mid townbrace?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Mid townbrace is  a  company  tha t  i s  

ac tua l l y  reg is te red in  Botswana but  aga in  f rom the  

documenta t ion  tha t  was prov ided to  us ,  we were  ab le  –  by 

Mr  Loubser,  we were  ab le  to  ident i f y  tha t  and Mr  Andre  

Wagner  was invo lved in  th is  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  and tha t  

an  ag reement  was s im i la r  to  o ther  agreements  tha t  Mr  van 10 

der  Wal t  had put  together,  a  s im i la r  agreement  was put  in to  

p lace  as  an  investment  oppor tun i ty  and the  fund ing  fo r  

Hur l ingham proper ty,  the  bu lk  o f  the  11 .5  m i l l ion  was then 

t ransfer red  to  the  Mid townbrace company in  Botswana to  

the  conveyanc ing  a t to rneys and to  e f fec t  the  f ina l  

ou ts tand ing  amount  o f  the  proper ty.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now you have t r i ed  to  ob ta in  a  s ta tement  

f rom Mr  Wagner.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And what  has happened to  tha t?  20 

MR OELLERMAN:    He has recent ly  p rov ided us  w i th  an 

a f f idav i t ,  we are  busy work ing  th rough the  a f f idav i t  and  

fo l low ing up on the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was prov ided to  us .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  does he say  anyth ing  o f  s ign i f i cance 

in  the  a f f idav i t?  
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MR OELLERMAN:    He does con f i rm tha t  the  agreement  

was put  togethe r  by  Mr  van der  Wal t ,  tha t  i t  was  in i t ia ted  

by  Mr  van der  Wal t  as  an  investment  oppor tun i ty  fo r  

p roper t ies ,  to  deve lop  proper t ies ,  and tha t  the  dea l  was  

such tha t  they wou ld  benef i t  f rom the  sa le  o f  h is  p roper t ies  

once the  p roper t i es  have been put  togethe r.  

 Aga in ,  th is  was a  proper ty  –  he  a lso  ind ica tes  tha t  

due to  zon ing  issues they were  no t  ab le  to  deve lop  the  

proper ty  has been essent ia l l y  abandoned.   I  have v is i ted  

the  proper t y  as  we l l  and i t  i s  p robab ly  in  a  worse  cond i t ion  10 

than the  Wate rk loo f  p roper ty,  i t  i s  qu i te  dere l i c t  to  be  qu i te  

honest ,  i t  i s  p roper ty  tha t  i s  comple te ly  abandoned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sure  you took p ic tu res  o f  bo th  the  

o ther  one tha t  we  ta lked about  a t  Waterk loo f?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  we l l  as  tha t  one you –  there  wou ld  be  

p ic tu res  o f  how they look l i ke  now.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Very  good,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR OELLERMA N:    Wi th  our  updated repor ts  we w i l l  20 

inc lude a l l  these in  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   I  wonder  whether  the  

invest iga t ion  tha t  you have conducted may have revea led  

whethe r  the  abandonment  o f  these p roper t ies  may have 

happened a f te r  the  med ia  became in te res ted  in  some o f  



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 69 of 224 
 

these proper t ies  or  no t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cha i r,  tha t  ce r ta in ly  has happened but  

I  cannot  say  i t  i s  a  d i rec t  consequence o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  i t  m ight  be  d i f f i cu l t  to  say  

un less  i t  i s  somebody who was watch ing  a t  the  t ime what  

was happen ing .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .    

MR OELLERMAN:    So  the  exp lanat ions be ing  g i ven are  

i ssues wh ich ,  fo r  example ,  zon ing  or  inco r rec t  p lans tha t  10 

have not  been approved,  th ings l i ke  tha t .    

Whethe r  there  is  a  concer ted  e f fo r t  to  remedy tha t ,  I  

cannot  say  I  have  seen ev idence o f  tha t ,  a t  th is  s tage.   But  

cer ta in ly,  the  two  proper t ies  in  quest ion  are  in  a  ra ther  d i re  

cond i t ion .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now the  in te rest ing  th ing  about  the 

Hur l ingham proper ty  i s ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  Mr  Wagner  has 

ins t i tu ted  summons in  the  Gauteng H igh Cour t  fo r,  as  he  

put  i t ,  to  p ro tec t  i s  r igh t s .  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  i s  he  who pa id  the  money.  

MR OELLERMA N:    Cor rec t ,  th rough Mid townbrace 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SONI  SC:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  what  he  says.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  yes ,  th rough Mid townbrace,  yes ,  



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 70 of 224 
 

tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  mat te r  has no t  been reso lved ye t .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Not  to  my knowledge,  no ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And in  h is  a f f idav i t  to  you,  does he  

ind ica te  the  na tu re  o f  the  d ispute  re la t ing  to  th is  p roper t y?  

MR OELLERMAN:    I t  i s  no t  covered in  huge deta i l  bu t  

essent ia l l y,  I  mean,  because o f  the  issues o f  the  cond i t ion  

o f  the  proper ty  now because the i r  p lans to  deve lop  cou ld  

no t  be  approved  as  a  resu l t  o f  var ious hu rd les  tha t  they 

exper ience but  essent ia l l y  he  is  now faced w i th  a  s i tua t ion  10 

where  he  needs to  p ro tec t  h is  own investment  as  a  resu l t  

o f  what  has happened.    

P roper ty,  I  th ink ,  in  my d iscuss ions  w i th  h im,  I  th ink  

he  ind ica ted  las t  tha t  the  best  o f fe r  they go t  so  fa r  was in  

the  reg ion  o f  4  m i l l ion  wh ich  is  s ign i f i can t ly  less  than h is  

investment .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now the  proper ty,  though,  i s  reg i s te red in  

Mr  Montana ’s  name,  un l ike  the  o ther  two proper t i es  tha t  

were  purchased.  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  regard  to  the  th ree  proper t ies  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  regard  to  the  hav ing  p roper ty,  was  
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Mr  van de r  Wal t  no t  invo l ved in  te rms  o f  your  

invest iga t ions?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  i t  i s  –h is  invo l vement  has been  

cons is ten t  th roughout .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Inc lud ing  on  th is  one?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  bu t  no t  Prec i se  Trade or  he  was  

invo lved …[ in tervenes]  

MR OELLERMAN:    The proper ty  wou ld  –  the  dea l  never  

go t  tha t  fa r  because o f  res i s tance rece ived f rom the  10 

conveyancers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:    O f  the  se l le r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:    They wou ld  no t  a l low Prec i se  Trade or  

the  Minor  Trus t  to  in i t ia l l y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Oh,  bu t  the  p lan  was exact ly  tha t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .   Cer ta in ly,  they a l ready went  

on  tha t  –  they embarked on tha t  rou te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR OELLERMAN:    Because the re  is  cor respondence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR OELLERMAN:    And an a f f idav i t  wh ich  we have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Where  i t  was se t  ou t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  post  to  Mr  Montana s ign ing  the  

in i t ia l  o f fe r  to  purchase i t  was fo l lowed up by  a  request  to  

have the  Mino r  Trus t  to  s ign  an  add i t iona l  o f fe r  to  purchase 

and tha t  was res is ted ,  the  ev idence …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So tha t  is  why i t  ended up be ing  

reg i s te red in  Mr  Montana ’s  name.  

MR OELLERMAN:    I t  wou ld  appear  so ,  Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So the  pa t te rn  was the  same as w i th  

regard  to  the  two o the r  p roper t ies  where  Mr  Montana  10 

ident i f ies  the  p roper t y  and makes the  in i t ia l  approach.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then la te r  on  wants  to  b r ing  in  

Prec i se  Trade.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Cor rec t .   And he is  s t i l l  i nvo l ved in  the  

proper ty,  Mr  van  der  Wal t ,  because he put  together  the  

dea l  w i th  Mid townbrace.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR OELLERMAN:    As  the  major  i nvesto r  in  the  proper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR OELLERMAN:    So  the  documents  prov ided to  us  by  Mr  

Loubser  c lea r ly  ind ica te  tha t  there  is  a  jo in t  ventu re  

agreement  be tween Mr  van de r  Wal t  who was represent ing  

Prec i se  Trade and Mid townbrace.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Jus t  in  regard  to  Mid townbrace,  do  any o f  

the  person invo lved in  the  S iyangena mat te r  fea ture  in  

Mid townbrace?  

MR OELLERMAN:    In  the  company i t se l f?   No.   I  

in te rv iewed a  Mr  Wagner  who ind ica ted  tha t  i t  was h is  

company and tha t  he  was approached by  Mr  van der  Wal t  

who had known h im fo r  many years  go ing  back to  un ivers i t y  

days,  who put  the  dea l  togethe r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  tha t  i s  Mr  Wagner ’s  account?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Now as no t  –  and I  am jus t  go ing  by  

repor ts  on  th i s ,  was not  a  company in  wh ich  Mr  Mar io  

Fer re i ra  hav ing  an  in te res t  namely  Tr ip le  Trade Invest  04  

(Propr ie ta ry)  L td .   D id  they no t  acqu i re  some o f  the  shares  

in  Mid townbrace?    I  know you may not  know but  I  am jus t  

say ing  tha t  i s  what  i s  in  the  med ia  space.  

MR OELLERMAN :    I  am aware  o f  those repor ts  bu t  as  fa r  

as  the  invest iga t i on  a t  the  moment ,  we have not  conf i rmed  

tha t  a t  tha t  moment .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  those are  mat te rs  tha t  c lear l y  ca l l  fo r  20 

fu r ther  invest iga t ion  and tha t  i s  why i t  i s  re levan t  to  the  

S iyangena d i spute ,  i f  I  can  put  i t  as  such,  Cha i rpe rson.  

 Now you have been a t  pa ins  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  you 

have the  bare  fac ts ,  the  lega l  t r iggers  invo lved but  in  your  

repor t  you r  look  a t  Mr  Montana ’s  ro le  in  each o f  these  
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t ransact ions.   Cou ld  you br ie f l y  summar ise  tha t  in  respect  

o f  each o f  the  t ransact ions?  Le t  us  s ta r t  o f f  w i th  the  

Parkwood and the  Waterk loo f  p roper ty?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  have covered most  

o f  i t  a l ready,  I  th ink  I  have ind i ca ted  –  and i t  i s  –  a  lo t  o f  i t  

was covered by  Ms de Beer  in  her  ev idence as  we l l .   I  th ink  

she went  as  fa r  as  to  say tha t  a l though there  were  o ther  

p roper t ies  invo lved,  she saw they were  jus t  a l te r  egos,  I  

th ink  were  the  words tha t  she has used in  her  a f f idav i t  and 

yesterday as  we l l  o f  Mr  Montana and tha t  he  was the  10 

cent ra l  f igure .   As  fa r  as  she was concerned,  she was –  or  

he  was her  buyer,  the  purchaser  o f  the  proper ty  and he  

remained constant  in  contac t  w i th  her  th roughout  the  

process.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sandhurs t?  

MR OELLERMAN:    Sandhurs t ,  aga in ,  Mr  Montana was the  

one who s igned the  f i rs t  o f fe r  to  purchase so  he  presented 

h imse l f  as  the  buyer  o f  the  proper ty  and aga in  as  he  then 

requested o r  requests  were  made fo r  the  proper t y  to  ra the r  

be  t ransfer red  to  –  in  the  name to  Prec ise  Trade,  there  is  20 

s t i l l  ev idence –  there  i s  s ign i f i can t  ev idence tha t  he  

remained in  contac t  w i th  the  se l le rs  o f  the  p roper ty  and  

cont inua l l y  –  was  cont inuous ly  in  the  p ic tu re  r igh t  th rough  

unt i l  the  proper t y  was t ransfer red .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And Hur l ingham? 



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 75 of 224 
 

MR OELLERMAN:    Hur l ingham is  the  las t  p roper t y  wh ich  

we have jus t  covered,  ve ry,  ve ry  s im i la r.   The on ly  th ing  

tha t  happened in  th is  p lace  is  tha t  they were  no t  –  he  was  

unab le  to  conver t  the  request  to  have the  proper ty  

t ransfer red  in to  a  d i f fe ren t  en t i t y ’s  o ther  than h imse l f ,  

be ing  the  Minor  Trus t  and th is  p roper ty  was t ransfe r red  

in to  h is  name and  remains  in  h is  name up unt i l  now.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then a t  pa ragraph 104 o f  you r  repor t  

you conc lude tha t  whatever  the  documents  –  the  o f f i c ia l  

documents  may show,  i t  was Mr  Montana who p layed a  10 

cruc ia l  ro le  in  the  purchas ing  or  the  t ransact ions re la t ing  

to  those p roper t ies .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Abso lu te ly,  i t  i s  qu i te  c lear  f rom the 

documents ,  par t i cu la r ly  emai ls ,  cor respondence and the  

a f f idav i t s  o f  peop le  tha t  have been in te rv iewed up unt i l  

now tha t  he  was ac t ive  in  the  who le  process.    

 I t  wou ld  appear  tha t  there  is  an  a t tempt  to  concea l ,  

i f  I  can  use tha t  word ,  h is  invo l vement  thereaf te r,  bu t  he  is  

qu i te  c lear ly  invo l ved in  these proper t ies ’ t ransact ions.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Then you dea l  w i th  the  next  top ic  in  your  20 

repor t ,  wh ich  i s  –  because we know Mr  Montana i s  a  key 

f igure  –  then you dea l  w i th  the  o ther  key  ro le  p laye rs ,  

cou ld  you jus t  ident i f y  them and summar ise  what  the i r  ro le  

i s ,  the  f i rs t  one be ing  Mr  van der  Wal t .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    And maybe befo re  you do tha t  p lease we 

–  you sa id  ear l ie r  on  tha t  the  th ree  proper t ies  i f  one  works  

on  the  bas i s  tha t  w i th  regard  to  the  th ree  proper t ies ,  

Waterk loo f ,  Sandhurs t  and Hur l ingham,  tha t  e f fec t i ve ly  the  

buyer  was Mr  Montana even where  in  regard  to  the  two  

Prec i se  Trade was the  en t i t y  tha t  on  paper  bought  you 

know and i f  one says in  e f fec t  Mr  –  in  rea l i t y  Mr  Montana 

was buy ing  these  proper t ies  and became the  owner  and so  

on  in  substance i t  wou ld  mean tha t  w i th in  a  per iod  o f  about  

what ,  12  months  or  thereabout  he  bought  p roper t ies  to  the  10 

va lue  o f  what  –  over  R30 000 000,  ove r  R24 000 000.  

MR OELLERMAN:    I t  i s  a round R36 000 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Over  R36 000 000.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Ja  l ook cer ta in ly  the  impress ion  tha t  

the  se l l e rs  gave is  tha t  Mr  Montana was the  owner  o f  the  

proper ty,  tha t  i s  cer ta in l y  how they  unders tood i t  to  be .   As  

I  sa id  Ms de Beer  sa id  those,  the  o ther  o rgan isa t ion ,  

P rec i se  Trade was jus t  an  a l te r  ego  o f  Mr  Montana,  she  

unders tood tha t  the  proper ty  was h is .  

 Yes,  so  what  happened post  the  sa le  o f  these  20 

proper t ies  i s  under  invest iga t ion ,  bu t  as  I  say  the  se l le rs  o f  

the  proper ty  was ce r ta in  under  the  impress ion  tha t  Mr  

Montana was the  person who was go ing  to  take  occupat ion  

or  be  the  owner  o f  the  proper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We know tha t  Waterk loo f  and 
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Hur l ingham you  d id  say tha t  they are  no t  in  good  

cond i t ions .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  Sandhurs t  what  happened to  

Sandhurs t ,  d id  he  occupy?  

MR OELLERMAN:    For  Sandhurs t ,  I  v is i ted  tha t  address 

as  we l l?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Huh?  

MR OELLERMAN:    I  v is i ted  tha t  address as  we l l ,  the  

Sandhurs t  p roper ty.   I t  does appear  tha t  i t  i s  a  p roper ty  10 

tha t  i s  occup ied ,  however  on  the  days wh ich  I  v is i ted  i t  we  

d id  no t  f ind  anyone the re ,  we le f t  them a  le t te r  request ing  

tha t  they ge t  in  contac t  w i th  us .   They have not  done so  as  

ye t ,  bu t  cer ta in l y  the  proper ty,  there ’s  a  fa i r l y  b ig  wa l l  and 

gates  so  you jus t  cannot  ge t  a  fu l l  p ic tu re  o f  the  proper ty,  

bu t  there  were  ca rs  parked there  and you cou ld  c lea r ly  see  

the  proper t y  i s  occup ied ,  the  yard  looks in  a  reasonab le  

cond i t ion  e tce tera ,  so  i t  i s  cer ta in ly  no t  in  the  dere l i c t  

cond i t ion  o f  the  o ther  two p roper t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you .    I t  w i l l  be  impor tan t  to  20 

es tab l i sh  whethe r  a f te r  the  t ransact ion  who occup ied  the  

Sandhurs t ,  ja .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And up to  when or  whether  the  same 

peop le  who occup ied  immedia te l y  a f te r  the  t ransfer  a re  
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they  s t i l l  the  same peop le  who are  s t i l l  occupy ing .  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry  Cha i rpe rson i f  I  cou ld  jus t  remind  

you,  you might  remember  Mr  Green yeste rday when he 

gave ev idence sa id  tha t  in  2017,  he  had so ld  the  Sandhurs t  

p roper ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes,  yes ,  he  so ld  i t  f rom Prec i se  

Trade to  somebody e l se .  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A lso ,  what  wou ld  be  impor tan t  i s  to  10 

es tab l i sh  who occup ied  i t  be fore  i t  was so ld  in  2017.  

MR OELLERMAN:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you.    And o f  course ,  who 

got  the  money fo r  the  2017 sa le .  

ADV SONI  SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  be  impor tan t  to  ge t  to  know 

tha t .  

ADV SONI  SC:     Indeed Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Le t ’s  dea l  then w i th  th is  i ssue about  the  

o ther  ro le  p laye rs  Mr  Oe l le rman.  

MR OELLERMAN:    So we have ident i f ied  Mr  van der  Wal t ,  

obv ious ly  to  the  Prec i se  Trade ent i t y  wh ich  he  crea ted as  –  

fo r  the  purchas ing  o f  these proper t ies  and wh ich  two  
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p roper t ies  were  t ransfer red  to .     He was a lso  the  d i rec tor  

o f  Loubser  van der  Wal t  a t  the  t ime and as  we unders tand 

i t  ac ted  as  an  a t to rney fo r  S iyangena fo r  a  per iod  o f  t ime.   

A lso  apar t  f rom Mr  –  we have  obv ious l y  ident i f ied  Mr  

Montana as  we l l  as  be ing  cen t ra l  to  these p roper ty  

purchases,  and then Mr  Mar io  Fe r re i ra  who has l inks  to  

S iyangena as  we l l  as  TMM and on Mr  van der  Wa l t ’s  own 

vers ion  to  h is  par tne rs  was invo lved in  these proper ty  

t ransact ions th rough an investment  in i t ia t i ve  and jo in t  

venture  ag reements .   The same wou ld  go  fo r  Mr  Johan 10 

Smi th  who ac ted  fo r  –  on  beha l f  o f  the  Minor  Trus t  who  

were  l inked to  these t ransact ions.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now these,  your  repor t  has been  served  

on a l l  o f  these peop le .  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And one o f  the  th ings tha t  you as  an  

invest iga to r  needed to  look  a t  i s  how do you get  th is  who le  

p ic tu re  be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  be fore  the  fu l l  p ic tu re  

emerges and one d id  no t  by  way o f  th is  repor t  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  20 

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Okay,  now you have inv i ted  a l l  o f  these  

persons to  ind i ca te  what  the i r  l i nks  a re  to  the  d i f fe ren t  

compan ies  and so  on ,  and we I  take  i t  w i l l  awa i t  the i r  

response and i f  they  don ’ t  respond then we w i l l  requ i re  
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them to  respond as  per  the  Commiss ion ’s  powers .  

MR OELLERMAN:    As  I  unders tand tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.    

Obv ious ly,  there  is  a lso  add i t iona l  invest iga t ion  tha t  has to  

p roceed w i th  these mat te rs  as  we l l ,  as  I  ind ica ted  a t  the 

ou tse t .   Th is  i s  a  s ta tus  o f  where  we are  a t  the  moment .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And those invest iga t ions inc lude what  the  

Cha i rperson sa id  ear l ie r,  namely  we need to  look  a t  who  

we know wi thdrawals  were  made purpor ted ly  in  respect  o f  

the  proper t ies ,  bu t  to  whom were  the  ac tua l  payments  

made.   I  mean I  can a lways say I  am pay ing  to  Mr  Montana,  10 

bu t  pay to  somebody e lse ,  so  those are  the  invest iga t ions  

tha t  s t i l l  need to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR OELLERMAN:    Abso lu te l y  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now you conc lude then tha t  these  mat te rs  

a re  ra ised and what  do  you expec t  the  persons whom you  

have ment ioned now,  Mr  van der  Wal t ,  Mr  Smi th ,  Mr  Mar io  

Fer re i ra ,  Mr  Wagner  and a l l  o f  them to  –  how do you  

expect  them to  respond.  

MR OELLERMAN:    The in ten t ion  is  fo r  them to  examine  

the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  be ing  compi led  here  a long w i th  20 

o ther  ind i v idua ls  who have g iven ev idence re la ted  to  these 

par t i cu la r  mat te rs  and to  p rov ide  an  exp lanat ion  on  the i r  

invo l vement  in  the  proper ty  and g ive  us  de ta i led  vers ions 

o f  the i r  account  o f  how these t ransact ions emerged.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And in  the  eventua l  ou tcome o f  th is ,  you  
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se t  i t  ou t  a t  paragraph 19.  

MR OELLERMA N:    Yes once  we have a l l  these the  

invest iga t ion  is  comple te  and  we have everyone ’s 

responses.   Th i s  w i l l  be  packaged as  a  comple te  repor t  fo r  

the  Cha i rpe rson to  eva lua te  as  par t  o f  the  ev idence tha t  

has been gathe red in  the  PRASA invest iga t ion .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  tha t  i s  the  ev idence we  wou ld  

l i ke  to  lead in  respect  o f  Mr  Oe l le rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes no  tha t  i s  f ine .    That  tab le  i s  i t  

ready?  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    We wi l l  g ive  you a  typed copy Cha i rperson 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  in  the  meant ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SONI  SC:    Jus t  fo r  your  –  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  jus t  want  to  have a  look be fore  Mr  

Oe l le rman leaves  the  w i tness s tand.   Okay no tha t ’s  f ine ,  I  

th ink  prepare  –  le t  me have a  typed one maybe tomorrow.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  i t  go  accord ing  to  da te  sequence.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  happens f i rs t  invo lv ing  who.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  happens next  invo lv ing  who so  

tha t ’s  why i t  becomes impor tan t  fo r  example  where  a  

cont rac t  i s  s igned  to  say f rom PRASA’s  s ide  who s igns i t .  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  maybe a lso  f rom the  o ther  s ide  who 

s igns i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  see here  the  no te  i s  the  8 t h  o f  

June cont rac t  i s  s igned by  Montana .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  bo th  the  30 t h  June and the  30 t h  o f  

September.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  bo th  o f  them,  so  –  and the  June  

one comes about  a  few weeks a f te r  the  Waterk loo f  10 

agreement  in  May.  

ADV SONI  SC:    The Parkwood ag reement?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Parkwood,  ja ,  Parkwood,  I  am sor ry,  and  

then August  o f  course  you have  August /September  you  

have I  th ink  tha t ’s  when you have the  Waterk loo f?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and then you have got  the  

addendum a lso  s igned by  Mr  Montana.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV SONI  SC:    4 t h  o f  September.  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  c lose  to  R800 000.  

ADV SONI  SC:    R900mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  she wro te  here  –  Ms Fanga ta  i s  no t   

used to  m i l l ions ,  she wro te  R794 634,  she d idn ’ t  even wr i te  
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R794 000 000,  she wro te  thousands.   R900mi l l ion  you  

sa id?  

ADV SONI  SC:    R800mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    R800mi l l ion  ja ,  so  i f  I  can  get  a  typed 

one tha t  rea l l y  says –  because i t  wou ld  be  handy,  you say 

th is  happens f i rs t ,  then th is  happens a f te r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th i s  happens f i rs t  and then th is  happens  

a f te r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  va lues,  the  amounts  and a l l  

depend ing  on the  occas ion .    Okay no thank you ve ry  

much.   Mr  Oe l le rman thank you fo r  coming to  g ive  

ev idence,  thank you fo r  your  invest iga t ion  and o f  course  

you may come back la te r  on  when your  invest iga t ion  is  

comple te .  

MR OELLERMAN:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  in  the  meant ime,  the  peop le  who  

have been se rved  may come fo rward  to  pu t  the i r  s ide  o f  the  

s to ry.    20 

MR OELLERMAN:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  un less  Mr  Son i  s t i l l  has  

someth ing  fo r  you,  I  am ready to  excuse you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  I  have noth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  excused thank you.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Thank you Mr  Oe l le rman.   Mr  Cha i rpe rson  

the  next  w i tness  is  Mr  Fan i  D ing iswayo.   We have been 

th rea ten ing  to  ca l l  h im fo r  qu i te  a  long t ime,  bu t  he  has  

eventua l l y  go t  h is  day in  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sure  he  says f ina l l y  my day ar r i ves .     

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ca l l  h im.   I  th ink  these f i les  we need  

to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  does not  look  l i ke ,  Cha i rperson can I  

ask  fo r  a  few minutes ,  i t  seems he may be outs ide ,  I  am 10 

sor ry,  I  thought  he  was here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay we w i l l  have a  –  we w i l l  take  ten  

m inutes ,  we w i l l  resume a t  twenty  past ,  o r  sha l l  we make i t  

ha l f  past?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Make i t  ha l f  past  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   We ad jou rn .  

REGISTRAR:    A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr  Son i .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i rperson.    Cha i rperson 

Mr  D ing iswayo is  now here ,  may he  be sworn  in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  p lease  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Mfan iphe la  Moses D ing iswayo.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  

g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  

the  t ru th ,  i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and so  he lp  me 10 

God.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So  he lp  me God.  

MFANIPHELA MOSES DINGISWAYO:   [d .s .s . ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr  Son i?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  Cha i rpe rson in  l igh t  o f  the  concerns  

you ra ised yesterday in  regard  to  the  number ing ,  the  

number ing  in  th is  bund le ,  wh ich  is  Bund le  F Cha i rpe rson 

has been changed so  you w i l l  see  Cha i rperson on the  r igh t  

hand s ide  is  each  a f f idav i t  s ta r ts  w i th  number  one,  we have 

fo r  the  purposes o f  today put  the  numbers  sequent ia l l y  as  20 

you have requ i red  and we w i l l  a t tend to  i t  so  tha t  i t  looks  

neater  and perhaps even in  red  bu t  fo r  today cou ld  we look 

a t  the  le f t  hand s ide ,  those a re  the  numbers  so  they are  

sequent ia l  then,  and we don ’ t  have the  d i f f i cu l t y  tha t  we 

had yesterday Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You when you say the  numbers  on  the 

le f t  hand s ide  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SONI  SC:    On the  top  le f t  hand s ide  where  I  have  

them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  the  one tha t  says PRASA Bund le  

F154?  

ADV SONI  SC:    That ’s  r igh t  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  example  here  –  okay so  –  okay no 

tha t ’s  f ine  so  tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  okay,  a l r igh t ,  fo r  purposes o f  

th is  bund le  any re ference to  pages w i l l  be  to  the  number  –  10 

w i l l  be  no t  to  the  red  numbers ,  i t  w i l l  be  to  the  b lack  

numbers  wh ich  appear  on  the  le f t  hand s ide  o f  each  page.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Indeed,  and  wh ich  are  handwr i t ten  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we l l  th is  is  no t  handwr i t ten  I  th ink  

on  mine.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  no t  handwr i t ten  bu t  i t  is  b lack  

numbers ,  maybe they jus t  made sure  m ine looked l i ke  tha t  

and yours  –  ja  they are  no t  handwr i t ten ,  they –  I  th ink  i t  20 

must  be  a  match ing .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    What  we w i l l  do  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    On mine,  I  don ’ t  know about  the  w i tness  
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bu t  . . .  

ADV SONI  SC:    He has the  same number ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  Cha i rperson  what  we w i l l  do  is  a f te r  

th is  par t  o f  the  ev idence has been led ,  we w i l l  jus t  pu t  

every th ing  in  o rder,  bu t  a t  leas t  we know the  record  w i l l  

p roper ly  re f lec t  th is  and I  wou ld  re f lec t  i t  on  the  documents  

we w i l l  d iscuss w i th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  no  tha t ’s  a l r igh t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  D ing iswayo you have made an a f f idav i t  10 

in  regard  to  th is  mat te r.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  am go ing  to  –  so  to  summar ise  –  we l l  I  

am go ing  to  g ive  an  out l ine  o f  what  i s  conta ined in  your  

a f f idav i t  bu t  jus t  fo r  fo rmal i t y  sake do you conf i rm the  

cor rec tness and  t ru th fu lness o f  what  i s  sa id  in  th is  

a f f idav i t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes Cha i r  the  a f f idav i t  I  see  i t  runs 

f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one second,  le t ’s  f i rs t  ident i f y  20 

where  the  a f f idav i t  i s  found.   I t  i s  found in  Exh ib i t  –  in  

Bund le  F s ta r t ing  a t  page 95.  

ADV SONI  SC:    95  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  tha t ’s  the  index but  there ’s  –  the  

index to  –  no  i t ’s  no t  the  index,  i t  is  –  ja  i t  i s  the  index.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  ac tua l  a f f idav i t  s ta r ts  on  page  

96.  

ADV SONI  SC:    96 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And runs up  to  page 121.  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And aga in ,  fo r  the  record  I  am look ing  

a t ,  o r  I  am us ing  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  top  le f t  s ide  o f  

each page and not  the  red  numbers on  the  top  r igh t  s ide  o f  

the  page.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    And i t  i s  Exh ib i t  SS8 Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  a f f idav i t  i t  i s  annexures –  or  has i t  

go t  annexures?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes i t  has ,  i t  has  qu i te  a  few.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and i t s  annexures there  i t  i s  

admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  SS8 and i t  i s  conta ined in  Bund le  F.  

ADV SONI  SC:    As  i t  p leases Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes ,  so  i s  tha t  the  –  i s  tha t  you r  

a f f idav i t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r,  th is  i s  my  20 

a f f idav i t  and the  s ignature  tha t  i s  on  page 121  is  my 

s ignature .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and I  th ink  Mr  Son i  had asked you 

someth ing  and I  in te r rup ted  h im,  do  you conf i rm  tha t  i t s  

contents  a re  cor rec t?  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    I  do  conf i rm Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now Mr  D ing iswayo what  a re  your  

p ro fess iona l  qua l i f i ca t ions?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i rman admi t ted  a t to rney,  I  was 

admi t ted  in  1999,  and I  p rac t iced unt i l  2013 when I  jo ined  

the  Passenger  Ra i l  Agency as  a  Genera l  Manager  :  Lega l  

Serv i ces .   To  da te  I  am s t i l l  there  as  Genera l  Manager.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And to  wh ich  depar tment  –  th is  i s  a t  

PRASA,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  the  depar tment  I  

worked in  i s  ca l led  Lega l  R isk  and Compl iance.   I  –  so  I  am 

respons ib le  fo r  the  lega l  s ide ,  a  counterpar t  o f  m ine is  

respons ib le  fo r  compl iance and the  o ther  sub-se ts  o f  that  

depar tment .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And you fa l l  under  the  genera l  

admin is t ra t i ve ,  your  genera l  admin is t ra t i ve  head is  Ms  

Mar tha  Ngoye?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes my –  I  repor t  to  Ms Ngoye.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  the  pos i t ion  you occupy now tha t  you 20 

have jus t  to ld  me  about  the  same pos i t ion  you occup ied  in  

2014/2015 or  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  s t i l l  the  same? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  i s  the  same pos i t ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:  We wi l l  re turn to  that  quest ion a l i t t le  la te r  

Chai rperson because Mr Dingiswayo is  at  present  under 

suspension.   But  that  I  want  to  deal  wi th  at  a  la te r  s tage.   

But  I  just  p lace i t  on record  so i t  i s  not  as i f  i t  –  we are not  

aware of  what  h is  s tatus i s .    

Now Mr Dingiswayo you begin at  paragraph 4 of  your  

aff idavi t  to  make a genera l  observat ion about  concerns that  

you have in  re la t ion to  PRASA and there are two or  perhaps 

three concerns.  10 

 The f i rs t  one re lates to  the undue in f luence that  

cer ta in  persons exerc ised or  s t i l l  exerc ise at  PRASA.  Could  

you te l l  the Chai rperson what  you mean by that  and ident i fy  

who those persons are? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r  in  – in  an inst i tu t ion l i ke PRASA 

and I  th ink i t  is  the same wi th  a number of  your  ins t i tu t ions 

i t  is  –  they are ho ly cows.   So they are – I  mean I  remember  

one of  the f i rs t  t ransact ions that  I  had to  deal  wi th  re la ted  

to  S iyaya and somebody just  whispered in  my ear  that  do 

not  scrut in ize too c losely.    20 

So you learn i f  you have f r iends in  the inst i tu t ion or  

i f  people receive you favourably you wi l l  learn very quick ly  

that  there are some holy cows and i t  is  someth ing  that  is  

very much known in  the inst i tu t ion .   Everyth ing that  re la tes 

to  those serv ice providers is  t reated favourab ly f rom 
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procurement  even where somet imes the procurement  is  not  

done proper ly  but  that  i s  par t  o f  the favourable t reatment  of  

that  par t icu la r  serv ice provider  to  cont ract ing  you – 

Chai rperson you would remember that  in  the repor t  ent i t led  

Dera i led one of  the th ings which  are supposed to be a  

normal  th ing that  were noted by the Publ ic  Protector  is  that  

cont racts do not  go to  the legal  department  for  vet t ing and 

draf t ing.    

 So you would  f ind that  k ind of  t rend f rom 

procurement  to  cont ract ing to  cont ract  management .   And i t  10 

is  –  i t  i s  key cont racts in  the organ isat ion.   I t  is  even when 

you – you have meet ings wi th  those serv ice providers they 

g ive you looks that  – that  te l l  you that  i f  you are no t  towing 

the l ine af te r  th is  meet ing,  I  am going to  repor t  you.  

 So i t  i s  someth ing l i ke that .   You get  the sense very  

ear ly  that  there are cer ta in  people  that  you cannot  do your  

work proper ly  because the – the work is  to  ensure  that  the  

organisat ion compl ies wi th  the law but  a lso to  make sure  

that  the in terest  o f  the organisat ions are – the legal  in te rest  

o f  an organisat ion  is  protected at  a l l  t imes.  20 

 So – and the management  of  the legal  r i sks.   So i t  is  

–  you then f ind that  you – you cannot  do that  work proper ly  

in  re la t ion to  those serv ice providers or  companies.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now I  am going to  come back to  that  in  a  

moment .   But  as  I  under –  as I  heard you,  you say that  
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when you got  there or  soon af te r  you got  there you were  

to ld  when we were looking at  a  S iyaya cont ract .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now who does S iyaya – wel l  we know i t  i s  a  

company.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  who is  behind S iyaya? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Wel l  I  la te r  learnt  Chai r  that  the – a  

gent leman behind  S iyaya is  a gent leman cal led Makhensa 

Mabunda.   Mr Mabunda accord ing to  in fo rmat ion that  I  –  I  – 10 

was gathered la ter  had worked w i th  Mr Lucky Montana at  

the Department  of  Publ ic  Enterpr ises.    

They were i f  I  am not  mistaken DDG’s.   I  th ink Mr  

Mabunda was in  f inance and I  forget  what  Mr Montana was 

doing.   Then Mr  Montana moves to  the Department  of  

Transport  to  be a DDG in Publ ic  Transport .   When that  

happens,  i t  appears that  Mr Mabunda has an in terest  in  

business and he is  involved in  – at  the pro ject  o f  Taxi  

Recapi ta l i sat ion which fe l l  under the – the purv iew of  Mr  

Montana at  the department .    20 

So he is  one of  the people who –  I  th ink he was a  

CFO of  the agency that  was doing the work in  that  space of  

Taxi  Recapi ta l i sa t ion.   Mr Montana leaves the Department 

of  Transport  jo ins  – jo ins PRASA and Mr Mabunda cont inues 

to  get  work f rom PRASA and th is  i s  very key work.   In  effect  
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I  can say that  the ent i re  technica l  d iv is ion of  PRASA was 

outsourced to – to  h is  ent i ty  because at  the – there is  a  

d iv is ion ca l led PRASA Technica l .    

He has got  a  lo t  o f  –  of  advisory work that  he does 

there.   I  mean th is  ent i t y  S iyaya has a  lo t  o f  advisory work  

that  i t  does there and the cont ract  that  I  was refer r ing to  

about  that  somebody whispered to  me was a  st range 

contact .    

I t  was wi th  an ent i ty  I  th ink ca l led  S iyaya Fuel  and 

th is  ent i ty  was being paid someth ing in  the order  o f  I  th ink 10 

about  20cents fo r  every l i t re  of  pet ro leum products that  

PRASA was consuming.    

Now you would –  i f  you th ink about  i t  that  inc luded 

Autopax and Autopax probably had at  that  t ime a lo t  o f  

funct ional  buses.   I  mean today the  f leet  i s  very smal l  but  a t  

the t ime i t  was s izable f leet .   Our long-d is tance t ra ins then 

when we had a long d is tance – an operat ing long-d is tance 

serv ice they – they t raversed and a la rge par t  o f  the 

network wi th  us ing d iesel .    

So each and every l i t re  that  we – we poured of  20 

pet ro leum products they would 20  cents.   I  t r ied to  – no 

a l though as a lawyer the deal  is  made.   I  th ink we were  

t ry ing – they were t ry ing to  get  some secur i t y  o f  sor ts  f rom 

a bank and the bank needed us to  – to  conf i rm someth ing 

about  – about  th is  and i t  looked – th is  cont ract  looked very 
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s t range to me because I  thought  that  we could  as an  

organisat ion  get  very favourable t reatment  f rom the 

suppl ie rs who are  known of  these products but  we had to go  

through th is  organisat ion.    

So that  is  when somebody sa id,  look do not  look too 

c losely at  i t .   So i t  is  that  k ind of  a  th ing.   I t  is  –  you know 

the outsourc ing o f  them almost  the  ent i re  technica l  funct ion  

of  PRASA and PRASA is  a h igh ly technica l  ent i ty.    

I  mean the – the locomot ives,  the ro l l ing stock,  a l l  o f  

that  i s  technica l .   The network that  we – i t  operates on is  – 10 

is  technica l .   So you need a lo t  o f  technica l  capaci ty  to  deal  

wi th  i t .   So yes,  I  th ink at  the t ime when we were looking at  

the cont racts,  they had benef i t ted  in  the order  of  a  b i l l ion  

through those cont racts.    

And then there is  o ther  associat ions l ike Swi fambo 

that  came up that  they seemed to have a hand in  that .   So 

yes i t  is  that  k ind of  a  th ing.  

ADV SONI SC:   Can I  just  say to  you,  you  may not  have 

heard th is  because you have ment ioned S iyaya and 

Swi fambo in  the same breath.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now Mr Molefe when he gave evidence th is  

week,  ear l ier  th is  week.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Monday and Tuesday he sa id that  he had 
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been to ld  by a Mr Mashaba that  Mr Mashaba had been 

approached by Mr  Mabunda.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   To be the face of  Swi fambo.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Are you aware of  that  or  does that  a l l  w i th in  

what  you know about  these mat te rs?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai rperson that  is  in  the Swi fambo 

Review Appl icat ion.   That  d iscussion  that  happened 

between Mr Mole fe and Mr Mabunda – sorry Mr Mashaba.   10 

So I  am aware of  –  of  that  d iscussion.   I  th ink what  came as 

a very st range th ing is  that  S iyaya came – l i ke I  sa id they 

were – they were tak ing over  the technica l  d iv is ion.   One of  

the people that  were in  S iyaya was a lady ca l led Brenda 

Malongete who was work ing fo r  a  law f i rm DM5.  

 Now what  came as a shock to  me is  that  th is  lady is  

the one that  was draf t ing the agreements between PRASA 

and Swi fambo.  

 So now you had somebody who came to PRASA 

through Mr Mabunda advis ing PRASA on a cont ract  wi th  an  20 

ent i t y  that  i s  c losely associated wi th  – wi th  Mr Mabunda.  

 So i t  –  yes i t  i s  –  I  am aware of  i t  f rom that  context  

and then I  got  shocked that  th is  is  –  th is  i s  the s i tuat ion 

where we – I  mean i t  i s  –  i t  is  a  very – Chai r  I  must  be  

assis ted I  am on suspension so I  am not  used to ta lk ing a  
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lo t .   So i f  I  go on and on,  I  am hoping that  Counsel  wi l l  

ass is t  me and br ing me back.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Counsel  knows what  you are going to  say 

so he wi l l  know when … 

MR DINGISWAYO:   To stop me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To – to  ask you the next  quest ion.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And when to in ter rupt  you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Thank you.   Thank you Chai rperson.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   But  Mr Dingiswayo I  have consul ted wi th  

you on a number of… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Son i .   On a l ighter  no te I  do 

not  know whether  Mr Dingiswayo mean that  when you are 

not  on suspension and you are work ing you speak a  lo t  but  

now that  you are  on suspension you do not  speak a lo t  so  

th is  i s  the opportuni ty.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r  you have very l i t t le  human 

in teract ion when your  – a l l  your  co l leagues and other  fami ly  

members are at  work.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  I  have not  in te rrupted you because you 

know what  th is  commission is  about .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  
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ADV SONI SC:   You know PRASA int imate ly.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And to the extent  that  mat ters are re levant .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And you have not  ment ioned i t  in  your  

aff idavi t  p lease fee l  f ree to  ment ion i t .   Now I  had heard of  

the name of  Ms Brenda – what  i s  the name? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Malongete.  

ADV SONI SC:   Malongete.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   But  I  had not  rea l ised what  the connect ion  

was unt i l  now.   So p lease what  – whenever you can assis t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  does help because as Mr Molefe sa id i t  is  

up to  the commission to  jo in  a l l  the  dots.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now just  on the quest ion of  persons of  

in f luence that  i s  how the quest ion… 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Of  Mr Mabunda came about .   May I  ask  

you was there any other  person of  in f luence who st ruck as 

being an in f luent ia l  ro le  p layer  at  PRASA? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   The other  person Chai r  –  I  mean there  

were – there are  qui te  a number of  –  of  people.   I  mean the 
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–  PRASA was n ice ly  d iv ided amongst  but  I  wi l l  just  speak 

about  the major  ro le  p layers.    

The other  major  one would have been Mr Roy 

Moodley.   He is  the owner of  a  company ca l led  Royal  

Secur i ty  and I  th ink Ms Ngoye would have taken you 

through the re la t ionship between PRASA and an ent i ty  

ca l led St rawberry  Worx.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second.   I  see that  you are  

speaking qui te  some d istance away f rom the microphone.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Oh.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  that  might  be f ine.   I  want  to  check 

wi th  the t ranscr ibers whether  they can hear  you proper ly.   

Can you hear  the  wi tness?  Yes okay ja  – be c loser  to  the  

microphone.   Okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Thank you Chai r.   So the other  person 

Chai r  who – who… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  –  maybe I  could  just  say the t ranscr ibers 

i f  –  because somet imes I  wi l l  not  ask them.   I f  there is  

anyone of  us whom you cannot  hear  proper ly  t ry  and send a  

message that  must  go up to  the ev idence leader who can le t  20 

me know.   Ja.   Okay.   Thank you.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Thank you Chai r  I  was saying tha t  the – 

the other  person that  was in f luent ia l  was a gent leman by 

the name of  Roy Moodley and i t  i s  –  the secur i t y  –  Royal  

Secur i ty  that  he  owned and associated wi th  St rawberry 
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Worx.   Through the invest igat ions that  were launched by the  

board i t  came out  that  he may be associated wi th  S iyangena 

as wel l .  

 I  mean these – these people would be sa id to  have 

some f ree re ign in  the PRASA bui ld ing.   For  an example the 

– in  the S iyangena case that  somet imes when you know 

there is  a  delay in  payment  – wel l  th is  is  someth ing that  I  

was to ld  that  Mr  Mar io  Fer re i ra  would be spot ted  in  the 

bui ld ing.   So you do not  understand how they have gained 

ent rance and a l l  o f  those th ings.    10 

 And la te r  on,  the other  ent i ty  that  he was associated  

wi th  Mr Roy Moodley was associa ted wi th  i s  Prodigy.   And 

on that  same th ing of  –  of  h im having f ree access to  the  

bui ld ing I  remember being ca l led by the CFO I  th ink around 

– the act ing CFO then was Ms Yvonne Page.   She was 

cal l ing me around – in  December  saying that  there were 

people f rom Prodigy in  her  off ice who were there uninv i ted.  

 Now I  mean I  remember I  sa id  to  her,  just  ca l l  

secur i t y  and te l l  them to get  r id  o f  those people.   How d id 

they – how d id  they end up there in  the f i rs t  p lace?  20 

Because she was – she was saying she was being forced to  

do a reconci l ia t ion of  how much had been paid to  Prodigy  

and how much was owing and make that  payment  then.  

 So you had that  k ind of  a  th ing.   And th is  i s  a f te r  Mr  

Montana had le f t .   I  mean th is  i s  I  th ink 2017 when th is  
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inc ident  happened.   So which a lso  g ives you the impression 

that  those people that  were important  a t  –  dur ing the t ime of  

Mr Montana carr ied on being specia l  even af ter  he had le f t .  

 The t rends are the same.   The people who get  

v i l i f ied in  the organisat ion fo r  do ing the i r  work are the  

same.   I  am on suspension.   Mr Montana I  probably  wi l l  get  

there at  some point  d ismissed me and the – the  more i t  

looks l ike th ings are changing.   I  do  not  want  to  say they 

stay the same because my observa t ion is  that  i t  seems as i f  

there i s  a  level  o f  desperat ion that  i s  k ick ing in  in  our  10 

inst i tu t ion inc lud ing – inc lud ing at  PRASA to do those wrong 

th ings you know the desperat ion has increased.  

 Dur ing the t ime o f  Mr Montana,  he  k ind  of  created a 

para l le l  s t ructure  where he had a  lawyer in  h is  off ice who 

was just  serv ing h im.   And then he had at  another  point  th is  

f i rm DM5 doing qui te  a lo t  o f  work for  the organisat ion.  

 He – that  f i rm was not  get t ing ins t ruct ions f rom the 

legal  department .   They were get t ing inst ruct ions d i rect ly  

f rom SCM at  some point  and others f rom Mr Montana 

h imsel f .    20 

 So he had created a n ice para l le l  s t ructure where he 

can do some of  these deals in .   Now we cannot  afford the  

para l le l  now because of  our  cash f low const ra in ts.   Now the 

pressure has come back ins ide for  the people ins ide to  be  

par ty  to  doing wrong.   For  the  people in  the ins ide to  
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basica l ly  a f ra id  and i t  is  someth ing  that  I  th ink is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   A f ra id  of  do ing the r ight  th ing? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r  le t  me put  i t  in  genera l  terms that  

i t  is  just  to  sow fear.   Now when someone is  af ra id ,  they are 

mal leable.   Whatever  you ask them to do they wi l l  do.   So i t  

is  just  that  th ing of  sowing fear.   And at  the end the end – 

the in tended end is  rea l l y  that  to  say,  i f  I  say jump you say 

how h igh?  You do not  say but  why am I  jumping and a l l  o f  

those th ings?  Because people are just  a f ra id .  

ADV SONI SC:   Chai rperson I  see i t  is  one o ’c lock I… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes le t  us take the lunch break.   We wi l l  

resume at  two.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you p lease Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV SONI SC:   As you please Chai rperson.   Now, in 

paragraph 4 of  your aff idavi t  and I  know we are there but  we 20 

move a l i t t le faster Mr Dingiswayo.   

 You f i rst  say there were certain peoples of  inf luence.   

When you point  out  that  when you got  there,  you were told:   

“Be careful  about  th is Siyaya matters.   Do not  scrut in ise too 

careful ly. ”    
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 Now, I  take i t  you did not  take that  ser iously that  you 

should not  do your job?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I . . .  Yes,  I  d id my job as best  as I  can.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Because PRASA is the one that  pays my 

salary Chai rperson and part  of  that  job is to protect  the 

interest  of  PRASA. 

ADV SONI SC:   Now in regard to. . .  assuming you had 

scrut in ised cont racts careful ly,  whether involving Mr 

Mabunda’s f i rms or Mr Moodley’s f i rms here.   How did Mr 10 

Montana react  to that? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  is was in a very strange way 

Chairperson.   I  mean, i t  happened to me and I  happened to 

scrut in ise the Prodigy Agreement and indicate that . . .  in i t ia l ly,  

I  wrote to Mr Montana,  giv ing him the benef i t  of  the doubt.    

 Say to him:  “ I  be l ieve that  he may have been misled in  

approving the contract ” .   The cont ract  was approved on the 

basis that  i t  is a. . .  so the Prodigy contracts that . . .  

ADV SONI SC:   Sorry,  mister.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   I  do not  want to s top you.   I  want  to fo l low 

your aff idavi t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   In paragraph 4,  you deal  general ly 

. . . [ intervenes]   
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MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   . . .wi th how Mr Montana reacted.   We wi l l  

come to the Prodigy contract  in  a minute but  I  do not  want to 

lose the thread of  what you said in your aff idavi t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Sure.  

ADV SONI SC:   So just  in general .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Actual ly,  the word I  used in the aff idavi t  

is ruthlessly.   And I  bel ieve that  correct ly character ises the 

response when we do the work to protect  the interest  of  

PRASA.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   So you say he ruthlessly abused his  

powers? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And you wi l l  g ive us your example of  that .   

And you make the point  that  the publ ic protector has also 

pointed out  th is in  her report  ca l led Derai led.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct ,  Chairperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   And then the thi rd issue you raise is,  that  

even when courts  made pronouncements about matters,  for  

example,  where a person has been unfai r ly dismissed or the 20 

contract  is inval id  and so on.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   What was management ’s react ion at  

PRASA? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai rman, even for. . .  and so there was 
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a lways this need to appear ing in certain instances where the 

advice that  would have come from the legal  department,  

would be say,  “you do not  have good prospects of  success 

on appeal” .    

 Even where we would have said. . .  even f rom the word go 

that  before the decision was made that  there is no prospects 

of  suspects.  

 So there wi l l  just  be that  waste of  resources and. . .  in 

certain. . .  especia l ly where employees are involved,  i t  was 

almost  l ike an at t i tude where somebody says,  “ I  have the 10 

pass of  the state and I  am going to  l i t igate you unt i l  you do 

not  have money”.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now the obvious when the cont ract . . .  a  

cloud is put  over a contract  and i t  involved inf luent ia l  people,  

what would their  a t t i tude be? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  would be deal t  wi th unprofessional ly  

Chai r.   I  mean, the expectat ion was that  you do not  raise the 

issue that  has a cloud over th is t ransact ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no.   I  am raising a di fferent  point  wi th  

you.   I t  is the last  part  of  paragraph 4.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   You say that :  

“Even when payment was not  just i f ied,  payments 

would be made. ”  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  that  is correct  Chai r.   That  there 
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were instances where there would be very hef ty invoices.   I  

mean, I  remember one point  when I  was quest ioning an 

invoice of  a lawyer who had got  onto our panel ,  in my view, 

through the backdoor.    

 And I  was not . . .  I  was actual ly cal led by Mr Montana.   I  

was busy talk ing to the service provider as the serv ice 

provider to the legal  department,  quest ioning the invoices 

and I  was cal led to his off ice to say,  “why are you 

quest ioning th is and al l  of  th is?”  

ADV SONI SC:   And was the invoice paid? 10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Wel l ,  in the end,  the lawyer had to 

change the invoice.   I  mean, they were glar ing th ings l ike 

di fferent  hourly  ra tes.   Today is  two point  f ive.   The next  day 

i t  is four-thousand.   

 So I  mean, those. . .  i t  was obvious things that  were. . .  

then I  pointed them out  to Mr Montana to say,  “ I  cannot put  

my signature on an invoice l ike this.   I  mean, i f  i t  has to be 

paid in another way,  i t  can be paid in another way,  but  I  am 

not  going to put  my name on i t ” .  

ADV SONI SC:   Now in paragraph 5 you point  out  that  as 20 

legal  services,  you were al l  of ten required to take matters to 

di fferent  places.  

 And you say,  for example in regard to the contract  for 

R 3,5 bi l l ion which was conducted. . .  which was concluded 

corrupt ly.   That  is what the court  of  Appeal  said.    Which 
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one. . .  which cont ract  are you talk ing about  there.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r,  th is the. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wonder Mr Soni  whether you should not  

ask him in a manner that  might  not  appear to be so leading.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.   I  wi l l  do,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ask him whether they were required. . .  they 

were able to instruct  di fferent  law f i rms and what would be 

the posi t ion so that  the evidence comes f rom him.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Otherwise,  i t  looks l ike you are giving 10 

evidence and just  get t ing him to say,  yes,  yes,  yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So,  look at  a  f inding a way of  just  

extract ing the informat ion,  the evidence f rom him.  

ADV SONI SC:   In  regard. . .  wel l ,  you are aware of  the 

Swifambo cont ract? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   What. . .  af ter Mr Montana lef t ,  what  did 

PRASA do in respect  of  that  cont ract? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   PRASA launched an appl icat ion Chair  to 20 

have this  cont ract  reviewed and set  aside which was 

successful  at  the high court  taken on appeal .    

 The SCA conf i rmed the high cour t  decis ion and there 

was an at tempt to take i t  the const i tut ional  cour t .   The 

const i tut ional  court  said that  there were not  prospects of 
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success and they did not  entertain the matter.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now once the issues that  Mr Molefe raised 

is,  that  in respect  of  that  cont ract ,  Mr Mashaba had made.. .  

had told him cer tain things about  how that  cont ract  had 

been.. .  we need not  go there.    

 But  as a resul t  of  that ,  what would PRASA in relat ion to  

taking the matter further,  besides going to the high court  to 

set  as ide the cont ract? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t . . .  there was a gent leman cal led 

Phi lemon Mamabolo who was in the securi ty department.   10 

Just  by himsel f ,  he took. . .  Chai rperson,  what. . .  by enlarge 

was the complaint  to the publ ic protector that  was launched 

in 2012 around. . .  I  th ink he went around 2015.   

 He deposed to an aff idavi t  and reported those matters,  a 

number of  those matters to the pol ice.   And in that  report ,  he 

included the Swifambo matter.    

 So when.. .  af ter the board had invest igated the 

t ransact ion and these issues that  counsel  referred to,  came 

up,  the invest igators assisted Mr Mamabolo to prepare a 

more comprehensive aff idavi t  that  is  speci f ical ly  wi th the 20 

Swifambo t ransact ion.  

 And that  was then f i led under the same case number 

that  Mr Mamabolo had in i t iated.   I  th ink i t  is  Hebrew case 

number.    

 So that  matter was then taken to the pol ice.   At  some 
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point ,  the HAWKS became involved because of  the size of  

the t ransact ion and the issues that  are involved in i t .  

ADV SONI SC:   Sorry.   Were you involved in i t  as wel l?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  Chai r.   At  the beginning i t  was just  

the board and the invest igators who were deal ing wi th the 

matter.   Around,  I  th ink 2016,  around Apri l ,  then the board 

started involv ing the legal  department as wel l  in these. . .  in 

the deals between PRASA and the HAWKS.   

 So that  is how we got  involved in the deal ings between 

PRASA and the HAWKS.  And i f  I  am a l lowed Chai r?  I  can 10 

probably ta lk about  two meet ings that  stood out  for me which 

was one very big meet ing which was. . .  were led by Mr Popo 

Molefe f rom the PRASA side.  

 The invest igators that  had been engaged by the board 

were there and the HAWKS were there.   We met  wi th a 

gent leman cal led General  Khana.   

 When I  lef t  that  meet ing Chai r,  I  was very encouraged.   

I t  appeared that  there was very work that  had been done by 

the invest igators.    

 That  the HAWKS had appreciated the kind of  work that  20 

had been done and they real ly be l ieved that  th is  is  a very 

important  matter that  needed to be invest igated.  

 A number of  undertakings were made in that  meet ing by 

the HAWKS to say,  “you know, there is a need to take this  

matter to the FAFI”.    
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 I  th ink i t  is cal led. . .  the inst i tut ion in the pol ice is cal led 

FAFI.   But  i t  deals wi th assets forfei ture and meet ings were 

subsequent ly arranged with that  inst i tut ion.    

 But  then the whole thing kind of  ground to a hal t  and 

were inexpl icable ground to a hal t .   When.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  want you to lose your t rain of  

thought.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  just  give some t imeframe i f  you can.   

That  meet ing f rom which you came out  very 10 

encouraged.. . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .and when was i t ,  more or less,  even i f  i t  

is not  the actual  date? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Year and month.   Or what part  of  the year?  

And the t ime when you fel t  that  everything came to a hal t  

inexpl icable?  I  just  want those t imeframes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r,  i f  I  am not  mistaken the meet ing 

was in Apri l  2016.   And I  th ink there were fol low up meet ings 20 

between the invest igators.   Sorry.   And the. . .  and FAFI .    

 I  was not  part  of  that  meet ing because part  of  the 

discussions are conf ident ia l  and secret  at  that  stage of  the 

invest igat ion but  we came into the main int roductory meet ing 

between.. .  before the ni t ty-gr i t ty was discussed.  
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 At  that  t ime, a. . .  one of  the sub-cont ractors to  

Werksmans and I  th ink that  company is now cal led Crowe but  

at  the t ime i t  was cal led Howarth,  had been appointed by the 

HAWKS to do the cash-f low analysis in respect  of  Swifambo.  

 The arrangement between the HAWKS and PRASA was 

that  PRASA would pay thei r  fees that  are incurred by 

Howarth and Howarth would report  to the HAWKS. 

 So those were part  of  the discussions in the separate 

meet ing to deal  wi th issues that  related to the Sect ion 205’s 

and the subpoenas and al l  of  those things.  10 

 I  th ink i t  would have been af ter those in i t ia l  meet ings 

that  everything just  went dead l ike. . .  so the t imeframe would 

be when this. . .  the fo l lowing up would have come around 

May and then af ter  May,  i t  seemed everything would just  

ground to a hal t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   So you said the big meet ing which gave 

you encouragement was in. . .  d id you say May? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Apr i l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Apr i l?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So just  about  a month later. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .everything came to a hal t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  that  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And in between there would have 
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been about how many meet ings i f  you are able to say that  

because you sa id there would have been intervening 

meet ings?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Wel l ,  those would not  have been.. .  I  

would not  have been present  in those meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  you know that  some meet ings 

took place.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Those would have been with the 

invest igators.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you know that  some meet ings d id take 10 

place. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .some people f rom PRASA and the 

HAWKS or. . .  and the. . .  or the SIU or whatever 

or. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  was the HAWKS and I  th ink FAFI.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  bel ieve that  were engagements as wel l  

wi th AFU.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  th ink those were the inst i tut ions that  

were there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   Okay,  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   The AFU being the Asset  Forfei ture Uni t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct .   The AFU of  the MPA.  
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And I  th ink there was also engagements wi th. . .  there were 

prosecutors appointed to lead the HAWKS team that  was 

invest igat ing.   So there were engagements as wel l  wi th those 

people. ,  

ADV SONI SC:   And you have had that  one meet ing wi th 

the. . .  you were present  at  which. . .  you were part  of  the 

delegat ion led by Mr Molefe.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct .  

ADV SONI SC:   Did you have any meet ings wi th the 

prosecutors?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   Yes,  we did.  

ADV SONI SC:   And how did you f ind them? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  came a l i t t le bi t  later Chai r.   

Roundabout. . .  probably around 2018.  I  in i t ia l ly sa id there 

are two meet ings that  stood out .   And I  just  request  counsel  

to just  al low me to deal  wi th those.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.   I  was going to ask you about that .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   But  ca I  a lso be al lowed to just  

insert  another. . .  share wi th you Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON:   [No audible reply]   20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   The. . .  so the second meet ing 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  now.  I  am sorry Mr Dingiswayo.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  just  want to make sure that  whi lst  you are 
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going to,  as you say insert  some meet ing. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the f i rst  important  meet ing that  you are 

aware of  happens in Apri l  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then everything comes to a hal t  

inexpl icable in May somet ime?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   And the meet ing that  you wi l l  insert ,  

fa l ls in between?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is later?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  is later.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Before you go to that  meet ing.   

What is  that  you heard or you observed or you saw which 

made you to conclude that  there was this inexpl icable hal t  of  

the at tempts to. . .  for the HAWKS to invest igate and FAFI or 

AFU, al l  these law enforcement agencies to do something?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chairperson,  at  that  t ime, the matters. . .  

most  of  the matters were handled by the invest igators.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So,  f rom t ime to t ime, we would have 

meet ings wi th Werksmans and just  general ly discuss what is 

happening to  the invest igat ion including the cr iminal  

invest igat ion.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And then the f rust rat ions then were 

coming f rom that  end of  Werksmans to say that  they are not  

get t ing the feedback f rom the HAWKS around further  

engagements wi th  them. 

 Because,  as I  understand i t  Chai r,  when you are 

invest igat ing t ransact ion l ike Swifambo and you are t ry ing to 

fo l low cash,  you have to. . .  i t  is almost  l ike an onion.    

 So you start  on the outer s ide to say,  what. . .  who did 

Swifambo pay?  And t ry to l ink those payments to the 10 

purpose of  Swifambo so that  you isolate those that  seems 

st range in respect  of  business of  Swifambo and then you 

start  fo l lowing the cash f rom that  end.  

 For an example.   I f  Swifambo were to pay Vossloh which 

was the OEM, that  type of  a payment would not  raise a f lag 

but  i f  Swifambo was to pay Fani  Incorporated,  then you have 

to ask,  who is Fani  Incorporated and Fani  Incorporated 

belongs Fani  Dingiswayo who is an employee of  PRASA.  

 Then you. . .  so they were f rust rated by the fact  that  the 

fol low up subpoenas were not  coming back.    20 

 So the people who were doing the analysis would do the 

f i rst  layer of  analysis and then say,  “we need these other  

subpoenas to be issued and the bank statements to be 

brought”.   And so that  was the f rust rat ion that  they were 

get t ing.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Now did you say. . .  you were talk ing about 

the invest igators who had been appointed by Werksmans’ 

f i rm?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The invest igators,  they were Werksmans’ 

invest igators so to speak?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   They were sub-contractors.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They were sub-contractors.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.   But  they were repor t ing to  10 

Werksmans?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So you were having interact ions wi th  

some of  them and you. . .  the reports that  you were get t ing 

when interact ing wi th them.. . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .was that  they were feel ing f rust rated 

because they were not  making headway?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And part  of  the reason why they were not  20 

making headways because some subpoenas had led. . .  that  

had been issued to t ry  and get  to  see where the money went 

to and then the subpoenas were not  coming back?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  so the way I  understood the 

interact ion Chai r  was that  the invest igator wi l l  say,  “ I  need 
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you to  issue subpoena for the fol lowing ent i t ies and banking 

accounts”.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   The work of  issuing the. . .  

the. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Subpoenas.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   . . .subpoenas would be done by the 

pol ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And then the pol ice would go to the 10 

banks af ter issuing. . .  having these subpoenas issued. 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   They would go to the banks to get  the 

statements.   Analysis is done and the invest igator says,  “ I  

need the fol lowing”.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So at  some point  that  f low through, 

simply came to a hal t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now that  is very important  Mr 

Dingiswayo.  Mr Soni ,  we need to get  to the invest igators.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We need them to tel l  us who was not  doing 

his job or her job.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  they were requi re to invest igate such an 
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important  matter of  corrupt ion at  PRASA and they needed 

the pol ice to assist  them by way of  get t ing certain  

informat ion by subpoenas and the pol ice or the HAWKS or 

whoever i t  was,  were not  do ing thei r  job or were refusing to  

do their  job for whatever reason,  maybe because the money 

t rai l  started to lead to certain people.   I  need to know. 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who are those pol ice off icers who were not  

doing thei r  jobs? 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   We need to. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   And to whom did i t  lead? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   We need to get  to the bot tom of  th is.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is a lot  of  taxpayers ’ money.  

ADV SONI SC:   Absolutely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who were the pol ice off ic ia ls who were not  

doing thei r  jobs?  Because i f  th is is correct ,  they were 

f rust rat ing a very important  invest igat ion.   So. . .  thank you Mr 

Dingiswayo.   20 

 You. . .  I  am sure that  you wi l l  be able to supply Mr Soni  

and the Commission invest igators wi th names i f  you are able 

to or those who could assist  who were being f rustrated when 

they were t ry ing to do thei r  jobs.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Certainly,  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Then let  us get  to the second meet ing that  

you say stood out  for you Mr Dingiswayo.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So the second meet ing was. . .  I  th ink i t  

would have been around November/October 2016.  I  th ink i t  

was at  a t ime when Mr Col l ins Letsoalo was the act ing CEO 

of  PRASA.   

 Br igadier Khana requested a meet ing and he came to 

PRASA with,  I  th ink,  Br igadier Makinyane and with  them.. .  

sorry.    10 

 Then there. . .  on our side i t  was Mr Letsoalo and mysel f .   

I  th ink the company secretary,  the then company secretary,  

Mr Lindikaya Zide may have been there and my manager,  

Martha Ngoye was there.  

 In th is meet ing,  the HAWKS were concerned,  they said,  

about  the aff idavi t  of  Mr Mamabola.   And their  concern,  they 

indicated,  was the fact  that  he makes certain legal  

conclusions in the aff idavi t ,  for an example,  that  so and so 

and so and so were act ing in common purpose and they 

commit ted f raud.  20 

 So i t  came as a. . .  so he sa id,  “ look,  we are feel ing stuck 

because we are worr ied that  i f  you take this matter  forward,  

Mr Mamabola is  not  going to surv ive cross-examinat ion 

because he is the A1. ”  

 And the A1 is the f i rst  person to make the f i rst  
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complaint .  So he would be the one who needs to give 

evidence.   And he wi l l  not  be able to support  h is legal  

conclusions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  th ink Mr Mamabola does not  have 

to. . .  he needed to simply state facts.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  he knew.  And i f  he made the legal  

conclusion that  was wrong,  that  is  real ly nei ther here nor  

there.   They had to look at  whether the facts that  he 

speaking to,  revealed that  there was prima facie  a  cr ime, 10 

whether i t  was the same cr ime he was talk ing about or a  

di fferent  cr ime.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is nei ther here nor there.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai rperson,  that  is exact ly what  we told 

them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   We also to ld them that  our view is that  

the whole point  of  invest igat ing. . .  the whole point  of  

somebody coming to the pol ice and saying please 20 

invest igate this,  is  so that  the pol ice can f ind evidence. 

 And we have indicated to  them that  th is is  ev idence that  

only the pol ice have the legal  author i ty to f ind.   So when 

Mamabola says,  Fani  Dingiswayo got  grat i f icat ion f rom this 

contract ,  he does not  have the legal  author i ty to go in to Fani  
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Dingiswayo’s banking account.  

 He may be making that  conclusion on the basis that  af ter 

th is award was made the l i festyle of  Fani  Dingiswayo 

dramat ical ly changed.  

 So the pol ice then wi th thei r  legal  author i ty,  should be 

the ones that  go and f ind and fo l low the money.   I f  the 

money does not  lead to that  person and does not  lead to  

anybody.   I t  does not . . .  sorry.   I t  does not  lead to anybody 

who i t  should not  lead to,  there is  no one who should be 

prosecuted.  10 

 But  i f  i t  leads to somebody that  should not  receive the 

money,  then that  person must  be prosecuted.   And we said,  

you cannot simply say because you th ink that  the legal  

conclusion is incorrect ,  you do not  invest igate.    

 You invest igate to  check whether the legal  conclusion is  

correct .   And when the evidence is gathered,  you then 

present  the evidence to court ” .  

 And maybe the legal  conclus ion is l ike,  Chai r,  you were 

saying,  i f  the legal  conclusion is th is cr ime, then that  is that  

cr ime.  Or another  cr ime is another cr ime but  i t  cannot be.  20 

 But  the way he was present ing i t ,  i t  was as i f  th is was 

the end of  the road for th is ent i re invest igat ion.   Because we 

were concerned about that  stance and,  I  mean he had,  I  

th ink,  a four-page let ter that . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Remind me.  Who was speaking here?  



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 121 of 224 
 

Was i t . . .?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   General  Khana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   General  Khana.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And just  for the sake of  understanding 

properly.   From PRASA’s said,  you said i t  was you,  i t  was Ms 

Ngoye. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   I  th ink the act ing company. . .  sorry,  

the then. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Zide.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   . . . the act ing company secretary. . .  sorry.   

I  am put t ing act ing to the wrong designat ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes,  yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   [ laughs]   The act ing CEO was Mr 

Letsaolo.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   He was present .   And the Group 

Company Secretary was Mr Zide.   He was a lso present .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And f rom the pol ice’s side i t  was 20 

General  Khana.. .?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  th ink i t  was general . . .   General  Khana 

was there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  th ink he was accompanied by Brigadier  
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Makinyane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Makinyane  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Do you know how we spel l  that  

name?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   M-a-k- i -n-y-a-n-e.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So he was say ing  he  had a  l e t te r?  

MR DINGISWAYO :    Yes,  he  had a  four  page le t te r  w i th  h im 10 

wh ich  he  presented to  the  meet ing .   So i t  was a  b i t  s t range  

tha t  he  has th is  meet ing  fo r  -  he  asked fo r  the  meet ing  and 

he g i ves  us  a  le t te r  and he wants  us  to  d iscuss the  le t te r  a t  

the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO :    So  we then sa id  we w i l l  respond to  the  

le t te r  fo rmal ly  because,  I  mean,  the  way tha t  th is  th ing  was  

be ing  presented was tha t  –  was p rob lemat ic .  

 I  th ink  he  a lso  compla ined tha t  they d id  no t  have  

in fo rmat ion  because the  more  comprehens ive  a f f idav i t  o f  20 

Mamabolo  had a  lo t  o f  annexures.  

 So he sa id  we do not  have these  annexures.   We 

sa id  bu t  we unders tand tha t  you  were  prov ided w i th  tha t .   

So he then responded to  tha t  le t te r  and ind i ca ted  these 

concerns f rom my v iew to  say we be l ieve  tha t  the  ba l l  i s  in  
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your  cour t  because o f  the  lega l  mandate  and the  lega l  

au thor i t y  tha t  you  car ry  wh ich  we do not  have.    

 And I  th ink  we do,  in  tha t  le t te r,  make re ference to  

the  Apr i l  meet ing  and the  ou tcomes o f  tha t  Apr i l  meet ing  

and what  happened a f te r  the  Apr i l  meet ing  because we  

thought  i t  i s  necessary  to  jus t  go  back to  say th is  i s  where  

we were  and when we were  here  we were  very  happy and 

then eve ry th ing  comes to  a  –  gr i nds to  a  ha l t .   When i t  

g r inds  to  ha l t ,  we  f ind  tha t  you come now wi th  th is  le t te r  to  

us  and not  to  the  peop le  tha t  you were  in te r fac ing  w i th ,  10 

you come d i rec t l y  to  PRASA to  say  th is  i s  my concern .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you sa id  th is  meet ing  happens 

towards the  end o f  2015?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was 2016?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes and I  th ink  around October.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A round October?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  November.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  about  one and ha l f  years  a f te r  you  

fe l t  th ings came to  a  ha l t?  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  Cha i r.   So i t  i s  Apr i l  2016 when we 

had tha t  f i rs t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  thought  i t  was Apr i l  2015.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  no ,  no ,  i t  is  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  2016?  Oh,  okay.   Okay,  so  the  



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 124 of 224 
 

ma jor  meet ing  tha t  gave you encouragement  happens in  

the  Apr i l  2016.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and every th ing  seems to  come to  a  

ha l f  in  May 2016.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then th is  meet ing  tha t  cer ta in l y  

wou ld  no t  have encouraged you a t  a l l  happens in  October  

2016?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   So how does tha t  meet ing  end?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So  the  cu lm inat ion  o f  the  meet ing  is  

tha t  we w i l l  wr i te  a  fo rmal  response to  the  le t te r.   We wi l l  

cons ider  the  le t te r  tha t  was jus t  b rought  to  us  a t  the  

meet ing  and fo rmal ly  respond.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  when Genera l  –  i s  i t  Khana is  Khan?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Khana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Khana?  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Khana –  K-h -a -n-a .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  Khana.   When he was speak ing  a t  

th is  meet ing  was  he bas ica l l y  mak ing  the  same po in ts  tha t  

he  –  tha t  he  appeared in  the  le t te r  tha t  he  had g iven  you? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    By  and la rge ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And was the  e f fec t  o f  what  he  was 

say ing  and the  e f fec t  o f  the  le t te r  tha t  they were  s topp ing  

the  invest iga t ion  because o f  what  Mr  Mamabolo  sa id  in  h i s  

a f f idav i t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r,  I  speak under  cor rec t ion ,  I  

be l ieve  tha t  we have the  le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And we w i l l  make i t  ava i lab le .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  be l ieve  tha t  was the  conc lus ion  tha t  

th is  i s  because o f  –  he  was bas ica l l y  say ing  because o f  a l l  

these th ings we cannot  p roceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  these th ings were  what?   You have  

to ld  me about  h im say ing  tha t  Mr  Mamabolo  makes lega l  

conc lus ion  in  h is  a f f idav i t .   What  e lse  d id  he  pu t  up  as  

caus ing  them to  say we do not  th ink  we are  go ing  to  go  

fo rward  o r  someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i rperson,  the  th ing  tha t  was  in  my 20 

reco l lec t ion  in t rac tab le  in  tha t  le t te r  was the  lega l  

conc lus ions.   I  mean,  I  th ink  he  knows Mr  Mamabolo  

persona l ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And l i ke  he  was exp ress ing  sent iments  
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l i ke  he  knows Mr  Mamabolo  and he is  wor r ied  tha t  he  w i l l  

be  embarrassed in  cour t  and i f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because o f  a  lega l  conc lus ion?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  very  s t range.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    There  was,  as  I  sa id ,  a lso  the  issue 

about  the  fac t  tha t  they were  say ing  they do  not  have the  

annexures.  

ADV SONI  SC:    The annexures.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    To  the  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    A f f idav i t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    To  the  a f f idav i t s  wh ich  I  la te r  

es tab l i shed was not  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Bu t ,  I  mean,  we re  –  we gave them the  

documents  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   And so  you be l ieve  the  le t te r  

can be found?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.   Yes,  Cha i r.   I  w i l l… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Can we get  i t?   I  w ish  we had i t  here .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  i s  your  reco l lec t ion  o f  what  the  

le t te r  a lso  says?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   So you then went  back and you 

were  go ing  to  respond.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  where  we were .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  fo r  the  record ,  in  

whose name was  tha t  le t te r,  the  le t te r  tha t  was g iven to  

PRASA? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    The le t te r  tha t  was g i ven to  PRASA 

was addressed to  Ms Ngoye.  

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  no ,  who s igned o r  who wro te  the  

le t te r?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Oh.   Genera l  Khana.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was h is  pos i t ion  w i th in  the  Hawks?   

Was he the  second- in -command?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    He was the  head o f  a  un i t  ca l l ed  The  

Ser ious Economic  Offenses.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ser ious Economic  Offenses?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.    

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r,  then th is  meet ing  tha t  I  jus t  to ld  

you about  i s  the  one  tha t  I  inser ted  because I  thought  the  20 

las t  meet ing  f lows f rom th is  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SONI  SC:    Be fore  you get  to  the  th i rd  meet ing ,  sor ry,  

Mr  D ing iswayo,  when you wro te  back to  Genera l  Khana 

what  was your  –  d id  you agree w i th  h im,  d id  you d ispute  

what  the  cor rec tness o f  what  he  was say ing?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the  th rus t  o f  your  response? 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    The th rus t  o f  the  response,  Cha i r,  i s  

what  I  have sa id ,  tha t  the  pos i t ion  tha t  we he ld  even a t  the  

meet ing  tha t  the  who le  po in t  o f  Mr  Mamabolo  no t  go ing  to  

a r res t  those peop le  tha t  he  named there  h imse l f  i s  because  

i t  i s  the  po l i ce  tha t  must  be  repor ted  to  and i t  i s  the  po l i ce  

tha t  must  conduc t  an  invest iga t ion  and the  po l i ce  tha t  have  

the  au tho r i t y  to  a r res t  bu t  the  main  th rus t  was tha t  these  

are  economic  c r imes and the  on ly  way you dea l  w i th  an  10 

economic  c r ime i s  to  fo l low the  money.   Which  is ,  I  th ink ,  a  

d iscuss ion  tha t  I  th ink  we have had w i th  the  Hawks ad 

nauseam  even on the  S iyangena  invest iga t ion ,  tha t  you  

jus t  have got  to  fo l low the  money.  

 So tha t  was the  th rus t  o f  the  response.   I t  was fa i r l y  

a  lengthy  response,  Cha i r,  because we fe l t  tha t  we have to  

be  as  de ta i led  as  tha t  and a t  leas t  tha t  one I  can make  

ava i lab le  a lmost  immedia te l y  bu t  I  th ink  the  one f rom 

Br igad ier  Khana,  i t  m igh t  take  some t ime.   But  I  w i l l  

request  ass i s tance f rom our  invest iga tors  as  we l l  as  Ms 20 

Ngoye to  see i f  they  can loca te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  ja .   No,  thank you.   We shou ld  ge t  

bo th ,  ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So  on tha t  day tha t  I  de l i vered the  

response,  because I  had a l l  these  lever  a rch  f i les  as  we l l  
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as  our  response,  I  went  to  the  Hawks o f f i ces  in  Pre tor ia  

and gave them the  documents .   We had some b i t  o f  a  ch i t  

chat  w i th  me g iv ing  them the  essence o f  what  our  response 

is .    

 Then one o f  the  o f f i cers  accompan ied me,  because  

the i r  o f f i ces ,  a t  those premises,  you need a  remote  and 

there  is  no  secur i t y  guard .   In  fac t ,  i t  i s  a  nondescr ip t  

bu i ld ing ,  you wou ld  no t  know tha t  there  i s  po l i ce  there ,  

there  is  no th ing  tha t  says po l i ce .   So one o f  the  members ,  

o f  the  o f f i c ia ls ,  accompan ied me so  tha t  he  can open the  10 

ent rance fo r  me.  

 So I  thought  le t  me jus t  ask  th is  gent leman because 

th is  seems so  easy fo r  me,  maybe  there  is  someth ing  tha t  I  

am miss ing .   I  sa id  to  h im i f  you look a t  the  app l i ca t ion  tha t  

was launched by  PRASA …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SONI  SC:    Th is  i s  the  Swi fambo app l i ca t ion?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  Swi fambo app l ica t ion .   I  th ink  

there  is  a  very  in te res t ing  th ing  tha t  happened wh ich  is  in  

the  a f f idav i t s  and tha t  i s  the  meet ing  be tween Mr  Mole fe  

and Mr  Mashaba a t  the  Mas low Ho te l  and the  ou tcomes o f  20 

tha t  meet ing .  Have you not  cons ide red hav ing  a  

conversa t ion  w i th  Mr  Mashaba?  

 My unders tand ing  o f  what  Mr  Mashaba had 

presented to  Mr  Mole fe  i s  tha t  i t  looks  l i ke  I  go t  myse l f  

en tang led  in  someth ing  I  shou ld  no t  have got ten  myse l f  



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 130 of 224 
 

en tang led  in .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Migh t  have to  lose  my assets .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t .   And he appeared to ,  

f rom my read ing ,  he  appeared to  have rece ived the  shock 

o f  h is  l i fe  when he rece ived ins t ruc t ions to  make payments  

to  peop le  tha t  a re  no t  assoc ia ted  w i th  Swi fambo,  w i th  the  

bus iness o f  Swi fambo.   He was a  so le  d i rec tor  and he knew 

who were  Swi fambo’s  counte rpar t ies  in  t ransact i ons and 

these peop le  a re  peop le  he  d id  no t  know.   So I  sa id  to  h im 

maybe somebody l i ke  tha t  can  ass is t  i f  th is  th ing  is  10 

cor rec t .  

 Cha i r ,  there  was an awkward  s i lence fo r  a  few 

seconds and th i s  gent leman sa id  to  me I  fee l  bad tha t  you  

have to  ask  me th is  quest ion  because I  have been an 

invest iga to r  fo r  a  number  o f  years ,  I  have done  

invest iga t ions in  the  Nor th  West  and b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah .   So 

he went  on  and to ld  me h is  l i fe  s to ry  in  the  po l i ce  and he 

says what  you a re  te l l ing  me is  someth ing  tha t  we have 

asked f rom our  super io rs  and I  was jus t  ins t ruc ted  not  to  

touch Mr  Mashaba.  20 

 So I  sa id  to  h im look,  I  do  no t  want  to  pu t  you in  a  

d i f f i cu l t  pos i t ion ,  le t  me go,  what  you have to ld  me is  

enough.   But  the  essence o f  i t  was tha t  he  had been 

ins t ruc ted  not  to  take  tha t  rou te .   Between me and  h im in  

our  d iscuss ion  seemed to  be  a  very  easy rou te  and 
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someth ing  to  exp lore .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  he  seemed to  have been ins t ruc ted  

not  to  do  what  he  be l ieved was  the  r igh t  th ing  to  do  in  

o rder  to  do  h i s  job?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you –  i s  t ha t  somebody tha t  you 

know,  i s  tha t  somebody tha t  you met  once on tha t  

occas ion ,  i s  tha t  somebody tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  on ly  met  once,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    And I  never  met  h im aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  th ink  I  may  have enqu i red  about  h im  

a t  some po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And I  was to ld  he  had le f t  the  po l i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  was to ld  someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   But  i s  tha t  because you  

remembered h i s  name? 20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  –  you know,  as  I  am ta lk ing  about  

th is ,  I  am th ink ing  –  I  th ink  you are  go ing  to  ge t  there  and I  

am t ry ing  to  remember  h is  name.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Bu t  I  th ink  I  may have i t  somewhere ,  
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Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we l l ,  you  see,  maybe i f  he  has le f t  

the  po l i ce  he  might  we l l  be  very  –  m ight  be  qu i te  p repared  

to  ass is t  the  count ry  and te l l  us  what  he  knows about  why  

th is  invest iga t ion  –  why the  Hawks do not  seem to  have 

done what  they were  expected to  do  or  what  he  wou ld  have  

done but  was prevented f rom do ing  and who prevented  

h im.   So one knows tha t  an  invest iga t ion  such  as  the  

invest iga t ion  tha t  th is  Commiss ion  has conducted depends 

to  a  very  la rge  ex ten t  on  men and women in  the  count ry  10 

who w i l l  pu t  the  count ry  f i rs t  and who w i l l  have the  courage 

to  s tand up and to  speak the  t ru th ,  somet imes under  

d i f f i cu l t  c i rcumstances and we have seen some o f  –some o f  

the  peop le  who have taken tha t  s tand,  who have come 

before  th is  Commiss ion  and the  count ry  shou ld  be  ve ry  

gra te fu l  to  them.    

But  there  are  many who are  s tay ing  away f rom the  

Commiss ion  when they have knowledge o f  very  bad th ings  

wh ich  shou ld  be  to ld  to  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  have been 

done by  cer ta in  peop le  who a re  s tay ing  away f rom the  20 

Commiss ion ,  who are  no t  pu t t ing  the i r  count ry  f i rs t  bu t  

there  may s t i l l  be  many who have not  come fo rward  who,  i f  

con tac ted ,  m ight  jus t  say  okay,  I  w i l l  come.  

 So maybe even  the  one tha t  you are  speak ing  

about ,  wherever  he  is ,  even i f  we do not  contac t  h im,  i f  he 
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hea rs  maybe he may jus t  dec ide  to  make h imse l f  ava i lab le  

to  the  Commiss ion .    

I f  there  a re  no t  enough peop le  in  th is  count ry  who 

are  prepared to  come fo rward  and make sacr i f i ces  and take  

a  s tand,  a l l  tha t  we are  do ing  w i l l  be  in  va in .   We wi l l  no t  

make th is  count ry  a  be t te r  count ry.    

I f  we are  a l l  too  scared,  i f  we a re  a l l  pu t t ing  ou r  

own se l f  in te res t  f i rs t ,  i f  we a l l  pu t t ing  ou r  o rgan isa t ions ’ 

in te res t  f i rs t ,  i f  we are  a l l  pu t t ing  cer ta in  wrong ins t i tu t ions  

f i rs t  and not  pu t t ing  the  count ry  t hen a l l  o f  these e f fo r ts  10 

and a l l  o f  the  money tha t  th is  Commiss ion  is  us ing  to  t ry  

ge t  to  the  t ru th  w i l l  a l l  be  in  va in  and I  cont inue  to  be  

gra te fu l  to  each and every  one o f  those peop le  who have 

come here  and who  -  and to ld  the  na t ion  some o f  the 

th ings tha t  we heard  and those who have s tood by  the  t ru th  

even in  d i f f i cu l t  t imes ove r  the  years  as  I  have been  to ld  by  

numerous w i tnesses.   

So we need h i s  name and we need  o thers  who know 

exact ly  why cer ta in  ins t i tu t ions  were  no t  do ing  the i r  job  to  

come fo rward  and te l l  us .   When they te l l  us ,  they are  20 

te l l ing  the  na t ion ,  the  na t ion  ge ts  to  know what  was go ing  

on,  we w i l l  ge t  to  be  ab le  to  make recommendat ions tha t  

hopefu l l y  can cont r ibu te ,  i f  imp lemented,  to  make th is  

count ry  a  be t te r  count ry.   Yes,  thank you.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  D ing iswayo,  
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you  w i l l  look  a t  your  documents  and so  and t ry  and  ident i f y  

the  pe rson but  as  the  Cha i rperson has sa id ,  i f  tha t  person  

hears  your  ev idence hopefu l l y,  he  w i l l  come even on h is  

own whether  you not  f ind  h is  name.  

MR DINGISWAYO :    Cha i r,  sor ry,  can I  jus t  one th ing?  My 

observa t ion  o f  how the  PRASA c r im ina l  invest iga t ions were  

conducted is  a  case s tudy o f  how to  look l i ke  they a re  

invest iga t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    When you are  ac tua l l y  no t  invest i ga t ing?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  I  was ve ry  happy w i th  the  10 

ev idence tha t  was led  yesterday and th i s  morn ing  around  

the  proper ty  t ransact ions because  i t  i s  ev idence tha t  we  

have been look ing  fo r,  fo r  a  long t ime,  i t  i s  ev idence  tha t  i s  

s i t t ing  in  the  hands o f  bankers .    I t  i s  no t  ev idence  tha t  i s  

s i t t ing  w i th  the  peop le  who are  imp l ica ted  in  the  cr im ina l  

o f fences and the  po l i ce  have s imp ly  no t  gone to  the  bank 

to  ask  fo r  the  bank s ta tements  so  tha t  we can be ab le  to  do  

the  very  s te r l ing  work  tha t  was done by  Mr  Oe l le rman th i s  

morn ing  to  take  you th rough the  proper ty  t ransact ions.  

 I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  i t  takes long,  I  th ink  the  20 

concern  as  we l l  i s  the  fac t  tha t  the  money is  d isappear ing ,  

the  proper t ies  are  l y ing  unat tended to  and,  I  mean,  i t  i s  

jus t  const ruc t ion  s i tes ,  the  va lue  o f  tha t  p roper t y  i s  

d iss ipa t ing .   The b iggest  loser  in  the  process,  i t  comes the  

count ry.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Be fore  I  leave th is  theme,  genera l  

invest iga t ions.   You dea l t  w i th  the  Swi fambo invest iga t ion .   

Dur ing  the  course  o f  tha t  you ment ioned a  l i t t le  ear l ie r  the  

–  you sa id  the  same th ing  happened in  the  S iyangena 

invest iga t ion .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now you do not  have to  go  in to  de ta i l s  

un less  you want  to  bu t  what  happened the re?  I f  you  cou ld  

te l l  the  Cha i rperson.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i rperson,  the  lesson learn t  f rom 

the  Swi fambo invest iga t ion  is  tha t  do  no t  do  the  cash f low  

ana lys is ,  tha t  i s  why i t  g round to  a  ha l f  a t  some po in t  

because now you  are  s ta r t ing  to  see names o f  peop le ,  you  

are  s ta r t ing  to  see organ isa t ions  tha t  shou ld  no t  be  seen 

assoc ia ted  w i th  those t ransact ions .   

 So a t  the  Apr i l  meet ing  -  because by  the  t ime we 

had the  Apr i l  meet ing ,  the  po l i ce  had a l ready appo in ted  

Howar th  to  do  the  cash f low ana lys is ,  so  tha t  work  had 

s tar ted  on  the  Sw i fambo invest iga t ion .   20 

 Now on the  Apr i l  meet ing  one o f  the  th ings tha t  

Genera l  Khana sa id  he  i s  go ing  to  do  is  to  do  the  same 

appo in tment  tha t  had been done on – because the  

appo in tment  –  tha t  appo in tment  necess i ta ted  tha t  PRASA 

shou ld  i ssue a  le t te r  to  Howar th  to  say we w i l l  cover  your  
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fees ,  you repor t  to  the  po l i ce .  

 So a f te r  tha t  meet ing  tha t  le t te r  was not  i ssued to  

Howar th  in  acco rdance w i th  wha t  was d iscussed  a t  the  

meet ing  tha t  Howar th  was go ing  to  be  appo in ted  to  do  the  

cash f low ana lys is  in  respect  o f  the  S iyangena  mat te r.   

That  appo in tmen t  never  happened so  tha t  i s  why I  am 

say ing  tha t  whoever  was cont ro l l ing  th is  inves t iga t ion  

rea l i sed tha t  i f  you  make th is  appo in tment  you are  go ing  to  

have prob lems and I  am say ing  I  am happy w i th  the  

ev idence tha t  was lead yesterday and today in  the  morn ing  10 

because now the  th ings tha t  were  jus t  in  newspapers  and 

such p laces a re  now c lear  t ha t  those repor ts ,  those news 

repor ts  were  accura te  tha t  those journa l i s ts  d id  do  the 

work  tha t  –  in  a  p roper  way.    

So  they probab ly  fee l  v ind ica ted  but ,  I  mean,  i t  i s  a  

b i t te r  sweet  exper ience tha t  a l l  these th ings came out  in  

2016 and i t  i s  on ly  now in  2020 tha t  they have been 

vent i la ted  in  pub l i c  in  a  fo rum which  is  c red ib le  and the  

peop le  are  coming out  to  say yes,  there  was a  TLM 

inscr ip t ion  on  th is  bank and there  is  c lea r ly  mon ies  20 

demanded th is  s ide  and  Mr  Montana  is  asked fo r  money  

and then he says I  w i l l  pay  tomorrow and then money is  

depos i ted  there  and then the  payment  i s  made.    

So to  d raw tha t  –  now I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i t  wou ld 

have taken the  po l i ce  and invest i ga tors  a  long t ime f rom 
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2016 to  ge t  to  tha t  po in t  where  you can c lear l y  see what  

has happened.   I  mean,  PRASA has had to  spend mi l l ions  

l i t iga t ing  aga ins t  peop le  who have done i t  wrong and those  

peop le  who were  us ing  the  money coming f rom PRASA to  

de fend themse lves in  the  l i t iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  to  make i t  worse  –  and  th ink  as  Mr  

Mole fe  was say ing ,  on  the  one s ide  PRASA has  had to 

l i t i ga te  aga ins t  peop le  tha t  a l leged ly  were  engaged in  

cor rup t ion  and tha t  money cor rup t  the  f raud in  PRASA and 

those peop le  use tha t  money to  f igh t  PRASA bu t  PRASA 10 

has had to  a lso  l i t iga te  aga ins t  the  Hawks.   PRASA goes to  

the  Hawks and the  SAPS and say go  and ca tch  them.   

There  they are ,  here  i s  the  ev idence,  here  i s  a  comple te  –  

ca tch  them,  there  i s  c r ime here .   The Hawks do not  seem 

to  do  much unt i l  PRASA says le t  us  go  to  cour t  to  fo rce  the  

Hawks to  do  the i r  job  and what  do  the  Hawks do?   They  

oppose tha t ,  they  f igh t  w i th  PRASA.   What  k ind  o f  th ing  is  

tha t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Mr  D ing iswayo,  jus t  so  tha t  I  unders tand,  20 

a t  the  Apr i l  mee t ing  w i th  the  Hawks w i th  Genera l  Khana 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    One second,  when we f in ish  here ,  I  w i l l  

want  to  see you Mr  Son i  and Ms Langata(?)  and the  

invest iga to rs  tha t  a re  a t tached to  the  PRASA work  s t ream 
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so  Mr  Oe l le rman must  no t  go  away.   I f  he  is  a round .   Or  i f  

he  is  no t  a round maybe somebody can send h im 

in fo rmat ion  to  say he  shou ld  be  he re  when we f in ish .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  we w i l l  do  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now I  jus t  want  to  unders tand,  one o f  the 

mat te rs  –  in  fac t  the  main  mat te r  tha t  was d i scussed was  

the  Swi fambo cr im ina l  case.   But  was S iyangena d iscussed 

a t  tha t  meet ing  as  we l l ,  a t  the  Apr i l  meet ing?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    In  my reco l lec t ion  i t  was.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  the  d i f fe rence is  in  regard  to  

Swi fambo they appo in ted  the  ass is tance tha t  Werksmans 

was prov id ing  bu t  they re fused to  do  tha t  in  regard  to  the  

S iyangena mat te r.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson .   Wel l ,  

sor ry,  Cha i r,  sor ry.   I t  i s  s l igh t l y  d i f fe ren t .   A t  tha t  meet ing  

Genera l  Khana under took tha t  the  appo in tment  tha t  was 

made to  Howar th  on  the  Swi fambo case w i l l  be  made to 

them to  dea l  w i th  the  S iyangena case.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  he was say ing  he  w i l l  use  the  same 20 

peop le  fo r  the  S iyangena invest iga t ion  as  we l l?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  PRASA must  pay fo r  i t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t  w i l l  i n  the  sense fund 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The same ar range wou ld  app ly.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    The same ar range and a f te r  tha t  

meet ing ,  we –  PRASA i ssued a  l e t te r  to  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  the 

ac t ing  CEO was Mr  Nath i  Khena.   He i ssued a  le t te r  to  say 

to  Howar th  tha t  PRASA wi l l  cove r  the i r  fees,  they must  

ass is t  the  Hawks.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  tha t  appo in tment  was never  made by  10 

the  Hawks.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  i t  was never  made.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you get  to  know why i t  was not  

made?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  d id  never  –  th is  i s  one o f  the  th ings,  

Cha i r,  tha t  we were  compla in ing  about  a f te r  the  meet ing  o f  

Apr i l  and I  th ink  i n  the  response tha t  we sent  to  the  Hawks 

la te r  tha t  year  to  the i r  le t te r,  we a lso  inc luded tha t  to  say 

th is  i s  what  –  th is  i s  the  impress ion  we got  f rom th is  

meet ing  and i t  jus t  never  happened.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And now we are  ta lk ing  about  the  le t te r  

wh ich  you to ld  us  about  wh ich  was respond ing  to  Genera l  

Khana ’s  le t te r.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    These are  the  th ings you dea l t  w i th  in  
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the  le t te r.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now d id  Genera l  Khana ever  respond to  

your  le t te r?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He never  responded? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  he  d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  f rom what  you sa id  ear l ie r  i t  seems 

to  me tha t  the  content  o f  your  le t te r  was such tha t  i t  ca l led  

fo r  a  response i f  he  d id  no t  ag ree w i th  the  po in ts  you were  10 

mak ing  there  because there ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  par t  o f  

what  you were  say ing  is ,  you peop le  cannot  s top  the 

invest iga t ion  jus t  because o f  wha t  Mr  Mamabolo  says in  

te rms o f  lega l  conc lus ions.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r,  and tha t  was 

the  expected –  we were  expect ing  one o f  two outcomes,  

e i ther  a  response  or  some …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ac t ion . ,  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Ac t ion  in  te rms o f  fu r ther ing  the  

invest iga t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i f  they  d id  no t  respond but  they 

cont inued w i th  the  invest iga t ion  then you cou ld  see tha t  

they were  cont inu ing .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ld  no t  m ind then not  respond ing .   
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Then tha t  i s  f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  wou ld  be  a  response in  ac t ion  and  

not  in  –  by  way o f  a  le t te r.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  they  were  no t  go ing  to  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Do anyth ing  then they  shou ld  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  they  are  go ing  to  main ta in  the i r  s tance 

desp i te  what  you sa id  in  your  le t te r  then you expected 10 

them to  respond to  your  a rguments .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  they d id  no t  do .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Which  they d id  no t  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   To  th is  day.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  yes ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  fa r  as  you know.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    To  th is  day,  Cha i r,  because tha t  i s  par t  

o f  the  reason why  the  board  dec ided to  launch a  mandamus  20 

to  compel  them to  do  the i r  work ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now Mr  D ing iswayo in  your  a f f idav i t  you  

re fer  to  the  a f f idav i t  made by  Ms  Ngoye in  October  las t  

year.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    I f  you  look a t  paragraph . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:    S ix .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   Now can I  jus t  ask  you th is ,  you ’ve  

read he r  a f f idav i t ?  

MR DINGISWAYO:  Yes.     

ADV SONI  SC:    And you ag ree w i th  what  she says inso fa r  

as  she ta lks  abou t  you?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Jus t  now you then say,  bu t  there  are  two 10 

mat te rs  you want  to  d iscuss and i t ’s  no t  surpr i s ing ,  g iven 

your  ev idence tha t  one o f  them concerns a  company 

invo lv ing  Mr  Roy Mood ley,  tha t ’s  Prod igy  and the  o ther  

concern ,  S iyaya ,  the  company  invo lved invo lv ing  Mr  

Mabunda?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Le t ’s  dea l  w i th  the  Prod igy  mat te r,  you ’ve  

dea l t  w i th  i t  qu i te  ex tens ive l y  in  your  a f f idav i t  bu t  i f  you  

cou ld  –  we can go th rough what  you say  was wrong w i th  

th is  mat te r  and how i t  ended fo r  you,  bu t  I ’ l l  l ead – I ’m 20 

jus t ,  sor t  o f  p resent ing  the  pane l .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r  a round March/February  –  March 

2015,  I  rece ived  a  request ,  so  what  happens is  tha t  i f  

anyone in  the  bus iness requ i res  lega l  serv ices  they come 

to  me as the  Genera l  Manager  o f  lega l  serv ices  and  then I  
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dec ide  what  I ’m  go ing  to  do ,  whe ther  I ’m  go ing  to  do  the  

ins t ruc t ion  o r  maybe ask one o f  my co l leagues to  ass is t  

w i th  i t .   So  I  rece ived th i s  request  f rom a  Mr  Sydney 

Khuzwayo who is  in  the  Supp ly  Cha in  Management  D iv i s ion  

o f  PRASA.   The ins t ruc t ion  …[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th i s  i s  about  when,  jus t  to  ge t  the  t ime 

f rames?  

MR DINGISWAYO:  February /March 2015.     

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh February /March 2015,  ja  okay.    

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  so  I  rece ive  th i s  ins t ruc t ion ,  the  10 

ins t ruc t ion  i s ,  we  have th is  cont rac t  be tween PRASA and  

Prod igy,  th is  cont rac t  contempla tes  the  t ra in ing  o f  3000 

PRASA employees on customer  serv i ces .   We have –  the  

cont rac t ,  I  th ink  i t  was fo r  th ree  years ,  th is  cont rac t  has  

now lapsed but  we have not  t ra ined 3000 we have t ra ined  

jus t  over  2000 so  can you ass is t  us  to  f ina l i se  tha t  scope 

o f  work  so  tha t  we can –  because I  th ink  a t  tha t  t ime,  

payment  cou ld  no t  be  made w i thout  a  cont rac t .   So when  

you enter  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  cont rac t  on  the  SAP sys tem or  

on  the  f inance sys tem you had to  en ter  tha t  length  o f  the  20 

cont rac t ,  so  once i t  lapses then requ is i t ions  fo r  payment  

w i l l  no t  happen and what  was exp la ined to  me was tha t  

there  has –  the  par t ies  have been cont inu ing  w i th  the  work ,  

no tw i ths tand ing  tha t  the  cont rac t  has lapsed but  now they 

are  hav ing  prob lems wi th  payment .   So,  I  sa id ,  okay,  as  i s  
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normal  g ive  me the  SCM f i le  so  tha t  I  have a  be t te r  

unders tand ing  o f  what  i s  go ing  on  here .   So I  look  a t  the  

SCM f i le…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  does  SCM f i le  conta in ,  the  

cont rac t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  so  the  SCM f i le  w i l l  con ta in  a l l  

the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  has led  to  the  on  board ing  o f  the  

serv i ce  prov ide r  fo r  tha t  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So ,  whatever  –  however  they were  10 

procured and a l l  o f  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay so  i t  w i l l  g ive  you in fo rmat ion  

tha t  w i l l  te l l  you  whethe r  the  cont rac t  i s  jus t i f ied ,  whethe r  

there  was a  need  fo r  th is  cont rac t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And how the  cont rac t  –  what  p rocesses 

were  fo l lowed to  conc lude the  cont rac t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  you asked fo r  tha t  f i l e?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Be fore  you go on  jus t  so  tha t  we or ien ta te  

ourse l ves,  th is  i s  the  mat te r  you dea l  w i th  f rom paragraph 

14 o f  your  a f f idav i t ,  wou ld  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So ,  there  are  o ther  mat te rs  tha t  a re  dea l t  
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w i th  bu t  they ’ re  in  a  sense,  per iphera l  to  the  ma in  i ssue  

and I  thought  I  wou ld  jus t  ind ica te  to  you,  where  p rec i se l y  

Mr  D ing iswayo is  lead ing  ev idence f rom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  tha t ’s  f ine .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So  Cha i r  –  so  in  te rms  o f  jus t  

o r ien ta t ing  myse l f  I  look  a t  th is  f i l e  to  see what  happened,  

I  come across a  le t te r  tha t  i s  da ted  10 June 2010 wh ich  

seems to  be  the  genes is  o f  th is  re la t ionsh ip .   Tha t  le t te r,  

Cha i r,  i s  marked as  MMD3 and is  on  page 138.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The page number?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    138.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson –  be fore  you go on,  jus t  

aga in  or i en ta t ion  so  you w i l l  reca l l ,  you  might  reca l l  when 

Mr  Ho le le  gave ev idence th is  le t te r  came up.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay we l l  I  can  see tha t  i t  has  

a t t rac ted  my a t ten t ion  every  t ime I  see i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r  i t ’s  a  b i t  o f  a  confus ing  le t te r  bu t  20 

how –  i t  seems tha t  what  i t  sought  to  do  was to  say,  as  

Prod igy  we have a  grant  f rom the  Serv i ces  SETA o f  I  th ink  

–  we l l  the  numbers  are  a  b i t  a lso  confus ing  bu t  a t  the   end  

i t  seems as i f  the  number  tha t  was ag reed  to  was 

R10.8mi l l ion  so  we have a  g rant  o f  R10.8mi l l ion  fo r  t ra in ing  
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purposes now you have peop le  tha t  need t ra in ing .   So,  

what  we can do i s ,  we can use th is  g ran t  fo r  t ra in ing  your  

peop le  you c la im the  grant ,  so  i t ’s  a  –  fo r  PRASA i t  

becomes a  zero  sum,  you pay Prod igy  fo r  t ra in ing  and then  

you c la im f rom tha t  g ran t  tha t  they have and the  o ther  

th ing  is  tha t  the re ’s  a  –  I  th ink  the re  was someth ing  around 

the  fac t  tha t  P rod igy  was acc red i ted  to  do  someth ing  ca l led  

recogn i t ion  o f  p r i o r  learn ing…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry  Mr  D ing iswayo,  may I  jus t  p lace  on  

record ,  you are  read ing  f rom a  document  now,  am I  r igh t?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    That ’s  MMD3 s tar t ing  a t  page 138 and 

f in ish ing  a t  page 139.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now what  i s  tha t ,  cou ld  you descr ibe  i t  fo r  

the  record  so  tha t  when the  Cha i rperson is  look ing  a t  th is  

la te r,  he  knows what  he  is  look ing  a t .  Now th is  i s  a  

le t te r…[ in tervenes] .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  i t ’s  a  le t te r  f rom Prod igy,  i t  i s  

addressed to  Mr  Montana a t  PRASA,  i t ’s  s igned  by  the  20 

D i rec tor  a t  P rod igy,  a  cer ta in  Ner i shn i  Shunmugam.   

ADV SONI  SC:    And the  da te?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    The date  o f  the  le t te r  i s  10  June 2010.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry  you were  exp la in ing  what  th is  le t te r  

i s  about .  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  now Cha i r  on  page 139,  the  th i rd  

l ine ,  the  sentence there  says,  

“These in te rvent ions w i l l  a lso  inc lude recogn i t ion  o f  

p r io r  l earn ing  and we ’ l l  a l ign  to  t es t  c r i t i ca l  sk i l l s  

requ i red  by  PRASA” .  

 So,  i t  appeared tha t  –  and i f  I  reca l l  I  may have  

seen,  a lso ,  in  th is  SCM f i le  a  submiss ion  to  Mr  Montana to 

say tha t  PRASA wou ld  l i ke  to  engage Prod igy  by  way o f  a  

conf inement  because they are  the  on ly  peop le  who a re  

accred i ted  to  do  recogn i t ion  o f  p r io r  learn ing .   So tha t  was  10 

the  reason fo r  the  conf inement ,  tha t  you won ’ t  be  ab le  to  

ge t  another  pe rson to  do  th is  fo r  you.   So,  you w i l l  see  tha t  

the  –  Mr  Montana has made a  no te  on  tha t  le t te r,  there  on  

page 138 and he  seems qu i te  exc i ted  about  the  proposa l  

and g ives an  i ns t ruc t ion  tha t  the  necessary  documents  

shou ld  be  prepared so  tha t  the  re la t ionsh ip  can be  

es tab l i shed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  see tha t  he  seems to  have – the  

le t te r  was wr i t ten  on  the  10 t h  o f  June 2010.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And he s igned tha t  hand-wr i t ten  no te  on  

the  10 t h  o f  June,  the  year  doesn ’ t  appear  on  my copy but  i t  

has  to  be  2010.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  don ’ t  th ink  tha t  he  cou ld  have  wa i ted  
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un t i l  i t  was 10 June o f  another  yea r,  so  i t  has  to  be  2010.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  means i t  was wr i t ten  on  the  10 t h  o f  

June 2010,  p robab ly  de l i vered by  hand or  so ,  de l i vered to  

h im say day and  same day he made tha t  no te  there  and 

s igned to  accept  i t ,  to  say  i t  shou ld  be  accepted,  ac tua l l y  

no t  to  say i t  shou ld  be  accepted,  he  says,  i t  i s  accepted.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So ,  then there ’s  a  –  then there ’s  the  10 

fo l low ing document  wh ich  is  MMD4…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  know tha t  we have dea l t  w i th  th is  

document  –  t h is  le t te r  be fore  bu t  bas ica l l y  Prod igy  says,  

f rom what  you say,  says we have got  money tha t  we – tha t  

can be used fo r  t ra in ing ,  i s  tha t  r igh t ,  i s  tha t  what  you ’ re  

say ing?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you have peop le  tha t  need  to  be 

t ra ined,  we  can prov ide  the  t ra in ing  bu t  then i t  says ,  i t  

says ,  you w i l l  pay  us  and c la im back f rom tha t  sou rce  tha t  20 

we ’ re  ta lk ing  about  bu t  tha t  w i l l  be  a  d i f fe ren t  sou rce ,  no t  

them,  i s  tha t  so?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  w i l l  be  the  SETA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  w i l l  be  the  SETA? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  they make i t  look  l i ke  you won ’ t  

pay?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  i t ’s  a  zero  sum.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  you won ’ t  pay,  ja ,  so  why no t  g ive  i t  

to  us .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And we ’ l l  a lso  do  recogn i t ion  o f  p r io r  

learn ing  fo r  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And l i ke  I  say,  I  th ink  there ’s  a  

submiss ion  tha t  I  came across a t  the  t ime tha t  ac tua l l y  10 

sa id  –  s ta ted  tha t ,  tha t  i s  the  reason why –  the  reason fo r  

the  conf inement ,  i s  the  acc red i ta t ion  fo r  –  so ,  and then  

there ’s  a  contac t  tha t  i s  conc luded,  Cha i r,  wh ich  is  a 

par tnersh ip  agreement  wh ich  s ta r ts  on  page 141 and runs  

to  152.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And tha t ’s  MMD4.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  MMD4,  yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    What ’s  the  essence o f  the  agreement ,  in  

o ther  words,  wha t  ob l iga t ions were  there  on  Prod igy  and 

what  ob l iga t ions were  there  on  PRASA? 20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    PRASA was supposed to  p rov ide  300  

o f  i t s  employees fo r  t ra in ing  by  Prod igy  a t  a  cost  o f  

R10.8mi l l ion .   You w i l l  see ,  Cha i r,  on  page 141 there ’s  –  a t  

the  bo t tom the re  are  two bu l le t  po in ts  and the  one ta lks  

about  the  prov is ion  o f  g ran t  fund ing  va lued a t  tha t  fo r  300  
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learnersh ip  wh ich  Prod igy  has secured f rom the  Serv i ces  

SETA and the  PRASA appo in t s  –  I ’m  not  sure  what  ac tua l l y  

happened a t  th is  po in t ,  I ’m  jus t  look ing  a t  the  documents  

as  they come to  me but  the  impress ion  tha t  I  fo rm is  tha t  

th is  was the  in ten t ion ,  th is  i s  what  had been done.   So,  

Prod igy  –  how Prod igy  pu ts  the  foo t  in  the  door  i s  by  

say ing ,  I  have th is  g ran t  and I  am accred i ted ,  there fore  

le t ’s  do  a  cont rac t .   A cont rac t  i s  then p repared and  s igned 

and I  take  i t  the i r  serv ice  is  de l i vered but  tha t ’s  fo r  300  

learners .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    And a t  a  cost  o f?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    O f  R10.8mi l l ion ,  bu t  th is  i s  no t  the  

cont rac t  tha t  was the  sub jec t  o f  my ins t ruc t ions,  le t  me 

see,  I  th ink  the  cont rac t  tha t  was the  sub jec t  o f  my  

ins t ruc t ions is  the  next  cont rac t  wh ich  i s  

MMD5…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness tha t  

cont rac t  –  par tne rsh ip  agreement  tha t  you were  –  we were  

look ing  a t  jus t  now,  namely  MMD4 a t  page 141 was s igned  

by,  i t  wou ld  appear,  Mr  Montana  as  CEO on beha l f  o f  20 

PRASA.   

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then there  is  a  w i tness the re  and 

the  des ignat ion  fo r  the  w i tness appears  to  be  GE – o f f i ce  

o f  GCEO.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know tha t  s ignature ,  whose 

s ignature  i s  tha t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:  I t  looks  l i ke  Mr  Ho le le ’s  s ignature .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay and you wou ld  –  a t  tha t  

t ime…[ in tervenes ] .   

MR DINGISWAYO:    He was the…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Occup ied  tha t  pos i t ion?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  yes  you say then the  cont rac t  10 

tha t  you were  dea l ing  w i th  i s  no t  th is  one? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because what  was sought  was –  th is  one  

had lapsed?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Th i s  one had run  i t s  cou rse  and i t  

seems i t  was executed and d ischarged and the  par t ies ’ 

ob l iga t ions were  d ischarged.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  was i t  no t  the  one tha t  was 

sought  to  be  ex tended or  someth ing?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was not ,  oh  th is  was the  in i t ia l  one?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So ,  th is  i s  what  i s  g iv ing  me the  

background.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So,  I  –  I ’m  sor ry  Cha i r,  I  th ink  I ’m  –  I  

was not  co r rec t ,  i t ’s  no t  MMD5 tha t  was the  sub jec t  o f  my 

ins t ruc t ions i t  i s  MMD6.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay and MMD6 appears  a t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

MR DINGISWAYO:    A t  page 170.  

CHAIRPERSON:    170 yes h ’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And runs to  177.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i f  we are  go ing  to  ta lk  about  MMD6,  10 

i t  –  wou ld  i t  no t  be  more  log i ca l  t o  ta lk  f i rs t  about  MMD5 

un less  there ’s  no th ing  to  ta lk  about  on  MMD5? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    We can –  we l l  i t ’s  jus t  fo r  background 

purposes Cha i r  because…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  too ,  had run  i t s  cou rse?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    MMD5…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I t ’s  a t  page 154.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  I ’m  jus t  t ry ing  to . . .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I sn ’ t  th is  the  addendum to  the  or ig ina l  

cont rac t?  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  now MMD5 is  –  I  th ink ,  an  

in te res t ing  document ,  i f  you ’ re  on  page  156 there  is  –  a t  

the  bo t tom there  are  paragraphs tha t  a re  numbered 1  to  3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Now you ’ l l  see  number  1  i s  
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imp lementa t ion  o f  PRASA Customer  Serv ice  –  PRASA My 

s ta t ion ,  f ron t l ine  worke r,  p rogramme,  3000 employees,  5  

days o f  t ra in ing  and 5  days o f  workp lace mentorsh ip  and  

coach ing .   Now the  way th i s  looks,  MMD5 depar ts  f rom 

MMD4 and in t roduces a  new serv i ce ,  the  t ra in ing  on  

Customer  Serv i ces  and then the  second one is  another  

t ra in ing  on  a l l  Customer  Serv ices  o f  6000 employees and  

then cont inua l  p ro fess iona l  deve lopment  o f  t ra in ing  fo r  

s ta t ion  and co r r idor  management .   So those are  the  th ings  

tha t  PRASA and Prod igy  a re  go ing  to  have a  re la t ionsh ip  10 

on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H ’m.   

MR DINGISWAYO:    So ,  the  one tha t  i s  aga ins t  the  

parag raph marked number  1  a t  the  bo t tom becomes MMD6,  

the  t ra in ing  o f  the  3000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And you w i l l  see  tha t  i t ’s  on  page 170.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    You w i l l  see  tha t  i t  ca l l s  th i s  the  f i rs t  

phase under  paragraph 2 ,  the  second  numbered pa rag raph 20 

i t  says ,  

“The f i r s t  phase  o f  the  th ree  phase par tnersh ip  

agreement  i s  fo r  a  m in imum of  3000 PRASA 

employees commencing  1s t  September  2011 and to  

be  comple ted  by  31s t  March  2014” .  
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And i f  you go fu r ther  and you w i l l  come to  page 175 and  

there ’s  a  tab le  tha t ’s  there  on  page 175 under  the  head ing ,  

“ invo ic ing  schedu le ,  phase one o f  th ree ,  PRASA my s ta t ion  

programme”  and the  next  page wh ich  is  176 you ’ l l  see  the  

to ta l  cos t  and under  the  head ing ,  “number  o f  lea rners”  i s  

3000 and the  to ta l  cos t  inc lud ing  VAT is  R82 080 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now for  wh ich  year  o r  what  was the  

dura t ion  fo r  th is  one?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    The dura t i on ,  Cha i r,  i s  where  we 

s tar ted  i t  i s…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    2013…[ in tervenes] .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   On page 171 the  second un-numbered 

paragraph under  head ing ,  “number  2” ,  the  second l ine  o f  

tha t  i s  1  September  2011 to  31  March 2014.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i s  tha t  four  years  or  th ree  years?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t ’s  jus t  ove r  th ree  years ,  I  th ink  i t ’s  

about  th ree  and a  ha l f  years .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  th ink  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now is  th is…[ in tervenes] .  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    No two and a  ha l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Two and a  ha l f?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Apo log ies  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i s  th is  s t i l l  p rov is ion  o f  t ra in ing  to  

make PRASA employees to  enab le  them to  prov ide  good  
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serv i ce?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So  Cha i r,  we ’ve  moved now f rom what  

seems to  have been recogn i t ion  o f  p r io r  learn ing ,  wh ich  is  

the  3000 the  zero  sum game o f  the  –  I ’ ve  go t  a  g rant ,  g ive  

me peop le  to  t ra in  and you c la im back f rom tha t  g ran t  and 

–  wh ich  is  the  reason why we have the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

Prod igy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes tha t ’s  what  I  want  to  unders tand,  I  

want  to  see where  we s ta r t  to  have someth ing  d i f fe ren t ,  

remember  you s ta r ted  w i th  the  or ig ina l .  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The le t te r.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then you  came wi th  the  or ig ina l  

agreement ,  the  par tne rsh ip  agreement .    

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  was ta lk ing  about  the  SETA 

money.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  wh ich  was based on the  SETA 20 

money.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Then there  was another  agreement  

wh ich ,  I  th ink ,  we d idn ’ t  ta lk  much about  then the re  was  

another  one.   So  I  want  to  f ind  ou t  whethe r  we are  s t i l l  –  
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the  bas is  fo r  a l l  th is  i s  s t i l l  the  SETA money or  i f  i t  i s  no 

longer  the  SETA money th is  i s  t he  f i rs t  t ime we  are  no  

longer  dea l ing  w i th  the  SETA money or  whether  any o f  the  

prev ious agreements  were  a l ready no longer  based on the  

SETA money,  tha t ’s  what  I  want  to  es tab l i sh .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So ,  the  prev ious one –  i t  seems to  me,  

Cha i r,  the  prev ious one i s  sor t  o f  an  umbre l la  and i t  –  we l l  

i t  serves two purposes…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The par tnersh ip  one.  

MR DINGISWAYO :    I t  depar ts  f rom SETA and s ta r ts  a  new 10 

re la t ionsh ip ,  a l together…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  MMD4 –  MMD5…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    MMD4 –  5  sor ry,  the  one tha t  i s  ca l led  

addendum to  par tnersh ip  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So  tha t  one…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That ’s  where  the  depar tu re  f rom the  

SETA s tar ts?   

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  one  s tar ts  now in t roduc ing  

customer  se rv i ces  t ra in ing  fo r  –  f i rs t  phase  is  3000 

employees;  second phase is  6000 employees and the  –  

then cont inua l  p ro fess iona l  deve lopment .   There ’s  no  – i t  

doesn ’ t  ta lk  abou t  money or  anyth ing  and programmes and  
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th ings l i ke  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Where  we s ta r t  ta lk ing  

about…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry  be fore  you go there ,  I ’m jus t  t ry ing  

to  see i f  there  i s  a  re la t ionsh ip  be tween – we have the  

par tnersh ip  agreement  as  MMD4.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Then we have MMD5 and i f  you  look a t  

page 154,  what  i s  th is  document  ca l led?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t ’s  ca l led  an  addendum to  par tnersh ip  

agreement  Cha i r.  

MR DINGISWAYO:  But  that  i s  a  misnomer i t  has – in  my 

v iew i t  has absolu te ly  noth ing to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  terms of  the content .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   In  terms of  the content  wi th  what  was 

envisaged in  the par tnership agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You th ink the –  the heading or  t i t le  is  

there to  mis lead or  maybe not  in ten t ional ly?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   No Chai r  I  th ink i t  is  in tent ional .   I  th ink  20 

– ear l ier  I  sa id the f i rs t  one was – was the foot  in  the door.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Now when now the door  i s  open.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We can get  you to  do other  th ings.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Seems – anyth ing is  possib le .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  on the face of  i t  might  be –  i t  must  

look l i ke we are s t i l l  cont inu ing.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   L ike i t  is  a  cont inuat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Par tnership.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   So i f  th is  was a new agreement  the f i rs t  

agreement  was a conf ine – was based on conf inement .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   I f  th is  was a new agreement  you would  10 

have to fo l low Sect ion 217.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is  correct  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   But  th is  is  now as the Chai rperson has 

pointed out  s imply t i t led Addendum but  in  effect  has noth ing  

to  do wi th  the previous agreement .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  i s  correct  Chai r  i t  has noth ing to  

do wi th  the previous agreement .   I t  has noth ing to  do wi th  

the rat ionale fo r  the previous agreement  and i t  does not  –  i t  

has noth ing to  do wi th  the serv ices contemplated  in  the  

previous agreement .   But  I  am say ing – I  am cal l ing  i t  sor t  20 

of  an umbrel la  because i t  now star ts  a new th ing of  

customer serv ices .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.    

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai rperson.  

ADV SONI SC:   Can I  then ask you i f  you look at  MMD6.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   Page 170.   What  is  that  document  ca l led? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  is  ca l led an Annexure.   I t  is  –  no i t  i s  

ca l led Annexure A2 of  Addendum to  Par tnership Agreement .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   And when is  that  agreement  entered 

in to?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SONI SC:   I f  you look at  page 177 you wi l l  see i t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   I t  is  dated 21 October 2012 i t  is  

s igned by Mr Montana on that  date.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   So the annexure  to  the agreement  – n sorry  

and i f  I  can ask you could look at  page 168 that  is  the date  

on which the previous agreement ,  the addendum was 

entered in to.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   What  i s  that  date? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  is  30 August  2011.  

ADV SONI SC:   So the annexure is  entered in to more  than a  

year  la te r?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  20 

ADV SONI SC:   So that  just  pu ts those agreements in  

context  or  a  purpor ted re la t ionship  between those 

agreements in  context?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   Chai r  the – th is  – one of  the  

th ings that  is  s t r i k ing about  MMD6 is  on page 175 under the  
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heading No 4 Learner  Cost  o f  PRASA My Stat ion Program.   

The f i rs t  unnumbered per  learner  cost  o f  the program is  

R24 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry d id  you say page 175? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   175.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes that  is  –  oh  the Learner  Cost  o f  the 

PRASA My Stat ion Program? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The My Stat ion Program was that  

someth ing that  was star ted by PRASA or  d id  they come up 10 

wi th  i t  as par t  o f  what  – of  g iv ing a name to what  they 

wanted to  do? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes Chai r  they just  gave a name.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They came up wi th  i t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Who? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Prodigy? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Prodigy – I  do  not  know who came up 

wi th  the name Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Okay,  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  i t  was just  ca l led My Stat ion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   You say the per  learner  cost  was R24 000.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   That  means fo r  each learner.   What  d id  the 

– in  te rms of  days and so on what  d id  the – the program 
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enta i l?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  am not  sure i f  i t  is  here on MMD6 but  

you wi l l  recal l  tha t  i t  is  a  f ive-day course.   I  th ink we saw i t  

on MMD5.   I t  is  a  f ive-day course  and – and f ive days of  

workplace mentorship and coaching.   Now in  response to 

Counsel ’s  quest ion Chai r  may I  ask you to go to  page 172 

and there is  a  tab le there and you wi l l  see on the – I  th ink i t  

is  the – what  is  i t?   Is  i t  the four th co lumn which says:  

Develop Customised PRASA My S tat ion Ski l l s .   And i t  w i l l  

speak – i t  ta lks  about  t ransport  NQF1 and professional  10 

dr iver  NQF3 and t ransport  passenger serv ices NQF3.   Now 

th is  i s  an accord ing to  your  qual i f i cat ions standards that  a re  

issued by the qual i f icat ion ’s  author i ty.   And I  am drawing 

your  at tent ion to  th is  because as  far  as I  know NQF4 is  

matr i c .   The reason I  am – I  was drawing your  at tent ion to  

that  p r ice i s  that  you are here wi th  a course on customer  

serv ices which is  p i tched at  a  level  that  is  less  than a  

matr ic  for  f i ve  days and i t  i s  R24 000.00 per  learner.   I  th ink  

i t  is  the most  expensive customer  serv ices t ra in ing  in  the 

wor ld .   But  Chai r  so what  then causes concern for  me as I  20 

look at  th is  t ransact ion is  that  wh ich the Chai r  has noted 

s imply sta r t ing the re la t ionship on one basis and coming up 

wi th  a conf inement  because that  is  a  deviat ion f rom the 

normal  p rocess and then s imply in t roducing another  process 

mid-st ream – sorry another  serv ice  mid-st ream which is  not  
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re la ted to  why you conf ined in  the f i rs t  p lace.   So I  then 

ra ised th is  as a  concern to  the co l league to say,  th is  is  

i r regular  because I  th ink there is  so many people who can 

do customer serv ices t ra in ing.   There is  noth ing  unique 

about  customer serv ices t ra in ing  and I  th ink i t  is  too  

expensive.   I  mean I  th ink the pr ices are much,  much less 

than – especia l ly  for  just  f ive days.   But  I  d id  not  –  I  d id  not  

want  to  get  in to that .  I  sa id to  the co l leagues I  th ink  th is  is  

i r regular  and I  would prefer  not  to  be involved in  i t .   I  wrote 

there an emai l  to  Mr Montana to  say I  th ink that  he may 10 

have been mis led  to  enter  in to – for  th is  agreement  to  be  

concluded.   Sorry  I  wrote that  le t te r  –  that  emai l  to  the then 

Chief  Procurement  Off icer  a  Mr Joseph Phangula to  say I  

th ink that  the Group CEO was mis led because the  

re la t ionship sta r ts  as one th ing and then i t  just  out  o f  

nowhere morphs in to another.   I  was not  supposed to do  

that .   An – Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id you get  a  response in  wr i t ing? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   From the – so the – i f  I  remember wel l  

the Group Chief  Procurement  Off icer  sa id he wi l l  b r ing th is  20 

to  the at tent ion of  Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  –  so she sent  me a shor t  response 

that  just  says someth ing a long those l ines.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:   So af ter  some t ime and I  th ink at  some 

point  I  th ink I  d id  not  put  my foot  down at  that  po int .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  a f te r  some t ime,  I  sa id guys th is  i s  –  

I  am not  go ing to  be involved in  th is  because i t  is  i r regular  

so p lease do not  br ing th is  th ing here.   I  have to ld  you i t  is  

i r regular  and you ins is t  that  I  should do th is .   I  am not  –  I  

am not  go ing to  do someth ing of  th is  nature.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And then there  was an emai l  that  was 10 

then coming f rom Mr Montana – apo logies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  thought  you wanted to  say someth ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So an emai l  came f rom Mr Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  do not  know i f  i t  is  here.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes i t  is  a t  page 187.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   1?  

ADV SONI SC:   187.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   187.  

ADV SONI SC:   I t  is  in  MD – MMD8.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Okay.   Yes so that  i s  –  that  is  the emai l  

that  was….  

CHAIRPERSON:   We do not  have the one that  you sent  to  
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the Group Chief  Procurement  Off icer  because i f  we do – oh  

no i t  is  not  we do not  have i t  here.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   You know – no Chai r  I  do not  have i t  

here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  can be found? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  can be found Chai r.   I  had requested 

the invest igators to  request  that  I  be g iven access.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the premises.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   To my laptop and my off i ce.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And I  do not  th ink anyth ing came out  o f  

that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  th ink i t  should be – a t tempts  

should be made to f ind i t  and – and I  th ink nobody is  go ing 

to  res is t  i f  we ask that  he be a l lowed to have h is  laptop in  

order  to  assis t  the commission.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes so – so  but  you are referr ing us  20 

now to the one at  page 187? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  is  an emai l  that  is  f rom Mr Montana.   

I t  is  addressed to  Ms Nonhlanhla Kondowe,  Fani  Dingiswayo 
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and S idney Khuzwayo and then i t  is  o ther  people are copied 

there inc lud ing my manager Mathongene.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who was or  is  Nonhlanhla Kondowe?  

What  posi t ion was she hold ing? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Nonhlanhla  Kondowe is  in  the HR 

department .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   She – she was the person who was 

real ly  running wi th  th is  pro ject .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   And I  remember in  one of  my 

d iscussions wi th  her  I  sa id but  the  end user  i s  supposed to 

be ra i l  –  the ra i l  d iv is ion no HR.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Why am I  ta lk ing to  you? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Because I  sa id  to  her  I  th ink one of  the 

problems that  cost  the s i tuat ion where you f ind ing  

yourselves in  is  that  the end user  i s  not  the one needing the  

d iscussions and te l l ing you I  can make so many f ront l ine 20 

stuff  avai lab le at  such a t ime so  that  you have a  proper  

schedule of  the t ra in .   But  she was what  I  would  consider 

the champion of  th is  pro ject .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   In  essence what  does that  emai l  say Mr 
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D ingiswayo? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   The essence of  the emai l  Chai r  is  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  th ink I  know i t  has been read in to 

the record but  I  th ink we may as  wel l  have i t  read again  

because i t  is  qu i te  important .   Just  read that  emai l  f rom Mr  

Lucky Montana to  Ms Nonhlanhla Kondowe and others.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  reads Chai r.  

“Dear Nonhlanhla there i s  no th ing wrong wi th  the  10 

appointment  of  Prodigy nor  wi th  the extension of  the i r  

cont racts.   I  am not  surpr ised I  th ink that  i s  what  i t  i s  

supposed to say I  am not  surpr ised because th is  is  par t  o f  a  

much b igger  agenda which has ta rgeted cer ta in  cont racts. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  hang on before you proceed.   When 

he says th is  – I  am not  surpr ised because th is  is  par t  o f  a  

much b igger  agenda.   What  do you understand th is  to  refer  

to?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  –  Chai r  I  have – I  do not  know.   I  th ink  

af ter  in  November – in  December and January – in  20 

December 2014 and January 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Mr Montana was on leave.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   When he came back f rom leave.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   He had a lo t  o f  what  I  th ink was some 

paranoia and some – he was unset t led.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   He fe l t  –  he fe l t  ext remely unset t led.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Because before th is  there  was a  

meet ing of  what  is  ca l led the extended exco.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And I  mean I  do not  – because of  my – 10 

because I  am a  jun io r  employee I  do not  go to  those 

meet ings.   But  an  extended exco I  was inv i ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   In  that  meet ing there was th is  long 

about  two-hour compla int  by Mr Montana compla in ing about  

people who have got  agendas and that  he  is  go ing to  

expose them and whatever.   So I  was real ly  shocked 

because I  have – I  have never  been in  a meet ing where l ike  

you have – you d iscuss the business of  the meet ing  and at  

some point  the person chai r ing the meet ing has just  a  very 20 

long speech that  he is  – he is  ta lk ing and everyone is  qu iet  

and he is  rea l l y  saying – ta lk ing about  th is  agenda that  i s  – 

that  has been launched.   He is  ta lk ing about  people that  a re 

t ry ing to  get  the favour  of  the board at  h is  expense because 

they are probably  af ter  h is  job or  someth ing l i ke that .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  was a very – i t  was a very st range 

th ing to  me I  mean I  –  l ike I  am saying I  have never  been in  

that  k ind of  a  s i tuat ion where – I  thought  maybe somebody 

wi l l  say can you… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  s top h im.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Can you te l l  us what  you are ta lk ing  

about  because everyth ing was couched in  very genera l  

terms.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Because I  cer ta in ly  fe l t  I  would want  

h im to stop or  I  –  or  be speci f ic .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Now i f  there is  somebody in  the room.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  he is  addressing then they must  

have a separate meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  i t  –  we cannot  a l l  be deta ined here 

you know and be l is ten ing to  th is  that  –  at  the t ime I  thought  20 

had absolute ly  no th ing to  do wi th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  I  rea l i sed l ike  f rom that  t ime on up 

unt i l  he le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:   That  was going  to  be repeated over  and 

over  again.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Against  employees of  PRASA and 

against  the board .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Okay cont inue.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So – so… 

CHAIRPERSON:   …[ in tervenes]  

MR DINGISWAYO:   …[ in tervenes]  was a b ig  agenda which 

has ta rgeted cer ta in  cont racts and appointments  and to  10 

pro ject  –  and to pro ject  these as being i r regular.   Some of  

the cont racts had a l ready been leaked to external  audi to rs 

and the media as  par t  o f  a  s t rategy to  d iscredi t  the  Group 

CEO and create a  c loud before he steps down at  the  end of  

the year.   And then the next  paragraph says:  

“This i s  a  wel l -co-ord inated st rategy that  s ta r ted in  

November 2014 when I  went  on leave.  I  was at  the most  

appropr ia te t ime – I  wi l l  a t  the most  appropr ia te t ime act  

against  a l l  those who are  involved in  th is  d i r t y  campaign.   

The invest igat ion  they are sta r t ing  is  un lawfu l  and par t  o f  a  20 

p lot  I  am wel l  aware of .   The exten t  o f  opportunism by some 

of  our  managers real ly  amazes me.   A manager l i ke  S idney 

Khuzwayo should  sta r t  f i rs t  by c leaning the many i r regular  

appointments he has par ty  to  wi th in  SCM which I  have been 

t ry ing to  address and even expla in ing some of  these to  the  
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o ff ice of  the Pub l ic  Protector.   Some of  the managers are  

exci ted by the new board and are feeding a l l  sor ts  o f  wrong 

in format ion so tha t  they could carry :  

I  th ink he wanted to  say:  

“Carry favour  wi th  the board.   They wi l l  be the b iggest  

losers at  the end of  th is  p rocess.   A decis ion to  par tner  wi th  

Prodigy on the t ra in ing of  customer serv ices remains sound 

and the extension of  the cont ract  is  s t i l l  in  order.   P lease 

a l low them to cont inue wi th  the i r  s t ra tegy which is  bound to 

fa i l . ”  10 

Then he says:  

“K ind Regards.   Lucky Montana. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  was your  understanding of  what  

made Mr Montana wr i te  th is  le t te r?  Having read i t  in  the 

context  o f  what  was happening what  was your  

understanding of  why he wrote th is  le t ter?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r  I  –  I  thought  that  the co l leagues 

that  I  was deal ing wi th  who in  the Prodigy mat te r  i t  –  I  

thought  they were  repor t ing back to  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   To say th is  is  the – these are the v iews 

that  are held by th is  man and now I  th ink that  a t  th is  t ime 

they had to ld  h im that  now he has sa id p lease leave me out  

o f  th is  mat te r.   And I  th ink at  the t ime I  a lso sa id i t  should 

not  come to the legal  department .   I f  –  because I  mean Mr 
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Montana has h is  own lawyer in  h is  off ice who can – who can 

do th is  work.   But  I  am very uncomfor table wi th  – wi th 

having my name associated wi th  th is  i r regular i ty.   So I  th ink 

that  he – there had been – there had been repor ts  that  had 

been sent  to  h im.  I  th ink that  –  I  th ink the reference to Mr 

S idney Khuzwayo was a def lect ion .   I  th ink that  the ent i re  

th ing was addressed to me that  is  how I  understood i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id ear l ier  on that  th is  was a  

meet ing of  the extended execut ives,  is  that  r ight?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And which you would normal ly  – wel l  you 

would normal ly  not  a t tend meet ings of  the execut ive  

commit tee.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you had been inv i ted to  th is  one.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Because i t  was an extended exco.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i t  –  ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was an extended exco.   Were there  

others who were inv i ted to  – or  in  other  words were  you the 20 

only one who made i t  to  be an extended exco or  were there  

others who – who were there who a lso cont r ibuted to  

making i t  an external  exco? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.   No I  wish  I  was the only one who 

made that  cut  Chai r  but  no I  was not .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You were not  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  The people at  my level  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Of  Genera l  Manager are inv i ted for  

extended exco’s.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For  external  exco’s.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   For  extended exco’s yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Okay.    

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  I  am saying that  th is  whole th ing 

about  S idney is  just  a  def lect ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is  a  def lect ion ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Because I  sa id ear l ie r  that  I  am a jun io r  

employee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   S idney’s posi t ion is  jun ior  to  mine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And he would not  be deal ing wi th  – only  

– he would not  be  involved in  i r regu lar  appointments.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   As someone e lse was – who is  h igher  20 

than S idney would have to  s ign off .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   On any appointments.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So I  –  I  just  thought  th is  – th is  is  just  
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someth ing that  has been put  there to  – to  h ide the fact  that  

th is  ent i re  th ing is  a  response.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  qu i te  c lear ly  – qui te  c lear ly  th is  was a 

– Mr Montana’s response to the stance taken by some which  

inc luded you that  the Prodigy cont ract  was i r regular.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Hm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  r ight?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja that  is  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  reading of  th is  correct?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  But  a t  that  s tage apar t  f rom you who 

e lse had made i t  known that  they a lso thought  that  th is  

Prodigy cont ract  was i r regular?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Wel l  in  wr i t ing I  was the only one.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You were the only  one? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   I  had – I  had d iscussed i t  wi th  – 

wi th  Ms Martha Ngoye.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Especia l ly  even at  the t ime when I  

thought  I  am not  engaging in  th is  anymore.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  am get t ing out  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   To say to  h im –  to  say to  her  th is  is  the  

stance that  I  have taken.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And I  am not  go ing to  do th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   She agreed wi th… 

CHAIRPERSON:   She agreed wi th  you.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Wi th me and I  th ink I  even – because 

we have – we have month ly  – at  the t ime we had month ly  

meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   As a department .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  th ink I  may have tab led the issue at  

the departmenta l  meet ing.   Because I  had – I  had g iven – I  

had made a number of  enqui r ies to  t ry  and see i f  there i s  

noth ing wrong wi th  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So th is  – I  thought  no,  no th is  – that  is  

f ine no fu r ther.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Now how – how long before the 18 

May 2015 which is  a  date of  th is  le t ter  had you wr i t ten to  20 

say you – th is  cont ract  was i r regular  and I  th ink you had 

wr i t ten the Group Chief  Procurement  Off icer?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How long before  that  –  that  date more or  

less? 
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MR DINGISWAYO:   A t  most  a week Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  so i t  was c lose? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  was a very t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja a very shor t  t ime.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Very shor t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   And he of  course had to ld  you that  he  

would convey to  Mr Montana your  s tance.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Now d id you get  to  know whether  Ms 

Kondowe and Nonhlanhla was the  le t ter  the sa luta t ion is  10 

Dear Nonhlanhla? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Hm.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You know i t  is  not  Dear Mr Dingiswayo.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Hm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is  Dear Nonhlanhla d id you get  to  know 

whether  Ms Kondowe had wr i t ten anyth ing to  Mr Montana 

about  the Prodigy cont ract  to  which maybe wh ich had 

prompted Mr Montana to  wr i te  to  her?  Or  is  that  someth ing 

you never  got  to  know? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   No I  never  got  to  know Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Did you know whether  Ms Kondowe 

was agreeing wi th  your  posi t ion on th is  cont ract  o r  not  a t  

that  t ime? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   No she – she never  agreed wi th  my 

posi t ion.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   She d id not  agree wi th  your  posi t ion? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   She –  but  she – d id she – was she against  

i t?   Did she ar t icu late a  d i f fe rent  posi t ion or  she never  sa id  

anyth ing? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   No Chai r  I  mean she – she never  

engaged wi th  me about  my posi t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  I  mean having checked a lso her  

conduct  a f te r  a l l  these th ings when she was work ing very  10 

hard to  – to  t ry  and make sure that  Prodigy i s  pa id.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  do not  th ink that  she –  she agreed wi th  

my – she never  expressed her  d isagreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   She never  ar t i cu lated.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Any posi t ion.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   She might  just  have carr ied out  

inst ruct ions.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  th ink – I  th ink  that  i f  I  am not  m istaken 

at  best  Chai r  what  she may have sa id is  that  look  I  mean 

Prodigy would not  know our  processes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Sor t  o f  i t  is  a  – is  an innocent  par ty  to  

th is  th ing and now they are in  th is  s i tuat ion we have put  

them in that  s i tua t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Okay.   Okay.   Thank you.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now th is let ter f rom.. .  I  mean, th is emai l  

f rom Mr Montana is dated the 18t h of  May.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   May.  

ADV SONI SC:   May.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  10 

ADV SONI SC:   What was the next  major incident  that  

happened af ter th is let ter was sent? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   On the 19t h . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SONI SC:   Of  the fol lowing day? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.    

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   On the 19t h of  May. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe actual ly before we do that .   I  see 

we are at  one minute past  four.   I  am qui te happy that  we 

cont inue . . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .up to f ive to t ry and f in ish.   I f  we. . .  i f  

that  sui ts everybody.  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  we are going onto to f ive,  maybe we 
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should take a short  break.   Mr Dingiswayo,  you are happy 

wi th cont inuing.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  am okay Chai r.   I  am on suspension.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Soni ,  [ laughs]  oh you are on 

suspension?  You have got  al l  the t ime. [ laughs]  

ADV SONI SC:   We enjoy the interact ion.  [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:   [ laugh]  Okay.   Al r ight .   Let  us take a short  

break and we wi l l  come back at  ten past .  

ADV SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We adjourn.  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS :  

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  to go back to  the let ter MMDH at  page 

92.   So Mr Dingiswayo, as. . .  would i t  be correct  to  say,  as far  

as you know, at  the t ime of  th is  meet ing of  the extended 

execut ive. . .  No,  no.   I  am sorry.    

 At  the t ime of  th is let ter,  you were the only one among 

the employees of  PRASA who had taken the posi t ion that  

th is contract  was i r regular and that  would have been 

conveyed to Mr Montana.    20 

 As far as Mr Ngoye is concerned,  she was agreeing wi th  

you but  that  was a discussion between . . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . the two of  you at  that  stage.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So the probabi l i t ies are,  you would say,  

are that  Mr Montana knew only you as the person who was 

saying this was i rregular.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I f  there other  people,  we could hear  

f rom him.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you did not  know of  anyone e lse who 10 

had taken that  s tyle. . .  that  stand and said i t  should be 

conveyed.. .  i t  can. . .  i t  could be conveyed to him.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  Chai r.   I  can conf i rm that . . .  I  mean,  

I  th ink someone l ike Sydney was t ry ing to see i f  we can f ind 

a solut ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja,  ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you had taken a clear posi t ion?  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   [ Indist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Your mic.   Your mic.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r,  the fol lowing day,  af ter I  
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. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before you deal  wi th that .   How did this 

let ter make you feel?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  wanted to  respond to the. . .  to th is emai l  

Chai r.   But  I  real ised that  I  wi l l  be now on the. . .  a real  war 

path wi th the Group CEO. 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So I  had a discussion about i t  wi th my 10 

boss because I  mean, the. . .  a l l  these things what he is  

saying about these genera l  statements are incorrect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And I  do not . . .  Maybe there was an 

agenda.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  was not  part  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  i t  was clear.   As. . .  Chai r,  you have 

noted that  according to my knowledge at  the t ime, I  had been 20 

the only person who had expressed this view.   

 And this view is now emerged into what is cal l  a bigger 

agenda about people who are invest igat ing Mr Montana 

unlawful ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:   And Chai r,  you. . .  I  th ink at  th is t ime, i t  

was before even the Werksmans’ invest igat ion started.    

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So I . . .  so there is a lot  of  st range things 

that  are said in th is emai l  which are associated wi th th is 

view which I  fe l t  I  probably just  need to set  the record 

st raight  and say,  th is is my view.   

 I t  has nothing to do wi th al l  these things that  are being 

ment ioned here.   I t  is something that  I  bel ieve is  legal ly 

sound and i t  is an independent view, a professional  v iew.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  Chai r,  in some of  these inst i tut ions 

you cannot te l l  a professional  v iew which is sound, i f  i t  

interferes wi th other people’s personal  interest ,  then you get  

deal t  wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And the normal th ing is that  they confuse 

their  own personal  interests wi th PRASA’s interest  because 

they wi l l  a lways use that  c loak of  saying,  you are act ing 

against  PRASA when, in fact ,  you maybe be deal ing wi th his 20 

own personal  interests.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.  And when he says in the end of  

the thi rd paragraph:   “They would be the biggest  losers at  

the end of  th is process”.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Who did you think he was talk ing about?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  thought he was talk ing about me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And that  is why I  thought I  needed to 

isolate the professional  v iew f rom al l  th is.   Al l  th is paranoia 

and say,  I  have nothing to do wi th. . .  I  do not  have. . .  I  do not  

have the t ime or the incl inat ion for agendas and 

opportunism.   

 I  am just  working here.   And this is just  a view that  I  am 

expressing.   So I  bel ieved that  he intended to do something 10 

drast ic.   And that  is why I  thought i t  would be necessary to  

respond to the emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   But  in my discussion wi th Ms Ngoye,  we 

agreed that  we do not  escalate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Let  us de-escalate the s i tuat ion.   

Maybe.. .  and hope for the best .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.     

ADV SONI SC:   What though happened on the fol lowing day? 20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  was on my way home in the evening 

f rom work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is now on the . . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   On the 19t h.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .on 19t h of  . . . [ intervenes]   
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MR DINGISWAYO:   Of  May.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  May 2015.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   2015,  ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   I  am on my way home and when I 

am about f ive minutes away f rom home, I  received a cal l  

f rom PRASA.  I  p ick i t  up and i t  is Mr Montana’s personal  

assistant .   I  th ink i t  was De Beer.   I  ment ioned her yesterday,  

Dumi.  

 She cal ls and says,  “Mr Montana would l ike to see you”.   10 

I  say,  when?  She says,  “Now”.    

 So I  am l ike:  “ I  am close to home.  Does he need to see 

me today?  Please let  h im know I  am close to home but  i f  he 

needs to see me today,  I  wi l l  come back to the off ice” .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV SONI SC:   At  what t ime was this,  Mr Dingiswayo? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Maybe around seven.  

ADV SONI SC:   In  the evening? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  seven in  the evening.   So I  get 

home and as I  am dr iv ing into my dr iveway,  I  get  another  cal l  20 

f rom the same number.   I  p ick i t  up and she tel ls me, “No, 

no,  no.   He wants to see you now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  was st i l l  h is PA?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:   So I  then say,  okay.   Now the people 

inside the house have seen I  am dr iv ing.   So I  have to go 

and say,  “ I  have been cal led back to work”.   And l ike. . .  and 

everyone is l ike:   “Are you ser ious?”   

 So then I  cal led. . .  I  am on my way back to work and I  

cal l  Ms Ngoye and I  say to her,  “ I  th ink I  am going to be 

f i red”.    

 So she says,  “Why?”  I  said I  received this cal l  and this 

is what happened.   She says,  “Okay,  just  go and let  me know 

what happens”.    10 

 I  get  to the off ice.   He was f in ishing a meet ing and 

walking the people that  he was meet ing wi th out .   And he 

then says. . .  he comes back,  he says. . .  he greets and he 

says,  “Come in”.  

 I  go into his off ice.   And then he says that  he has heard 

that  I  am working against  the interest  of  PRASA.  So I  am 

taken aback,  okay.  

 He starts  ta lk ing about some tender that  he said I  was. . .  

he said I  wanted to cancel  a tender.   So I  say,  “Okay,  but  

wai t .   I  do not  have the power to  cancel  a tender.   Which 20 

tender are you talk ing about?”  

 Then he explains what he is  ta lk ing about.   I  say,  “No,  

no,  no.   We are approached because the BEC is  having 

some problems with this tender and we were asked to give 

advice.   We gave the advice.    
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 And the advice was noth ing mere to cancel lat ion of  the 

tender.   There was just  a bot t le neck.   We gave advice to  

ease that  bot t le neck,  so that  the work of  the BEC can 

cont inue”.  

 He says,  “No,  I  do not  want to hear anything f rom you.   I  

have been to ld what I  have been told”.   And then he goes al l  

over. . .  he ta lks about  a number of  th ings that  I  am act ing 

against  him.  I  am leaking documents to the board.    

 Now I  am real ly  stunt  that . . .  how does. . .  how does one 

leak documents to the board?  I  mean, the documents of  the 10 

company are documents of  the company.   The board is the 

account ing author i ty.  

 And I  am th inking,  I  am so far f rom the board.   I  do not  

even know who is  in the board.   I  have never interacted wi th  

these people.   My normal work does not  br ing me anywhere 

close to these people.  

 But  I  cannot say these things because I  have been told  

that :   “No,  I  do not  want to hear anything f rom you” .   And 

then he says,  “Al l  I  brought you here to te l l  you is  that  you 

no longer work here”.    20 

 So I  am l ike okay.   And he says,  “We can talk about  how 

much I  pay you for you to leave your employment”.   I  said,  

“No,  I  am not  interested in that  discussion.”  

 He says,  “Okay.   Then you do not . . .  you are f i red”.   I  say 

okay.   And. . .  so I  real ise that  he is done and I  gesture to  
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stand f rom my seat .    

 Then he says,  “You can wai t  for your let ter  of  

terminat ion or you can get  i t  tomorrow or you can tel l  us 

where to del iver i t ” .  

 I t  was not  a long meet ing Chai r.   And I  th ink he sa id I  

could wai t  because his legal  advisor was there present ,  Ms 

Naidoo.   I  th ink she was the one who going to draf t  the 

terminat ion let ter.  

 So I  say,  “No,  no.   I  wi l l  come back tomorrow and get  i t .   

I  wi l l  come and also get  my personal  belongings f rom the 10 

off ice”.   And so I  lef t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  is not  even you are suspended?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are f i red?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   No,  I  was f i red on the spot .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And he says he does not  want to hear  

anything f rom you?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.   The only th ing he can engage on is 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   How much you want to be paid?  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you are f i red?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   In his  words,  he says,  “You no longer 
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work here”.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is how he put  i t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you come in work ing here?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  [ laugh]  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you go out  not  working here?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  [ laugh]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Now the tender that  he was 10 

referr ing to,  are you able to  remember what i t  was connected 

wi th?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r,  I  do not  remember but  what I  

remember is that ,  they. . .  you know in a si tuat ion of  a  tender,  

there is a part  where you do the technical  evaluat ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Where you need to meet a certain  

threshold before other aspects of  the tender can be 

considered.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Now the speci f icat ion was draf ted in 

such a way that  you needed to. . .  that  type of  col laborat ion I  

th ink was divided into four or f ive aspects.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And they said you need to meet  a 
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minimum, I  th ink of  l ike 80% on each of  those aspects for 

you to get  the typical . . .  the threshold of  the typical  cr i ter ia  

to. . .    

 So they said to us,  there is none of  the tenderers who 

gets al l  of  those f ive aspects at  that  level  and. . .  according to  

the scor ing.    

 And. . .  but  the technical  advisors. . .  because there was 

technical  advisors there.   Siyaya was wi th the technical  

advisors of  that  tender.   They say that  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Was that  tender commit ted wi th Siyaya?   10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   So. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   S iyaya was one of  the . . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   The profess ionals that  are assist ing 

PRASA to do their  evaluat ion of  the tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   So they said. . .  the typica l  advisors are 

saying they are sat isf ied that  some of  the people can 

actual ly do that  job because the whole point  of  a technical  

evaluat ion is to assess whether the tenderer can actual ly do 

the work.  20 

 We said to them, “Look,  you seem to be having a 

problem with you technical  evaluat ion cr i ter ia because i f  you 

are sat isf ied that  they can do the work but  your evaluat ion 

cr i ter ia says they cannot,  that  is what you need to deal  wi th 

because i t  is not  achieving what i t  is supposed to achieve”.  
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 And the guys that  we consul ted wi th were happy and 

they lef t .   And then later on,  I  was accused of  want ing to 

cancel  that  tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  did you also say,  he accused you at  

that  short  meet ing of  leaking some.. .  leaking some 

documents to the media or. . .?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   To the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the board?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  to the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  was i t  to the board only or  also to  10 

somebody e lse?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   To the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the board?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Now in the let ter of  18 May,  you did 

also speak again about people who are leaking. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .documents but  he said to the media.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The external  audi tors . . . [ intervenes]   20 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  the external  audi tors.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.   Okay.   A lr ight .   So you lef t .   You 

said you wi l l  come back the fo l lowing day to take your let ter.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  to take the let ter and take my 

personal  belongings.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.    

ADV SONI SC:   Now,  af ter you lef t  Mr Montana’s off ice,  what 

was the next  th ing you did? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Wel l ,  as soon as I  lef t  the bui ld ing Chai r,  

I  reported back to my boss as I  indicated that  I  would cal l  

her af ter the meet ing and I  to ld her that . . .  I  to ld her that  I  am 

going to be f i red and I  am f i red.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  am sure she could not . . .  she thought 

you. . .  she could not  bel ieve that  you . . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   No,  she thought  I  am joking.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And I  said,  “No,  I  am not  joking.   I  am 

f i red”.   But  I  mean, I  have seen i t  coming f rom th is let ter 

because that  “biggest  losers”,  I  thought i t  is a threat .    

 I t  is a threat  al though,  the threat  was a raid by the name 

of  Sivele Khuzo(?) but  I  d id not  see i t .   But  I  could see i t .    

 So she said. . .  she did not  bel ieve me.  She said,  “Let  us 

meet”.   And we arranged to meet and I  to ld  her th is is what  

happened.  And she real ised that  I  am not  joking.    

 And she made a cal l  to Mr Montana and asked him, “This 20 

guy. . . ” .   I  mean,  she was shocked.   She was shocked.  And 

she made the cal l  whi lst  shocked that  how did this happen?   

“This person reports to me.  You do not  te l l  me what  you 

are doing and you just  f i red him.  I  mean, how does that  

work?”   
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And then I  d id not  hear everything that  was discussed.   I  

only heard what Ms Ngoye was saying.   And f rom what she 

was saying and once she has told  me, they had agreed to 

meet the next  day for him to take her through the reasons 

why he had made this very drast ic decision.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Now when Mr Montana asked you about 

that  tender which I  th ink you said he said he understood you 

wanted to cancel .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id he make you. . .  d id he represent  that  10 

your dismissal  was because you wanted to cancel  that  

tender?  Was.. .  d id you understand that  he wanted you to 

bel ieve that  that  is what the dismissal  was about?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  Chai r.   So he. . .  that  is one of  the 

things that  he ment ioned. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   He ment ioned the cancel lat ion of  the 

tender,  he ment ioned working against  PRASA. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   He ment ioned leaking informat ion to the 20 

board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So i t . . .  you are. . .  he may have 

wanted you to  bel ieve that  i t  was al l  of  those 

things. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   That  he ment ioned.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   And he did not  ment ion 

anything that  was connected wi th the let ter or that  was in the 

let ter? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   With the emai l?  

CHAIRPERSON:   The emai l ,  ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Chai r,  I  real ly do not  recal l  h im saying 

anything about Prodigy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   Except  that ,  I  guess,  that . . .  in 10 

that  emai l ,  the one addressed to,  Dear Mat lant le.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In that  emai l ,  he is speaking st rongly 

against  those whom he was accusing of  working against  h im.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So i t  may not  be that  i f  you are leaking 

documents to the board you may have been working against  

him i f  he . . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   I f  indeed you can leak documents to a 

board.   Yes,  then that  we are.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   [ laugh]   Wel l ,  certainly f rom his point  of  

v iew.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you can,  you are good.  Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.   Al r ight .   Ms Soni .  

ADV SONI SC:   As i t  p lease you.   Now, Ms Ngoye is g iv ing 

evidence that  af ter that  meet ing which was about as short  as 

your meet ing was wi th Mr Montana. . .  oh,  sorry.   At  the end of  

that  meet ing,  Mr Montana told her that  you were f i red or you 

no longer. . .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.    

ADV SONI SC:   Now.. . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry,  Mr Soni .   P lease do not  forget  10 

your next  quest ion.  

ADV SONI SC:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   You said that  you. . .  I  asked you ear l ier 

on about what. . .  I  th ink I  bel ieve I  d id you ask you.   [ laugh]   I  

hope I  d id.   About  what you bel ieved was the reason why Mr 

Montana dismissed you that  evening.   What,  on your 

analysis,  is the reason why you were dismissed?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   According to me Chai r,  I  gave a view that  

is legal ly sound and that  was against  his personal  interest .   

He appeared over ly invested in th is re lat ionship.    20 

 I  mean, i t  is a. . .  in the greater scheme of  PRASA, th is is  

a very smal l  cont ract ,  especial ly tak ing into account that  two 

thi rds of  that  cont ract  had been implemented al ready.   I t  is a 

miniscule contract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:   PRASA burns. . .  wel l ,  i t  is supposed to 

burn more than R 20 bi l l ion a year.   Now when we are talk ing 

about a cont ract  of  R 82 mi l l ion,  which is two thi rds. . .  has 

not  discharged two thi rds of  the way and you have this very 

bizarre response to a legal ly sound view, then i t  shows that  

extend of  your investment,  your personal  investment in the 

contract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  H’m.   So you bel ieve that  he 

dismissed you because of  the posi t ion you had taken wi th 

regard to the Prodigy cont ract?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  Chai r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Wel l ,  Chai r.   Let  me put  i t  th is way.   

This. . .  i t  is some.. .  th is one is the crescendo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   There are things that  happen.  I  mean, 

for an example,  there is a very. . .  there is a story that  is not  

to ld about  the fact  that  at  some point  there is  an intent ion to  

increase the value of  the Swifambo cont ract  f rom 

R 3,5 bi l l ion to R 5 bi l l ion.  20 

 And we were asked to do that  addendum.  And we said,  

“Wel l ,  no.   You guys are too far off  wi th th is  th ing.   I t  is an 

addendum”.    

 I . . .  because we queried a couple of  th ings and i t  d id  not  

make sense but . . .  because the rat ional  that  was stated for 
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the increase in the contract  pr ice was that  the Euro had 

moved against  the Rand and because of  that  the contract  

value must  increase so that  we st i l l  get  they st i l l  get  th is 

th ing of  commit tees.  

 Now,  I  mean even to me who is  a lawyer who does not  

know numbers,  an increase f rom R 3,5 bi l l ion to R 5 bi l l ion,  

i t  is almost  33%.  I  do not  th ink the Euro could have increase 

so much.  

 So that  is one of  the things that . . .  you could see the 

level  of  i r r i tat ion growing as you are saying,  “Please,  do not  10 

include me in th is .   I f  you want to go ahead with i t ,  you go 

ahead with i t  but . . . ”  

 And we said,  “We were approached by Ms Malongete.   

He said,  “You know this th ing bet ter  than al l  of  us.    We have 

fundamental  problems with this  contract  but . . .  so you draf t  

and then we do not  want to go back to those problems.  So 

just  f in ish the addendum.   

 She had. . .  she actual ly had a draf t  of  that  addendum but  

she wanted us to  be. . .  to have an input  to i t .  And he said,  

“Please,  do not  get  us involved in th is”.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So you say,  you were f i red,  as far  as you 

are concerned,  for th is posi t ion you took wi th regard to the 

Prodigy cont ract?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you say that  happened as culminat ion 
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of  a number of  th ings that  had happened before what you 

have just  said.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   One of  which was the. . . [ intervenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   At tempts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At tempts.   You stand.   Not  to want to be 

involved in interest  in the Swifambo contract .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes,  that  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SONI SC:   Now, I  perhaps should have asked earl ier.   10 

Very ear ly in your  evidence,  you talked about a paral le l  

process and you were saying i t  in reference to the work you 

and Ms Ngoye did.    

 Is that  the process that  you are now descr ibing that  Ms 

Malongete and the lady in Mr Montana’s off ice you were 

engaged with,  is  that  the paral le l  process you are talk ing 

about? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   So in other words. . .  oh,  i f  I  can just  ask you 

and tel l  me i f  I  am wrong.   There was the off ic ia l  process 20 

that  you. . .  your  off ice and Ms Ngoye’s off ice was involved 

wi th.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   And there was this process of  his own 

personal  advisors and an outsider. . . [ intervenes]   
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MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

ADV SONI SC:   . . . that . . .  who was advising him, Mr Montana.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV SONI SC:   And who had drawn up the Swifambo 

contract?  Was i t  your  off ice. . .  oh,  sorry.   Your off ice.   Or 

was i t  these other  processes? 

MR DINGISWAYO:   I t  was DM5.  As I  understood i t ,  i t  was 

Ms Brenda Malongete who drew up the cont ract .   

ADV SONI  SC:    So  your  o f f i ce  was not  invo l ved in  the 

dra f t ing  o f  Swi fambo.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    No.   No,  i t  was  not .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now Ms Ngoye has descr ibed the  manner  

in  wh ich  Mr  Montana d ismissed  her  and o f  cou rse  she 

wou ld  have to ld  you about  i t  bu t  in  re la t ion  to  your  

d ismissa l  –  your  and her  d i smissa l ,  what  happened next?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    So  I  d id  no t  go  to  the  o f f i ce  on  the  20 t h  

as  I  ind ica ted  I  wou ld  because now the re  is  th i s  meet ing  

and I  fe l t  -  I  do  no t  know,  maybe le t  me not  be 

presumptuous,  le t  me jus t  park  my  go ing  back to  the  o f f i ce  

and then she was f i red  and she re layed the  message to  20 

me.   So we then went  to  the  CCMA.    

We d id  two th ings bas ica l l y,  we wro te  to  the  board ,  

we sa id  th is  i s  what  has happened to  us  and we  be l ieve  

these are  the  reasons tha t  th is  has  happened to  us .  

 We are  tak ing  the  mat te r  to  the  CCMA but  we  
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wanted you as  the  board  to  know tha t  th is  i s  what  

happened under  your  watch  and so  we d id  no t  rece ive  any  

response f rom the  board  bu t  what  happened a f te r  tha t  i s  

we were  ca l led  back to  the  o f f i ce  and the  le t te rs  o f  

d ismissa l  -  I  th ink  about  a  week la te r  the  le t te rs  o f  

d ismissa l  were  w i thdrawn by Mr  Montana and then he then 

asked us  to  show cause why he shou ld  no t  suspend us .  

 We wro te  rep resenta t ions,  he  re jec ted  them and  

suspended us  and we were  on  suspens ion  unt i l  he  le f t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  paragraph 14.15 a t  page 105 you  10 

g ive  your  assessment  o f  Mr  Montana ’s  s ta te  o f  m ind in  

regard  to  the  two d ismissa ls .   Wi l l  you  ind i ca te  to  the 

Cha i rperson what  you thought  h is  s ta te  o f  m ind was?  Th is  

i s  parag raph 14.15.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.   Cha i r,  I  s ta te  here  tha t :  

“ I  submi t  tha t  the  react ion  o f  Mr  Montana was o f  

one who had  su f fe red  a  bout  o f  tempora ry  

i r ra t iona l i t y  o r  someone who was over ly  invested  i n  

showing tha t  h is  word  was f ina l  o r  someone who  

was over l y  invested  in  th is  t ransact ion  and was 20 

in to le ran t  o f  anyone who saw the  sc reaming 

i r regu lar i t ies  in  the  t ransact ion . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  what  pa rag raph,  what  page was  

tha t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  i s  page  105,  paragraph 14.15,  



02 JULY 2020 – DAY 229 
 

Page 199 of 224 
 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you.  Paragraph 105?  

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  page 105.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 105.  

ADV SONI  SC:     Paragraph 14.15,  jus t  a t  the  bo t tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   I  th ink  I  –  i t  has  been a  long day,  

I  am look ing  a t  the  wrong –  I  am look ing  a t  Mr  Achmat ’s  

a f f idav i t .   Okay.   Okay,  le t  me get  the  page number  aga in  

now.   I  am on the  r igh t  document  now.   Paragraph 14? 

ADV SONI  SC:    14 .15  wh ich  is  r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  10 

page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  have got  i t ,  ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  thought  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why I  d id  hear  25  o r  someth ing?   Okay,  I  

have got  i t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  thought  jus t  Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  descr ip t ion  

o f  what  he  unders tood or  what  he  thought  Mr  Montana ’s  

s ta te  o f  m ind is ,  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  you are  look ing  a t  as  a  

who le ,  Cha i rpe rson.   I  thought  we needed to  pu t  tha t  on  

record .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then you have sa id  in  paragraph  

14.16 tha t  you went  to  the  board .   What  we have not  done,  

I  am look ing  a t  the  para l le l  p rocess,  in  paragraph 14.17 a t  

page 106.    
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Now you go back  to  the  SLA and what  happened to  

tha t?   Th is  i s  the  ag reement  you sa id  you wou ld  no t  

suppor t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r,  the  SLA was in tended to  be  an  

annexure  to  the  agreement  because,  I  mean,  I  sa id  I  th ink  

as  I  am prepar ing  myse l f  to  ass is t  you,  I  need  to  – a 

programme o f  the  res t  o f  these  t ra in ings as  we l l  as  –  

be fore  look ing  a t  the  issues o f  whether  i t  i s  i r regu lar  o r  

no t ,  the  prog ramme o f  the  t ra in ing ,  I  a lso  need some –  

there  must  be  some serv ice  leve l  agreement  tha t  you 10 

conc lude w i th  the  serv ice  prov ide r.  

 So the  document  I  was go ing  to  p repare  wou ld  jus t  

conta in  the  genera l  te rms but  the  spec i f i cs  in  te rms o f  what  

i s  go ing  to  be  the  –  the  t ra in ing  is  go ing  to  be  and a l l  o f  

those th ings shou ld  be  in  th is  document  ca l led  an  SLA and  

then Ms Kondoa(?)  to ld  me tha t  no ,  no ,  no ,  we have been 

ta lk ing  about  tha t ,  in  fac t  I  can send you a  dra f t  and then  

she sent  me a  document  wh ich  is  very  s im i la r  to  what  i s  

the  SLA.  

ADV SONI  SC:    MMD7? 20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    MMD7.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Page 179.    

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  I  th ink  i t  –  no ,  

sor ry,  I  have jo ined the  Cha i r,  I  am a t  the  wrong p lace.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Page 179.  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  SLA.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  yes ,  tha t  i s  the  document  tha t  

was g iven to  me but  you w i l l  see  when you read th is  

document  i t  does not  have any o f  the  essent ia l  te rms o f  the  

cont rac t ,  i t  does not  te l l  you  how many peop le  are  go ing  to  

be  t ra ined,  how much is  th is  t ra in ing  go ing  to  cost  and a l l  

o f  those th ings because i t  was no t  in tended to  be  a  se l f -

s tand ing  document .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And you ar t i cu la te  tha t  a t  parag raph 14.17 10 

your  reasons,  i s  tha t  cor rec t ,  why you thought  tha t  the  SLA 

was inadequate?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And why PRASA shou ld  no t  en ter  in to  

such a  cont rac t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Because the  ob l iga t ions o f  the  par t ies  

were  no t  p roper l y  se t  ou t  and,  in  any case, ,  i t  now had 

become a  se l f -s tand ing  ag reement .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Now you were  now d i smissed on  the  19  

May.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  do  you say tha t  tha t  agreement ,  the  

SLA,  was conc luded by  PRASA or  s igned by  PRASA on the  
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29  May?  Th is  i s  a  week and  a  ha l f  a f te r  your  d ismissa l ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?   Look a t  the  las t  page o f  the  SLA,  you w i l l  

see  tha t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.   Yes,  so  i t  i s  s igned on beha l f  o f  

PRASA on the  29 t h .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.   And you say a  Ms Koko s igned the  

agreement?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  I  am jus t  go ing  back –  was she  in  your  

depar tment?   In  o ther  words,  in  the  lega l  depar tment?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  she was in  the  HR depar tment .   

ADV SONI  SC:     You say she was not  in  the  HR 

depar tment  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR DINGISWAYO:    She was in  the  HR depar tment .  

ADV SONI  SC:    She was in  the  HR depar tment?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  th is ,  g iven  the  fac t  tha t  i t  i s  R82 

mi l l ion  cont rac t  ought  to  be  s igned  by  -   I  mean,  i t  ought  to  

pass th rough lega l ,  wou ld  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  be  –  we l l ,  a l l  20 

cont rac ts  shou ld  be  regard less  o f  the  s i ze .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now do you know i f  th is  passed th rough  

Group Lega l?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  do  no t  th ink  so ,  Cha i r,  because I  had  

–  as  s ta ted ,  I  had not  repor ted  about  th is  a t  the  month l y  
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meet ing  o f  the  lega l  depar tment  where  a l l  the  lega l  

adv isers  come and they –  pa r t l y,  I  mean,  i t  was to  a le r t  

them to  the  fac t  tha t ,  you know,  we do not  do  the  – we do 

not  ge t  invo lved in  these k ind  o f  th ings so  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  

went  past  –  I  mean,  even the  qua l i t y  o f  the  document ,  as  a 

se l f -s tand ing  document ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  any  o f  my 

co l leagues in  the  lega l  depar tmen t  wou ld  have ag reed to  

th is  be ing  the  document .  

ADV SONI  SC:    You are  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  say whether  i t  

had passed th rough the  eyes o f  lawyer,  i f  I  cou ld  use such 10 

an express ion?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  no ,  no t  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  

vo i ce ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You may have dea l t  w i th  th is  a l ready and 

maybe I  m issed i t .   Do you know who had dra f ted  i t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Accord ing  to  Ms Kondoa  i t  i s  a  

document  they were  deve lop ing  w i th  Ms Shunmugan o f  

P rod igy.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  . Ja ,  okay.   And cont rac ts  

wou ld  ord inar i l y  be  prepared by  the  lega l  depar tment ,  i s  i t  20 

no t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  we e i ther  d ra f t  a  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  somebody e lse  dra f ts  them they 

wou ld  have to  be  approved by  the  lega l  depar tment .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Was Ms Kondoa  lega l l y  qua l i f ied?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And was Ms Koko lega l l y  qua l i f ied? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    As  fa r  as  I  know,  no ,  Cha i r,  she was in  

the  HR depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then you desc r ibe  or  you po in t  ou t  

tha t  there  were  o ther  peop le  who had su f fe red  adverse  

consequences a t  the  hands o f  Mr  Montana and you say tha t  

a t  14 .18 .  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  Mr  Khuzwayo  

was suspended and there  was jus t  a  d ramat ic  th ing  tha t  

was done a round h is  suspens ion .    

 I  am to ld  tha t  these re f lec tor  th ings were  –  where ,  

you know,  tha t  a re  used fo r  where  there  is  an  invest iga t ion  

by  po l i ce  to  warn  peop le  no t  to  go  in  were  pu t  a round h i s  

o f f i ce  door  jus t  to  add drama to  h is  suspens ion .  

 Mr  Gang ia  was not  suspended w i th  such much  

fan fare  bu t  he  was one o f  the  peop le  who are  say ing  on  the  

payments  tha t  –  the  payments  tha t  PRASA was c la im ing 20 

were  no t  va l id  o r  were  no t  war ran ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now you re fe r  to  Mr  Khuzwayo and Mr  

Gang ia  in  tha t  sentence,  a  le t te r  you say who re fused to  

requ is i t ion .   I s  i t  Mr  Gang ia  who re fused to  requ is i t ion  

payment  o r  i s  i t  bo th  Mr  Khuzwayo and Mr  Gang ia?  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  i s  Mr  Gang ia ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .   And d id  you  get  to  

know why Mr  Khuzwayo was suspended or  no t  rea l l y?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  he  sa id  to  me he was 

accused o f  los ing  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  a f te r  Mr  Mon tana le f t  what  happened 

to  Mr  Khuzwayo and Mr  Gang ia?   10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    They came back,  I  mean,  no  charges 

were  pro f fe red  aga ins t  them and they came back to  work .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And a t  whose in te rvent ion  d id  tha t  

happen?  

MR DINGISWAYO :    I  th ink  what  happened i s  tha t  the  f i rs t  

peop les  whose suspens ions were  l i f ted  was myse l f  and Ms  

Ngoye.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Ngoye,  yes .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    And then the  then Group CEO engaged  

a  f i rm to  look  a t  the  o ther  suspens ions and engaged  Mi l ton  20 

Rose too  look a t  the  o the r  suspens ions and a  repor t  was  

produced wh ich  –  there  were  a  number  o f  peop le  tha t  were  

jus t  suspended fo r  no  reason and a l l  o f  them came back.    

 You know,  there  were  some peop le  in  the  HR 

depar tment ,  I  do  no t  know what  they were  suspended fo r  
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an  no  one seems to  be  known wha t  happened there  and so  

they a l l  came back.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  the  next  th ree  subparagraphs,  tha t  

i s  14 .19 ,  14 .20 ,  and 14.21 you dea l  w i th  payments .   Can I  

jus t  ask  you,  you  have ment ioned those in  14 .20  and 14.21  

the  meet ings tha t  Mr  Mood ley  had w i th  Mr  Ho le le  and Mr  

Makoto .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  a t  14 .21  and 14.20 ea r l ie r  you 

ment ioned the  approach to  Ms Page in  December  2017.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Can I  ask  you to  say to  the  Cha i rperson 

why what  you say  a t  14 .19  is  impor tan t?   

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  an  o rgan isa t ion  l i ke  

PRASA you f ind  tha t  because in  o rder  to  i ns t i tu t iona l i se  an  

i r regu lar  cont rac t  there  are  number  o f  p layers  tha t  you 

need fo r  tha t  to  succeed.    

 So you need to  k ind  o f  c rea te  tha t  cha in  o f  peop le  

tha t  w i l l  ass i s t  you f rom the  on board ing  to  the  payment .    

 So i t  i s  normal  where  you f ind  tha t  a l though  20 

someth ing  is  so  i r regu la r,  i t  s t i l l  has  champions,  i t  s t i l l  has  

those peop le  who are  say ing  he  is  pay ing  you th is  th ing ,  

p lease fee l  sor ry  fo r  th is  i s  innocent  serv ice  prov ider  and 

so  fo r th .   

 So there  is  a lways tha t  and tha t  is  why even the  
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peop le  f rom Prod igy  ga ined ent rance and went  to  Ms 

Page ’s  o f f i ce .    

 I  mean,  one Prod igy  o f f i c ia l  came to  my o f f i ce ,  he  

was jus t  there  in  the  co r r idor  and he sa id  he  is  look ing  fo r  

me,  he  d id  no t  know –so I  sa id  who are  you?  And he to ld  

me why.    

 He says I  am f rom Prod igy  and he was t ry ing  to  

say le t  us  have a  meet ing  and d i scuss b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah ,  so  

I  sa id  to  h im no,  no ,  no ,  come,  s i t ,  i t  i s  jus t  go ing  to  take  

f i ve  m inutes ,  le t  me exp la in  to  you,  I  am not  go ing  to  se t  10 

up  another,  you know,  we can k i l l  i t  now and he le f t .    

 So  the  –and you ask  yourse l f ,  how d id  tha t  pe rson  

ga in  en t rance?  How d id  tha t  person know where  to  look  fo r  

me and a l l  those k ind  o f  th ings.    

 So there  is  a lways peop le  who  are  work ing  fo r  

PRASA but  who a re  work ing  fo r  serv ice  prov iders .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now in  December  2017 in  paragraph  

14.22,  you po in t  ou t  tha t  there  was a  news repor t  in  

re la t ion  to  th is  Prod igy  cont rac t  and you annex tha t  repor t  

as  NMD9 which  appears  a t  page 189.  20 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now you do not  have to  read the  who le  

repor t  in  bu t  wou ld  you conf i rm whethe r  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  

tha t  the  repor t  dea l t  w i th  the  Prod igy  cont rac t  and,  o f  

course ,  Mr  Roy Mood ley ’s  assoc ia t ion  w i th  Prod igy?  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  I  am t ry ing  –  okay there  i t  i s .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Page 189.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  i t  i s  –  the  re ference to  the  l ink  

be tween Mr  Mood ley  and Prod igy  i s  on  page 190 a t  the  top .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  says :  

“We can today  revea l  tha t  P rod igy  Bus iness  

Serv i ces ,  a  p rov ider  o f  t ra in ing  and sk i l l s  se rv i ces  

made a t  leas t…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  have you ident i f ied  what  10 

repor t  tha t  i s?  

MR DINGISWAYO :     Oh,  so r ry,  yes .   Apo log ies ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  ident i f y  i t ,  ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  i s  a  repor t  by  News 24.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And who is  the  au thor  o f  tha t  repor t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I s  i t  Mr  P ie ter  Lou is  Myburgh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    G ive  the  da te  as  we l l  i f  you  have the  

da te  as  we l l .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    The date  i s  15  December  2017.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And what  i s  the  essence o f  tha t ,  the 

ar t i c le?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry,  I  in te r rup ted  h im wh i le  he  

was read ing  the  f i rs t  sentence,  i f  I  am not  m is taken ,  o r  had 
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you  f in ished?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    No,  no ,  no ,  I  had not  f in ished,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  i s  a t  the  top  o f  page 190.  

 “We can today  revea l  tha t  P rod igy  Bus iness  

Serv i ces ,  a  p rov ider  o f  t ra in ing  and sk i l l s  se rv i ces  

made a t  leas t  one payment  o f  more  than 4  m i l l ion  to  

one o f  Mood ley ’s  compan ies  in  2015.   The payment  

was made a f te r  P rod igy  had ear l ie r  secured a  

cont rac t  f rom PRASA tha t  wou ld  u l t imate ly  earn  the  10 

company 82 mi l l ion . ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    And i f  you look a t  the  f i rs t  page o f  tha t  

a r t i c le ,  wh ich  is  a t  page 189,  you  w i l l  see  a  p ic tu re  there .   

Whose p ic tu re  i s  dep ic ted  there?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  p ic tu re  o f  Mr  Mood ley  

and Ms Jess ie  Duar te ,  I  th ink  the  Deputy  Secre tary  

Genera l  o f  the  ANC.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now th is  a r t i c le  quotes  Ms Ner ishn i  

Shunmugan as  say ing  they d id  no t  want  to  go  in to  de ta i l s  

o f  the  cont rac t ,  is  tha t  r igh t?   I f  you  look a t  –  i t  i s  jus t  20 

be fore  tha t  p ic tu re  on  page 190.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.   Yes,  i t  jus t  says tha t  i t  i s  

inaccura te  and fa lse .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Bu t  she d id  no t  answer  de ta i led  
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que r ies  about  Prod igy ’s  payments  to  Mood ley ’s  compan ies .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes and in  j us t  under  tha t  p i c tu re  she a lso  

demands someth ing  f rom News24.   What  i s  i t  tha t  she  

demands accord ing  to  the  ar t i c le?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Sources fo r  the  s to ry.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now jus t  in  regard  to  the  Prod igy  cont rac t  

–  we can f in ish  th is  qu i te  qu ick ly.   Le t  me ask you,  the  

newspaper  a r t i c l e  re fe rs  to  Mr  Mood ley ’s  connect ion  by  

v i r tue  o f  a  R4  mi l l ion  payment  made to  one  o f  h is  

compan ies ,  My Prod igy .  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    I s  there  any more  d i rec t  l ink  be tween 

Prod igy  and Mr  Mood ley  o r  was the re  a  more  d i rec t  l ink?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r ,  the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  can  jus t  ask  you to  look  a t  NMD1.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    1 ,  yes .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Page 123.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes,  I  mean,  th is  came f rom the  

payment  app l i ca t ion ,  NMD1 i s  a  pr i n tou t  o f  company 

in fo rmat ion  f rom – I  th ink  i t  i s  WinDeed.    20 

 I t  se ts  ou t  the  company in fo rmat ion  o f  P rod igy  

Bus iness Serv ices  and th is  came –  th is  document  came 

wi th  a  payment  app l i ca t ion  tha t  was launched by  Prod igy  

and i t  shows tha t  a t  some po in t  Mr  Mood ley  was a  d i rec tor  

o f  P rod igy .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Son i ,  the  ar t i c le  a t  page 

190 a t  the  bo t tom re fers  to  Mr  Mood ley  hav ing  pa id  Mr  

Zuma a  sa la ry  o f  R1 mi l l ion  a  month .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  seem to  remember  tha t  a t  some s tage I  

had in  m ind tha t  tha t  i s  what  I  had read but  when you led  

ev idence w i th  regard  to  what  Roy  Mood ley ’ s  company pa id  

the  fo rmer  Pres ident  I  seem to  th ink  tha t  what  you – the  

ev idence you led  seemed to  re f lec t  a  much lower  amount  

than tha t  pe r  mon ths ,  about  65  000  or  someth ing .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    About  R65 000  a  month  and a  to ta l  o f  

about  R1,5  m i l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l togethe r?  

ADV SONI  SC:    A l togethe r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So do we know whether  t h is  was 

jus t  a  m is take on the  par t  o f  the  au tho r  o r  cou ld  tha t  be  

o ther  payments  tha t  have not  –  were  no t  been  –  the  

Commiss ion  has no t  been to ld  about?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  may I  pu t  th is  as  e legant ly  

o r  as  neut ra l l y  as  poss ib le .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SONI  SC:    The f igures we have g iven are  perhaps 

more  accura te  f rom the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  has been g i ven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  okay,  thank you.   And they 

were  f rom the  bank.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  r igh t ,  yes ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now jus t  coming back to  the  cont rac t ,  the  

Prod igy  cont rac t .   There  are  two th ings I  want  to  ra ise  w i th  

you.   One is ,  there  was a  repor t  on  the  cont rac t ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?   That  repor t  was done by  Mr  Majo la .   You re fer red  

to  i t  a t  d i f fe ren t  par ts  o f  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  in  paragraph  15 o f  your  a f f idav i t  you 

say the  repor t  i s  annexed as  NMD2.  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And you g i ve  de ta i l s  about  what  i s  

conta ined in  the  repor t .   Cha i rperson,  w i th  respect ,  i t  may 

not  be  necessary  to  do  tha t  fo r  two  reasons.    

 I  cou ld  jus t  a le r t  Mr  D ing iswayo to  par t i cu la r  

parag raphs o f  the  repor t  and then what  the  s ta tus  o f  the 

Prod igy  d i spute  i s  a t  the  moment ,  we c i r cumvent  hav ing  to  

dea l  w i th  those mat te rs .   

 So wou ld  i t  be  cor rec t ,  Mr  D ing iswayo,  tha t  the  

document  a t  NMD2 a t  page 128  is  the  repor t  you are  20 

ta lk ing  about ,  the  Majo la  repor t?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV SONI  SC:    I f  you  look a t  the  conc lus ion  a t  page 135,  

I  jus t  want  to  s tar t  o f f  w i th  –  we do not  have to  go  th rough  

a l l  o f  them,  a t  5 .1 what  does he say?  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  reads,  Cha i r :  

“There  is  a  number  o f  w i tnesses who are  ye t  to  be  

in te rv iewed and submi t  s ta tements  to  th is  mat te r .   

On s ta tements  ob ta ined i t  i s  c lear  tha t  fo rmer  

PRASA techn ica l  CEO Mr  Sak i  Zamxaka ’s  s ta tement  

w i l l  be  cr i t i ca l  to  th is  mat te r . ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes and then 5 .2?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  says :  

“There  is  host  o f  documents  and records s t i l l  to  be  

re t r ieved f rom d i f fe ren t  o f f i ces  or  employees in  10 

order  to  comple te  th is  invest iga t ion  as  per  the  

scope. ”  

ADV SONI  SC:    And 5 .4?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  says  there ’s  a  genera l  fee l i ng  f rom 

some managers  t ha t  P rod igy  t ra in ing  o f  PRASA employees 

was not  wor th  the  money wh ich  they have been  pa id  to  

them as i t  d id  no t  benef i t  the  bus iness in  any way.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And 5 .5?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    A l though the  invest iga t ion  process has 

no t  been comple ted  i t  i s  conf i rmed th rough the  s ta tements  20 

obta ined tha t  there  was no SCM or  tender  p rocess fo l lowed 

to  employ  the  serv ices  o f  P rod igy  fo r  th is  t ra in ing  program.  

ADV SONI  SC:    I  jus t  want  you to  s top  the re  fo r  a  moment .   

What  i s  conta ined in  5 .5 ,  how does tha t  compare  w i th  your  

v iew about  the  SCM process?  
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MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r  i t  agrees w i th  my v iew tha t  there  

was no SCM process.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then 5 .6?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    5 .6  says Ms Ner ishn i  Shunmugam has  

been contac ted  on a  number  o f  occas ions fo r  a  meet ing  so  

tha t  she cou ld  p resent  he r  s ide  o f  the  mat te r,  and submi t  a  

p resenta t ion  to  c la r i f y  the  issues in  d ispute  and she wro te  

in  a  le t te r  v ia  BVM At to rneys da ted 13 September  2017  

s ta t ing  tha t  she is  no t  w i l l i ng  to  g i ve  an  in te rv iew.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then i f  you cou ld  read the  f i rs t  10 

sentence o f  paragraph 5 .7 .  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Ms Shunmugam’s  re luc tance to  be 

in te rv iewed fo r  the  purpose o f  th is  invest iga t ion  appears  to  

be  in  cont ravent ion  o f  the  par tne rsh ip  agreement  wh ich  she 

s igned together  w i th  Mr  Lucky Montana and  o ther  

w i tnesses dated 11.10.2010 and quotes  6 .1  wh ich  says:  

“The prov ider  w i l l  p rov ide  in te rna l  aud i to rs  o f  

PRASA wi th  a l l  necessary  suppor t ,  fac i l i t i es  and  

access to  in fo rmat ion  pe r ta in ing  to  PRASA and 

these serv ices  in  accordance  w i th  leg is la t i ve  20 

requ i rements ,  appropr ia te  assu rances w i l l  on  

request  be  p rov ided to  PRASA’s  in te rna l  aud i to rs  

regard ing  the  cont ro ls  ins t i tu ted  in  respect  o f  the  

prov ider  sys tems wh ich  prov ides serv i ces  to  or  

in te r face  w i th  PRASA. ”  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  now do you know whether  the  fu r ther  

in te rv iews were  conducted and the  fu r ther  documents  were  

re t r ieved as  is  suggested in  5 .1  and 5 .2?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    I  don ’ t  know Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  th ink they 

were .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Bu t  can I  jus t  ask  you f ina l l y  in  respect  o f  

tha t ,  what  i s  the  pos i t ion  w i th  regard  to  the  d ispute  

be tween Prod igy  and PRASA? 

MR DINGISWAYO:    Cha i r  the  –  they made app l i ca t ion ,  we  

submi t ted  an  answer ing  a f f idav i t ,  jus t  be fore  I  was 10 

suspended I  was f ina l i s ing  an  a f f idav i t  fo r  the  – an  a f f idav i t  

to  rev iew the  –  fo r  the  Cour t  to  rev iew and se t  as ide  the  

cont rac t ,  based on lega l i t y,  so  I  th ink  tha t  there  is  a  lo t  o f  

work  in  the  o rgan isa t ion  a t  the  moment  and I  do  no t  th ink  

anyone has rea l l y  go t ten  to  tha t ,  bu t  tha t  was the  next  

s tage,  and I  th ink  the  o ther  th ing  is  tha t  a t  some po in t  

P rod igy ’s  lawyers  had w i thdrawn,  so  i t  looked l i ke  the  

mat te r  had d ied  and Prod igy  was  t ry ing  o ther  avenues.   I  

th ink  Cha i r  we learn t  f rom the  d ispute  be tween the  COO in  

the  Off i ce  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  and the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  20 

the  COO tha t  was d i smissed tha t  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec tor  was  

t ry ing  to  fas t - t rack  the  invest iga t ion  o f  P rod igy.    

 They went  to  Nat iona l  Treasury  to  say they have not  

been pa id  and we  wro te  back to  Nat iona l  Treasury  and sa id  

we are  d isput ing  the  payment  and they went  a l so  to  the  
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Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  to  t ry  and  get  pa id .  

 So a f te r  the  lawyers  w i thdrew i t  looked l i ke  they 

were  look ing  a t  o ther  avenues to  t ry  and get  payment .  

ADV SONI  SC:    And you say tha t  P rod igy  went  to  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  you reca l l  you sa id  ear l ie r  tha t  the  fo rmer  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  Ms Thu l i  Madonse la ,  had f i led  her  repor t  

“Dera i led”  wh ich  was in  2015,  2014 so r ry.  

MR DINGISWAYO:    Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now when Prod igy  went  to  the  O ff i ce  o f  

the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  who was the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r?  10 

MR DINGISWAYO:    I t  was Advocate  Bus is iwe 

Makhwebane.  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  pe rson who succeeded Ms 

Madonse la?  

MR DINGISWAYO:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  a t  quar te r  past  f i ve .    

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How much t ime do we s t i l l  need? 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  Cha i rperson can I  p lace  th is  on  

record  tha t  the  o ther  mat te r  tha t  Mr  D ing iswayo is  to  dea l  20 

w i th  i s  the  S iyaya  mat te r  concern ing  Judge Makhube la .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    Now he to  a  la rge  ex ten t  conf i rms what  Ms 

Ngoye sa id  in  her  ev idence and  the  f i rs t  two documents  

she dea l t  w i th .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And then the re  i s  PRASA’s  then a t to rney,  

Mr  Makashwa who has f i led  an  a f f idav i t  wh ich  la rge ly  i s  in  

l ine  w i th  what  Mr  D ing iswayo has sa id .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    May I  make the  suggest ion ,  and I  cou ld  do  

a  smal l  synops is  o f  what  i s  the re  and ask  a t  some s tage  

tha t  tha t  par t  o f  Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  a f f idav i t  be  dea l t  w i th  

pure ly  by  way o f  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    Because there  is  no th ing  cont rovers ia l ,  

even in  te rms o f  what  Judge Makhube la  says  in  her  

response to  the  var ious a f f idav i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja  I  th ink  inso fa r  i f  Mr  D ing iswayo is  

no t  go ing  to  be  add ing  anyth ing  in  regard  to  the  S iyaya  

mat te r  bu t  w i l l  jus t  be  la rge ly  cor robora t ing  what  Ms Ngoye  

has sa id  then unt i l  what  we can do  is  wa i t  and see whethe r  

Judge Makhube la  d isputes  any o f  tha t ,  and i f  there fore  

there  i s  a  need fo r  co r robora t ion  then he can be ca l led .   So  

you cou ld  pu t  in  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  conf i rms tha t  par t .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then i f  a t  a  la te r  s tage the  vers ion  

tha t  he  was go ing  to  co r robora te  i s  d isputed then i f  need  

be he can be ca l led  back bu t  hav ing  I  wonder  how much 

d ispute  there  w i l l  be ,  bu t  we w i l l  see ,  we do not  know.  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  bu t  Cha i rperson may I  make th is  

po in t ,  we w i l l  know next  week because we a re  consu l t ing  

w i th  Judge Makhube la  next  week.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    So  we w i l l  pu t  Mr  D ing iswayo ’s  a f f idav i t  to  

her  so  we w i l l  know i f  there  i s  a  d ispute  and tha t  w i l l  jus t  

nar row th ings down.    In  fac t ,  i t  w i l l  save the  Commiss ion  

va luab le  t ime in  tha t  regard .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And we jus t  concent ra te  on  anyth ing  tha t  10 

is  ser ious mer i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  on  S iyaya we do not  need to  

bo ther  to  cover  tha t  par t  inso far  as  he  is  concerned? 

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  what  e lse  wou ld  s t i l l  be  ou ts tand ing  

tha t  needs to  be  covered?  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  a l l ,  tha t  i s  the  res t  o f  h is  a f f idav i t ,  

bu t  be fore  we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  I  don ’ t  want  to  –  I  do  no t  want  

us  to  do  in jus t i ce  to  anyth ing  impor tan t  tha t  m ight  s t i l l  20 

have to  be  covered,  bu t  i f  we have covered the  impor tan t  

th ings then i t  wou ld  be  f ine .   But  you have someth ing  to  

ra ise?  

ADV SONI  SC:     I  jus t  wanted to  say Cha i rperson when I  

asked Mr  D ing iswayo about  the  s ta tus  o f  the  Prod igy  
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d ispute  I  wanted to  p lace  on record  tha t  in  PRASA Bund le  

B  Exh ib i t  SS3 f rom page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  the  same f i le  we have been 

look ing  a t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  no  i t  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A d i f fe ren t  bund le?  

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  i s  the  Bund le  B  –  you need not  go  there  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh I  don ’ t  need to  go  look a t  i t ,  okay,  

a l r igh t .  10 

ADV SONI  SC:     No,  i t  i s  jus t  to  say tha t  th is  mat te r  i s  

be fore  the  H igh  Cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SONI  SC:    And the  papers  in  the  H igh  Cour t  a re  

be fore  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SONI  SC:   We have inc luded i t ,  jus t  l i ke  we d id  w i th  

the  S iyangena mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  no ,  fo r  the  sake o f  

comple teness ja .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   So the  Prod igy  

mat te r  i s  be fore  the  Cour t ,  the  S iyangena mat te rs  a re  

be fore  the  Cour t .  

ADV SONI  SC:    S iyaya is  be fore  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    S iyaya mat te rs ,  I  do  no t  know i f  they  are  

be fore  the  Cour t  because hasn ’ t  S iyaya been l iqu ida ted?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes,  bu t  the  l iqu ida tors  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The l iqu ida to rs  are  s t i l l  pursu ing  tha t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay tha t  i s  be fore  the  Cour t ,  Swi fambo 

there  was a  H igh  Cour t  judgment  and an SCA judgment  

say ing  tha t  the  cont rac t  was inva l id  bu t  the  money  hasn ’ t  

been recovered and very  l i t t le ,  i f  any th ing  has happened to  

ge t  the  money back.  10 

ADV SONI  SC:    That  was the  issue you ra ised yesterday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   When you combine a l l  o f  

these amounts ,  the  Swi fambo amount  i s  what ,  four  comma 

someth ing?  

ADV SONI  SC:    The Swi fambo is  R3,5b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    R3.5b i l l i on  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SONI  SC:    S iyangena is  in  the  reg ion  o f  about  f i ve  – 

perhaps w i th  –  bu t  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  pu t  the  cont rac ts  i t  i s  

R4b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  about  R4b i l l i on?  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  i s  about  seven and a  ha l f  o r  

someth ing  b i l l i on  and the  S iyaya?  

ADV SONI  SC:    S iyaya is  tha t  R50mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  R50mi l l ion .  
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ADV SONI  SC:    Sor ry  R60mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    R60mi l l ion?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  one tha t  we are  leav ing  ou t ,  i s  i t  

a l l  o f  them there?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes and then o f  course  the  Prod igy  one 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh the  Prod igy  how much is  tha t?  

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  i s  about  what  PRASA is  do ing  is  i t  

wants  to  rev iew and se t  as ide  the  who le  cont rac t  w i th  the  10 

in ten t ion  o f  c la im ing back a l l  the  money and the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and how much was invo lved in  

Prod igy?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Hundred and –  so r ry  R82mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    R82mi l l ion ,  so  a l l  o f  these ent i t ies  the  

amounts  invo l ved  must  be  somewhere  jus t  above R7b i l l i on?  

ADV SONI  SC:    I t  i s  about  –  i t  i s  c loser  to  R8b i l l i on  than 

R7b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  c lose  to  R8b i l l i on ,  ja .   Yes okay,  no  20 

tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  so  wou ld  tha t  be  the  end o f  what  we  need to  

cover  w i th  h im?  

ADV SONI  SC:    Wi th  Mr  D ing iswayo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  there  someth ing  tha t  we might  be  

m iss ing  Mr  D ing iswayo tha t  you  fee l  i s  impor tan t  tha t  
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shou ld  be  covered,  tha t  you –  in  te rms o f  your  own 

ev idence apar t  f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  you migh t  have w ished to  say on  

S iyaya?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Cha i r  on  –  i t  i s  on  S iyaya.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  on  S iyaya?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Yesterday,  I  th ink  i t  was yeste rday  

when we were  to ld  tha t  there  was  an inqu i ry,  a  l iqu ida t ion  

inqu i ry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   And where  there  was a  number  o f  

concess ions tha t  were  made by  PRASA employees.  

CHAIRPERSON:    By  employees,  ja .  

MR DINGISWAYO:   What  you are  no t  to ld  i s  tha t  the  s ta r  

w i tnesses who made those concess ions where  Lucky  

Montana,  Dan ie l  Mth imkhu lu  and a  gent leman  ca l led  

May ishepo Pap i  so  what  to  make  o f  those concess ions is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  20 

ADV SONI  SC:    I f  I  cou ld  and  I  know i t  i s  comment  

Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  l i ke  Mr  Montana coming and say ing  these  

Prod igy  cont rac t s  a re  good because I  s igned them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ]  

ADV SONI  SC:    That  i s  exact ly  what  happened in  the  
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inqu i ry  and a t  the  r igh t  t ime Cha i rperson you w i l l  be  g iven,  

when Ms Makhube la  comes,  you w i l l  be  g iven a  copy o f  the 

Commiss ion ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  because we have got  

the  t ranscr ip t  o f  the  proceed ings,  we have  got  the  in te r im 

repor t  as  we l l .  

ADV SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we have  got  a  lo t  tha t .   Okay,  

o therw ise  you a re  covered?  

MR DINGISWAYO:   I  am okay Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   No thank you very  much Mr  

D ing iswayo fo r  coming th rough to  g ive  ev idence,  i f  

necessary  you w i l l  be  ca l led  back bu t  I  th ink  there  probab ly  

i s  s t i l l  a  lo t  tha t  you need to  –  tha t  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  

need to  –  wou ld  need you fo r  in  te rms o f  o ther  i ssues tha t  

have been ra ised  by  you and Ms Ngoye and maybe o ther  

peop le ,  bu t  thank you very  much fo r  coming  to  g ive  

ev idence.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess tha t  a t  some s tage,  ja  i f  you  are  20 

needed cer ta in l y  you w i l l  be  asked  to  come back.   Okay.  

MR DINGISWAYO:   Thank you s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you ve ry  much.   So tomor row we 

do not  have a  s i t t ing .  

ADV SONI  SC:    No.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    We do not?  

ADV SONI  SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then I  need to  jus t  announce fo r  

purposes o f  the  med ia ,  so  tomorrow we won ’ t  have  a  s i t t ing  

bu t  next  week we w i l l  con t inue,  on  Monday we w i l l  hear  

ev idence f rom –  I  w i l l  hear  ev idence f rom Mr  Fro l i ck ,  a  

member  o f  Par l iament ,  we w i l l  dea l  fo r  most  o f  the  week I  

th ink  we w i l l  dea l ,  o r  maybe ha l f  o f  the  week we w i l l  dea l  

w i th  some Bosasa re la ted  persons or  imp l ica ted  persons.   

There  w i l l  be  I  th ink  o ther  Bosasa re la ted  w i tnesses  dur ing  10 

the  week and imp l ica ted  persons w i l l  g i ve  ev idence fo r  

most  par t ,  fo r  most  o f  next  week.  

 Okay,  we ad journ .  

ADV SONI  SC:    As  i t  p leases Cha i rperson.  

REGISTRAR:    A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 6  JULY 2020  

 


